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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Fountain Set Group”) (Stock Code:
00420.HK)

One of the world’s largest and long-established fabric manufacturers, the Fountain Set Group produces knitted fabric and garments
through vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing, finishing and garment manufacturing, for many of the
renowned apparel retailers and brands.

As a strong believer of research and development, we collaborate with brands and suppliers to develop innovative and creative fabric
and garment products to consumers all over the world. Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Fountain Set Group has 8 production facilities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative offices in 4 countries and a global staff force of close to 7,600 strong.

Chinatex Corporation Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Corporation, has become the largest shareholder of the
Company since 2012. COFCO Corporation is a state-wholly-owned enterprise established in the PRC and a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

To learn more about Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, please visit www.fshl.com
To learn more about Chinatex Corporation Limited, please visit www.chinatex.com
To learn more about COFCO Corporation, please visit www.cofco.com
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EXTENSIVE WORLDWIDE NETWORK
SR AIRBRARAS

YANCHENG Hgi

TOKYO ®R
SHANGHAI L&

HONG KONG &&
MACAO #F

HO CHI MINH CITY $E 8T

JAKARTA ERiniE 7
i @ HEADQUARTERS #8
@ PRODUCTION FACILITY
} @ TRADING OFFICE 3

veapouanTers - 6 8 I Thaoin oFrice - s

HONG KONG & #
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
= E==3 =]

Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.
PRODUCTION FACILITY » £EMIN +smEemsssRam

CHINA HE

Knitting & Dyeing $+48i R
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited
IREEHBERRAS
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited
BREESBERRS

Knitting, Dyeing & Printing #+4 « 2 & R EN{E Fountain Set Limited
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles

Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.

RV HEBHBENRERAR

Garment Manufacturing 7%

Dong Guan Fuyi Apparel Co., Ltd.

REREREBRAE

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.

ERAIHMRIRARAR

Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.

BERBRKERAT

CHINA HE MACAO 2P

Sales of Dyed Fabrics &7 E& Raw Materials Sourcing [R#H%

Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
FEINBNOHBRBRATE P2 CRPIBE =R BRAT

HO CHI MINH CITY #EBH
Fountain Set Limited
- Vietham Representative Office

HONG KONG & # BHEXARAF
Raw Materials Sourcing /R ¥HE PR
Highscene Limited TOKYO X
ERBRAT Fountain Set Limited

Sales of Dyed Fabrics 78t — Japan Representative Office

BHBEARRH
BHEXERRAE - BEHAEHAHR
Sales of Garments F{ 7} 85 & UNITED KINGDOM %

Hiway Textiles Limited
BEABEIRAR

Fountain Set (Europe) Limited
BEHEX BUN BRAR

Oceanstar Textiles International Limited

BEGBEEERAE

JAKARTA HRfiniE

Garment Manufacturing $7%
‘P.T. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang

OLOMBO A f&i

# Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.

PXBBERREEHEXBBLIEX - HAEKE  MURLBRE
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR AR sHEE

2020 2019
HK$Mil E&EET  HKSMIl 52 & 7T
Operating Results EEEE
Revenue =G 4,943.2 6,605.7
Financial Performance BRI
Profit attributable to owners KRBHEB A
of the Company Pz A 85.7 1411
Profit margin B 1.7% 2.1%
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREA B
- Basic —H&K 7.0 11.6
— Diluted —#E 7.0 11.6
Dividends 35}
Proposed final dividend per share BRAOSRFPRE
(HK cents) B 7.00 9.28
Proposed special dividend per share BAOSKRERRE
(HK cents) B = 1.16
Dividend payout ratio TRELEE 100.0% 90.0%

At 31 December

At 31 December

12A831H 128318
2020 2019
HK$Mil BEE7T  HKSMIl & &
Financial Position at Year End REERERZHHRR
Net current assets MENEEZFRE 2,059.3 2,129.4
Total assets BEBE 5,425.7 5,296.9
Non-current bank borrowings JEREIRITIEE 7.1 154.5
Total bank borrowings WIRTTREE 236.7 2024
Net bank borrowings IRITEEFRE (1,026.2) (723.0)
Total liabilities BEE8E 1,845.9 1,711.8
Net asset value per share (HK$) SREEFE (BT 2.77 2.79
Capital expenditure BEARME 135.8 134.6
Financial Statistics A4t
Return on equity (%) 1 i [O] 2R 21 (%) 2.8% 4.7%
Consolidated tangible net worth FERATEE 3,195.5 3,182.3
Consolidated total bank debt to RERIRTTABHREFER
consolidated tangible net worth BEELA 0.1 0.1
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated FEREMTERBHFFBHEES
interest expense FEZ LA 16.2 11.8
Consolidated current assets to REREBEEREZEARE
consolidated current liabilities =Ll 2.3 2.6
Inventory turnover period (days) EEFER (H) 103 78
Trade and bills receivables turnover EEYrES ey
period (days) BAEE (/) 76 62
Trade and bills payables turnover EELRERENRIE
period (days) BEE (/) 82 51
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

2 ==
MBRAHE (@)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BT E

A summary of the financial information of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the respective published
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out as below. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

AABRANB AR BELBYMBREEZ M
ERHE BN EEAFEAMEERGEEME
]R) HIWMT - I E L TERE B G S/
BERKRZ—ED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS RElEmR
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HZ20165F HZ2017E #Z20185 HZE20195 #Z20205F
12A31H 12A31H 128318 12A31H 12R31H
I35 HFE IHFE IHFE LLFE

HK$'000 T8  HK$000 FB7T HKS000 FH7T HKS000 F 47T HK$000 FHT

Revenue B 6,328,714 6,913,785 7,510,789 6,605,655 4,943,230
Profit before income tax expense  FRFF1Si HAT & A 168,068 212,250 230,865 209,619 122,145
Income tax expense iM%t (18,076) (36,304) (52,586) (42,805) (20,554)
Profit for the year EEERR 149,992 175,946 178,279 166,814 101,591
Attributable to: (G
Owners of the Company KARBEBA 127,908 156,846 160,792 141,089 85,706
Non-controlling interests TR ER 22,089 19,100 17,487 25725 15,885

149,992 175,946 178,279 166,814 101,591
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

MEHE (@)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EEMBERRER
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
128318 #12R831H 128318 #12A31H K128318
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HKS'000 T HK$000 T8 HKS000 F81T HKS000 F#1 HK$000 F#7T
Non-current assets FheEE 1,738,318 1,746,764 1,771,706 1,835,805 1,746,822
Current assets TEEE 3,633,297 3,842,207 3,892,818 3,461,095 3,678,889
Current liabilities REas 1,671,279 1,746,107 1,687,133 1,331,653 1,619,636
Net current assets TEBEEFE 1,962,018 2,096,100 2,205,685 2,129,442 2,059,253
Total assets less current liabiitles ZEMERREEE 3,700,336 3,842,864 3,977,391 3,965,247 3,806,075
Non-current liabilities ElEI=LF 246,691 286,488 376,146 380,191 226,286
Net assets BEFE 3,453,645 3,556,376 3,601,245 3,585,056 3,579,789
Capital and reserves BAKEE
Share capital BTN 865,716 865,716 865,716 889,810 889,810
Reserves 11 2,432,336 2,536,545 2,567,084 2,529,651 2,504,762
Equity attributable to owners KRR R \EGER
of the Company 3,298,052 3,402,261 3,432,800 3,419,461 3,394,572
Non-controlling interests FETR SR 155,593 154,115 168,445 165,595 185,217
Total equity EmiEE 3,453,645 3,556,376 3,601,245 3,585,056 3,579,789
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
TR Ko 50 58

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited

AREEGBBERAR

T D A A o TR e

o todE )

—O—h&E

'k A5 SCUNER B 7 it

No. Name of Award/Certification

XHEFSE 328 SR ERTE

1 2019 Key and Major Enterprise of Jiangyin*
019 IlamEBER R E

2 2019 Outstanding Unit of Safety in Production of Jiangyin
High-tech Zone*
9FEIREER 2L ERES

8 2019 Outstanding Unit of Ecological Civilisation*
COI9FEERE X AR ITEREN

4 2019 Outstanding Enterprise of Foreign Investment*
2019 S g B e E

5 2019 Charitable Enterprise*

019 ERLES

Issued by
BB

Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist
Party of the PRC, Jiangyin Municipal People’s
Government*

ST  JTamh ARBUA
Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*

IR ERMEXRAEEEERZE S

Working Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone of the
Communist Party of China*

PRI SHRITERMAERTFEESE
Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*

IEsMRMEXRAEEEEERZET

Working Committee of Jiangyin High-tech Industrial
Development Zone of the Communist Party of China*

PHIRSHRMEXRRAERTFEESE
Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*
AREMRNEXHEEEELZES

Working Committee of Jiangyin High-tech Industrial
Development Zone of the Communist Party of China*

RHIRENRTEXRER T(FEES
Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*

IRSMENEXHEREERZE S
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CEND-TEX &

CERTIFICATE

o

Name of Award/Certification

815/ WERTE

2019-2020 Advanced Grass-roots Party Organisation of
High-tech Zone*

2019-20205F E & & o B /E 240 45

Outstanding Enterprise of Labour Legal Supervision of Trade
Unions*

TEEE i REE TR EB

Charitable Outstanding Enterprise of Jiangyin*
IREEREEMESR

Oeko-Tex Standard 100

Oeko-Tex 1E#100*

ISO 50001 Energy Management System Certificate

ISO 50001sE R EER AR ERS

ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certificate
ISO 14001 IRIRE IR RVERES

EWMHTAIS
=O-A&+=A o
i %

EEEE(%E)HRLE  2020F F#K

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIA K068 (1)

Issued by
BB

Working Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Zone of the Communist Party of China*

R TEsE TFEES
Wuxi Federation of Trade Unions*
AT E

Jiangyin Charity Federation*

ARhEERES

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG » 3 - # #8h& <€ i

Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co., Ltd.
ERPERIBEERFERAT

Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co., Ltd.
ERPERIREERHFERAT
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIA RN ()

Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

B EESEERAR

No.
XS
1

2019F S ROl

zEip4

B AN
2020418

Name of Award/Certification

315/ WELE

2019 High Quality Development Contribution Award*
019FEFEELREERMEE

2019 Outstanding Three-star Enterprise*
019FEFERB=E%

Three-star Enterprise of Yancheng*
BHm=Efx

2019 Advanced Unit for Fire Safety Management Work in
the District*
2019FE2 R H L BIETIFREEN
Supplier of 10 Years Corporation®
BETFHER

Outstanding Supplier*

BEHERE

Issued by
BHHE

Working Committee of Yancheng Economic-

Technological Development Zone of the Communist

Party of China*
PHERSERMFAZER IFEES

Management Committee of Yancheng Economic-

Technological Development Zone*
HERKERNHEREEEZE S
Yancheng Municipal People’s Government*
B ARBUN

Yancheng Municipal People’s Government*

By h A R BUF

Fire Rescue Brigade of Yancheng Economic-
Technological Development Zone*

B I A S 2 1 3 38 (& 0 973 KR K B
Hongxing Erke (Xiamen) Industrial Co., Ltd.
BEMR (BF) BEARAE
Hongxing Erke (Xiamen) Industrial Co., Ltd.
BEMR (BEF) BERRQA
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38 Red Flag Collective*
=NAIEER

Oeko-Tex Standard 100

Oeko-Tex 1Z#£100*

Comparison Test Certificate*
LRI EEE

Laboratory Authorisation Certificate*
BEREREDRSE

Ve

FEEEE(LE)FRLE  20206E#K 11

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
8RIAR % ()

i

A AL

Chinatex Corporation Limited
FERSERBRAR

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG » Tif =45 @482 7€ P

CNTAC Testing Center

FREDAL A T R B A 10RO

Xtep (China) Co., Ltd.

155 (FRE) BRAF

Certificate of Compliance in Global Organic Textile Standard

Bk Bm iR 2SR

Certificate of Compliance in Organic Content Standard
B S BRERR
Mill Qualification Program

TREMDE st &

ECOCERT Greenlife
ECOCERT Greenlife

Intertek Group
PR3
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIA R0 (1)

No.

XFFESR
4
5
6
7

Name of Award/Certification
1218 RE TR

Environmental Management System Certificate*
RIEEERANFERS

QOutstanding Organisation Award*

BFH A

2019 Completion of Verified Module
20195k 5 IR AR AR

Oeko-Tex Standard 100

Oeko-Tex 1Z#100"

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.

ERABMRKARAT
20093E1E 1k 5,

Fi= A
ﬂ“J ’jk:
Bl kL& Sl bt AL F o

No. Name of Award/Certification

XHFIE 128 RERE

1 2019 Top 50 Industrial Taxation Bronze Award*

2019%F £ T MNiR6052 3 5%
2 Excellent On-time Delivery Award*

BFH L

] COMPLETION OF
VERIFIED MODULE

OEKD-TEX @

CERTIFICATE

Issued by
BB

China Great Wall (Tianjin) Quality Assurance Centre
B (R2) BERER O
2020 Guangdong Province Printing, Dyeing and

(

Chemical Compounding Workers Professional Skills
Competition Organising Committee*

2020 EREERREMERTHERERTES
Sustainable Apparel Coalition

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG » Iy &= 45 i 7E P

P
&

Issued Ey
HE(T

Xiangshan County Chinese Communist Part
Committee, People’s Government of Xiangshan*

FRERINGFRS > RILUBRARBUN
Li Ning (China) Sports Goods Co., Ltd.
T2 (HE) BERRARAR
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Express Laboratory Certification
Express B =E058"

bluesign® SYSTEM PARTNER

bluesign® SYSTEM &£+

Organic Content Standard (OCS) 2.0

B E81R%(0CS) 2.0

Global Recycled Standard (GRS) 4.0

2 IR AREE(GRS) 4.0

Global Organic Textiles (GOTS) 5.0
2IRE A B MmGOTS) 5.0

Next Laboratory Accreditation Certificate
Next B =000 5"

George Laboratory Certification Scheme
George B ZERse o1 2

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
8RIAR % ()

Express Laboratory

bluesign technologies ag

Control Union Certifications B.V.
HERE (B8 BRAR
Control Union Certifications B.V.
HB:35% (B8 BIRAE
Control Union Certifications B.V.
HERE (LB ARAR
Next Retail (UK) Ltd.

George & Intertek Group
George e K5 E
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
ilﬁ& wunﬁ (ﬂﬁ)

MARKS & SPENCER

PREMIER ACCRODITATHON SCHEME

&) COMPLETION OF
=4 VERIFIED MODULE

OCEAN LANKA PVT Ltd

| COMPLETION OF
SELF-ASSESSMENT

OCEAN LANKA PVT Ltd

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by

XFSE 8218 RHRE BB

8 OHSAS 14001: 2015—0Occupational Health and Safety SGS United Kingdom Ltd.
Management System Certification HEE B SRR BERA T
OHSAS 14001: 2016 — B E R EMNZ 2 EIE R R D85

9 Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) Certification SGS United Kingdom Ltd.
RUFEER%0 (GMP) 335855 &1 e R A RRER R AT

10 Marks & Spencer Premier Accreditation Scheme Marks & Spencer Group
Bl BEasR8Es 8 SR aEE!

11 2019 Complehon Of Verified Module Sustainable Apparel Coalition
20198 B 1R AR 2 A

12 2019 Completion Of Self-Assessment Sustainable Apparel Coalition
20198 FaTh e Ak

13 Accredited Textile Testing Laboratory Columbia Sportswear Company
D] A7 A R A B B =

14 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute

Oeko-Tex 2 #£100* TESTEX AG > I £ #5 #ii% TE FT*

English names are only translation of their official Chinese names. In case of inconsistencies, the Chinese names shall prevail.
¥ EANABEREFRXGBZEX MAKRE  BIUR X RER &

i Chinese names are only translation of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.

o ORANRBERSEXEBZEX WA KR BIUEX LB



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company” or “we” or “our”’, and the “Board”, respectively), | am pleased to
present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group” or the “Fountain Set Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2020 (“2020”), and to provide you with an overview of the Group’s
strategy and business outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

According to the World Bank’s January 2021 Global Economic Prospects,
following the initial rebound in mid-2020, the global economic recovery has
slowed. Whereas activity and trade in the goods sector have improved, the
services sector remains anemic, in particular, still depressed. The fall in global
investment has been pronounced, particularly for emerging market and
developing economies excluding the PRC. Even though financial conditions
remain very loose, reflecting exceptional monetary policy accommodation,
underlying financial fragilities are mounting. Most commaodity prices rebounded
from their mid-2020 lows as strict lockdowns were gradually lifted and demand
firmed, especially from the PRC.

Against the aforesaid international context, the global economy is estimated to
have contracted 4.3% in 2020. Global trade is projected to contract by 9.5%
in 2020 —comparable to the decline during the 2009 global recession but
affecting a markedly larger share of economies —before growing by an average
of 5.1% in 2021 to 2022.

Global trade collapsed last year as border closures and supply disruptions
interrupted the international provision of goods and services. Goods trade fell
more rapidly and recovered more swiftly than during the global financial crisis,
while services trade remains depressed. Relative strength in manufacturing,
alongside persistent weakness in services, reflects the unusual nature of
the recession, which has shifted consumption patterns toward goods and
away from services requiring face-to-face interactions. The recovery in global
merchandise trade has also benefited from the resilience of global value chains
to supply disruptions.

Although there have been some steps toward trade liberalisation, such as the
higher tariffs on U.S.-China trade remain in effect, and there has been little
recent progress toward “deep” trade agreements that foster broader economic
integration. Trade policy uncertainty has fallen from its highs in 2019 but is still
above historic norms, in part due to the potential of renewed trade tensions
between major economies.

FEEEE(EE)HRAT  20206EFR

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRS

BERE
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A 5 e SR 5 [0l

BB FRIET2021F1 B E KK ERE)  #
2020F P HFEERRER  EREEERER
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FREL 155 2P E UM B 5 K R A
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ELHIMBEES ST > 20204 2 BRAS T 4 5T 48
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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With the conclusion of the US presidential election 2020 and the Biden
administration coming to power, there is still a lot of ambiguity regarding Sino-
US relations. Along with the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the macroeconomic
environment is expected to be unsettling in the coming year. Nevertheless, the
Group remains optimistic about the recovery of US, Europe and China’s retail
apparel industries. As the global COVID-19 situation stabilises and the local
retail market moves forward to gradual recovery, consumers are beginning to
regain their inclination to spend.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”)
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

To go green by minimising printing and as our common practice, we shall
only upload the 2020 ESG report on the respective websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company. The 2020 ESG report
details the Group’s progress in multiple ESG areas, showing where we
exceeded expectations and where we need further improvement. We have
embraced sustainable innovation as a powerful engine for growth not only
for our own business, but across upstream and downstream partners in
our industry. Since 2016, we have set up a “Sustainability Development and
Enhancement Committee” (the “Committee”) which consists of different
subsidiaries and cross-functional departments. The Committee not only helps
drive the vision across the Group, but also implements our sustainability
objectives and goals. The Committee prompts our business to understand our
sustainability impacts, sets ambitious targets to address them and overcome
obstacles in meeting them.

In 2016, we started a revolutionary new business — centralised heat supply
project (the “Project”), of which the business model is a pioneer in the industry.
The Shatian Town Industrial Park (the “Park”) (for electroplating, fabric printing
and dyeing industry) is one of the seven largest environmental industrial parks
in Dongguan, China. It integrates and assembles the industry’s enterprises
within the Park and in other areas in Shatian Town, which are required to be
relocated. The Project, being one of the ancillary projects of the industrial park
development, is also a key project of the implementation plan of the centralised
heat supply in Guangdong Industrial Park and Industrial Cluster Areas. The
Project will contribute to cleaner air for the community and neighbourhood
by reducing the emission of nitrogen oxide, sulphur dioxide as well as smoke
and dust by reducing the remaining 28 coal-fired heaters within the district.
The Project has completed the first phase of construction in 2018 and put into
operation to supply heat to local enterprises. The second phase of construction
of the Project started in 2019. According to the Guangdong Province’s
“Blue Sky Defense” and Dongguan’s “Coal to Gas” policy, the second phase
commenced after the removal of the remaining coal-fired boilers and a new
natural gas boiler will be built. By the end of 2020, the construction of the first
of them has been completed and the ignition test of operation has started.
Natural gas is a clean energy source, which can be efficiently burned and
utilised. Upon the completion, it can further reduce emissions, overall energy
consumption and carbon emissions, and improve overall social benefits and
contentment.
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The Group will continue to invest in advanced technologies and install
additional equipment to prevent and reduce pollution. The Group provides
periodic training workshops to staff members regarding environmental
protection and pollution controls. The Group also invites qualified advisers
to visit its factories from time to time to evaluate whether the environmental
protection measures are up to standard and to give recommendations for
further improvement.

LOOKING FORWARD

While 2020 is deemed to be a year of challenges for both the global and the
Chinese economy, the recent outbreak of COVID-19 has posed even greater
difficulty to the entire textile and apparel supply chain in the world. | would like
to express our gratitude to our employees for shouldering the responsibility of
battling the epidemic. It is only through timely and proper management and
control measures that we can guarantee the safety of over seven thousands
of employees with zero confirmed cases among the workforce. We have full
confidence in the Chinese government’s epidemic control, and maintain our
positive outlook of the market. We also believe more favourable policies will be
in place in the future to bring positive impact to the industry.

It is expected that in 2020, the fierce competition in the textile industry will
be adjusted with the global procurement and supply chain, and the task of
operation will be very arduous. Maintaining the stability of the Company’s
operating efficiency is the focus of the Group’s work in 2020. Production
enterprises should continue to strengthen process standardisation and system
transformation to ensure product quality and control delivery, reduce quality
cost increases and late compensation due to quality problems, refine indicators
to control production consumption and losses, and strive to reduce costs
and increase efficiency. At the same time, they should optimise the product
structure and increase product development efforts, continue to introduce
different new varieties of fabrics to the market according to plans, increase
production-study-research cooperation and joint development of enterprises
to produce more new products, enhance quality, and increase product added
value.

We believe that all of our staff members will work towards the Board’s direction
and objectives as well as implement the work plans set by the Board, and
will further map out our long-term development strategy. With our spirit of
“diligence, frugality, sincerity and integrity” and our general direction to “stabilise
operation and to enhance development”, we shall keep on enhancing our
efficiency and exploring the market with persistent efforts for bringing the Group
to a new level. We look forward to completing our annual operating tasks and
targets with excellent performances, and creating brilliant returns and results for
our shareholders. We are prepared to turn challenges into opportunities and will
forge ahead against all odds.

FEEEE(EE)HRAT  20206EFR

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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FINAL DIVIDEND

After reviewing the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK7.00
cents per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020. The total
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 would be HK7.00 cents per
share (payout ratio: 100%), as compared with HK10.44 cents per share (payout
ratio: 90%) for the year ended 31 December 2019. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 7 May 2021, it
is expected that the payment of the final dividend will be made on or about
Monday, 31 May 2021. Going forward in 2021, the Group expects to maintain
a similar range of dividend payout ratio as our dividend policy so as to provide
rewarding investment return to the Shareholders, subject to the dividend policy
stated on page 70 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the essential elements in enhancing shareholder value. The Group
is devoted to improving its corporate governance policies in compliance with
regulatory requirements and in accordance with international recommended
practices. As at the date of this statement, the Company has formed the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee all at the
Board’s level, to provide assistance, advice and recommendations on the
relevant matters that aim to ensure protection of the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

I am grateful for the excellent guidance and counsel from my fellow Board
members. We appreciate the ongoing support of our Shareholders, customers,
suppliers, bankers and other partners. My gratitude is also extended to the staff
members of the Group as they work tirelessly to ensure that the Group remains
one of the top circular knitted fabric suppliers in the world.

ZHAO Yao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
19 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

2020 was the most difficult year in the Fountain Set Group’s business history
in the past decade. Since the beginning of the year, the Fountain Set Group
was bombarded by both the domestic COVID-19 epidemic and the global
COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”), and had experienced the most serious
business crisis in its development history due to market standstill and faced
unprecedented risks and pressure in our operation. In this crisis, the Fountain
Set Group overcame the difficulties and went through the testing. With its
management experience accumulated through self-reform and development as
well as its industry-leading manufacturing capabilities, the Fountain Set Group
made concerted efforts and worked diligently to overcome major operating
risks, maintained the foundation for corporate survival, reduced operating
losses, and strived to restore operating growth. By the end of the second
quarter of 2020, its operating performance had resumed growth, and operating
conditions became stable with improvement.

Due to the disturbance of production and business caused by the Pandemic,
the revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 decreased by
25.2% to HK$4,943,230,000 (2019: HK$6,605,655,000). The decrease was
the result of the extremely disruption of the overall consumer market including
city lockdowns, temporary suspension of retail operation as well as temporary
closure of the production plants led by the Pandemic in 2020. All staff of the
Group worked very hard to achieve a rebound of 35.4% on revenue from
HK$2,099,734,000 during the first half of 2020 (“1H2020”) (first half of 2019
(“1H2019"): HK$3,388,393,000) to HK$2,843,496,000 during the second half
of 2020 (“2H2020") (second half of 2019 (“2H2019”): HK$3,217,262,000).
During the year under review, the Group'’s fabric year-on-year volume reduction
was approximately 21.4% whereas the average selling price decreased by
5.6% year-on-year.

Although the revenue reduced noticeably in the full year of 2020 which was
mainly due to the significantly reduced revenue during the beginning of the
Pandemic in 1H2020, given the relatively stable prices of cotton yarn, being
the major raw materials of the Group as well as the continuous stringent
reduction in cost of goods sold and the further market consolidation, the gross
profit margin of the Group in 2020 was higher than the corresponding period
last year by 0.9 percentage point to 12.4% (2019: 11.5%). The gross profit of
2H2020 was HK$53,440,000 higher than the corresponding period last year to
HK$397,488,000 (2H2019: HK$344,048,000) while the gross profit margin of
2H2020 was 3.3 percentage points higher than the corresponding period last
year to 14.0% (2H2019: 10.7%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Thanks to the tightened control in the distribution and selling expenses, the
administrative expenses as well as the finance costs in 2020, the earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation margin was 6.4% in 2020,
the second highest for the past seven financial years, which was almost flat
when compared with the same period last year (2019: 6.6%). The profit for
the period in 2H2020 increased by 54.9% when comparing with the same
period last year to HK$118,023,000 (2H2019: HK$76,217,000). In addition,
the profit for the period was a significant jump from a loss for the period of
HK$16,432,000 in 1H2020 to a profit of HK$118,023,000 in 2H2020. Overall,
the profit for the year in 2020 was HK$101,591,000, a reduction of only 39.1%
(2019: HK$166,814,000) despite there was a loss in 1H2020. The profit margin
increased by 1.8 percentage points to 4.2% in 2H2020 (2H2019: 2.4%),
while the profit margin for the full year of 2020 was 2.1% (2019: 2.5%) which
showed how hard the Group worked towards achieving the profit recovery from
the loss in 1TH2020. Basic earnings per share in 2020 was HK7.0 cents (2019:
HK11.6 cents).

(1) Combating against the Pandemic and striving to resume work
and production

In the beginning of 2020, with the Pandemic spreading domestically in
the PRC, most parts of the country were in an emergency and occluded
anti-pandemic state and economic operation came to a standstill.
The Fountain Set Group’s production enterprises had suspended their
operation and production and resulted in serious economic losses. The
management of the Fountain Set Group mobilised and united all circles to
resolutely win the battle against the “pandemic”.

All staff under the Fountain Set Group made preparations for the
Pandemic prevention and control and production of the Company and
its subsidiaries. With the president’s office as the highest accountable
authority, and the hierarchical executive agency and implementation work
units being set up to form a group prevention and control regime under
unified management and three-tier accountability units, the Pandemic
prevention work response plans were elaborately formulated and strived
to achieve scientific and effective measures with detailed implementation
responsibilities.

Since February 2020, the Fountain Set Group launched an emergency
coordination mechanism for production, supply and sales to ensure
that the preparation for resumption of work and production and the
Pandemic prevention and control were in place, and a secured system for
raw materials preparation, energy supply, logistics protection and rapid
response mechanism was established. Its enterprises began to resume
work in batches in an orderly manner on 9 February 2020, and employees
started production works on 11 February 2020. At the same time, while all
parts of the country were still under lockdown, companies had tried their
best to take various measures to bring most of their employees back to
the factory to resume production. The Fountain Set Group’s subordinate
companies had used large transportation vehicles on over 100 occasions.
More than 800 employees scattered in three provinces and regions and
over 50 counties and cities were transported back to the factory in only
two days and the first batch of products were packaged and shipped on
12 February 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

(2) Resisting risks and maintaining enterprise survival foundation

The Pandemic broke out globally and caused abrupt impact to the
market. Since its global widespread in late March 2020, countries had
successively adopted occluded measures and markets came to a
standstill. The global retail market suffered the most. Except for large-
scale supermarkets in Europe and the United States of America (the
“USA”) offering daily necessities that met the space requirements of the
Pandemic prevention, all textile and apparel retail stores were temporarily
closed due to lockdown and the Pandemic prevention measures adopted
by various countries. At the same time, under the impact of the Pandemic,
brand commercial companies had ceased operation in accordance with
government regulations and restrictions. Companies and commercial
organisations, including major clothing brand companies in USA, stopped
their operations. Furthermore, regions in Central America, South Asia,
including Sri Lanka, Bangladesh and other countries with concentrated
clothing manufacturing were affected by the Pandemic, with a large
number of clothing companies halted their production.

The European and American markets had come to a complete standstill,
the demand for textile and apparel markets plummeted, and the operation
of the global textile supply chain was interrupted. The direct impact on
textile export companies, including the Fountain Set Group, was a sharp
reduction in orders and the operating situation for textile and apparel
export companies was acute.

(i) Efforts to restore production and stabilise business operation

The lengthy impact of the Pandemic on export textile companies
was unexpected, and production companies were facing operation
difficulties. Apart from Chinese New Year holidays, the industries
affected by the Pandemic suffered losses overall in February 2020.
After the full resumption of production and work in March 2020, it
was hit by the Pandemic when both the production and exports
dropped significantly from April to June 2020. After the production
and work resumption, various production companies under the
Fountain Set Group faced the arduous task of making up for the
shipment delay of a large number of pre-ordered products and
ensuring the delivery of current orders in March 2020. While the
Pandemic has not yet mitigated, the production companies under
the Fountain Set Group overcame various difficulties such as labour
shortage, insufficient technical staff and raw materials shortage.
Works needed to be rushed and it endeavoured to increase
production capacity, ensured current products delivery to make
up for the delay in production shortage in February 2020, so as to
recover the operating losses caused by the Pandemic. In early April
2020, the Pandemic outbreak reached its peak. Most of the Fountain
Set Group’s major buyers had ceased operations, and all of their
retail stores in European and American countries were suspended.
Therefore, from April to June 2020, major customers reduced orders
substantially.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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(i)  Striving relentlessly to resist business risk impact

With its group companies not occurring major risk incidents and
production activities of production units kept on operating, these
were the foundation conditions for maintaining the survival and
development of an enterprise. Stabilising the business status,
avoiding major business risks, and minimising losses to the greatest
extent caused by the Pandemic impact were the core tasks of the
management of the Fountain Set Group this year.

In the 1H2020, despite the huge impact on its operations, the
Fountain Set Group calmly responded to the risk situation and took
decisive measures to protect and self-rescue, and spared no efforts
to maintain the foundation for its survival.

First of all, while controlling the new raw materials inventory under
the approach of “produce based on sales, prepare materials based
on production”, the purpose of reducing inventory level was achieved
by concentrated consumption of raw materials and finished products
inventory caused by order cancellation and reduction.

Secondly, by adopting measures such as intensifying efforts in
receivables collection, investigating customers credit risks, and
collecting overdue accounts receivable in a centralised manner, the
Group strictly controlled credit limits, enhanced capital management,
stringent income and expenditure breakeven, adjusted capital
reserves, and accelerated liquidity turnover. As a result, the Group
maintained its liquidity ability in payments.

Thirdly, by controlling the total number of staff, adjusting staff
structure, and reducing surplus staff, the Group’s labour costs and
expenses were significantly reduced.

Fourthly, by adjusting marketing policies, the Group associated with
major customers and major buyers to establish a mechanism for
mutual assistance and cooperation in responding to crises. Through
the joint formulation in market strategies, pricing strategies and
product strategies, the Group, major customers and major buyers
worked together to respond to the impact of the Pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

(3) Withstanding the challenges with business resuming growth

with positive development

In 2020, owing to the dual impact of domestic and foreign Pandemic,
the Fountain Set Group suffered the most serious business crisis in its
history caused by market standstill. During this crisis, the Fountain Set
Group overcame the difficulties, went through the testing, worked together
and strived hard to resolve major business risks, maintained business
survival foundation, reduced operating losses and endeavoured to restore
operating growth. By the end of the second quarter of 2020, the operating
results had achieved recovery growth, and our operating conditions were
stable and improving.

Overcoming difficulties to recover operating losses caused by the
Pandemic

Given that the world-wide Pandemic might still pose a secondary impact
on global economic recovery, it would take a long and difficult process
for the market to fully recover back to the level before the Pandemic. In
the third quarter of 2020, the Fountain Set Group seized the favourable
opportunity of the Pandemic mitigation and adopted aggressive sales
strategies. By lean and flexible production organisation, accurate and
efficient supply security, it gave full play to the advantages of “production,
supply and sales integration” management, proactively catered market
demand and rapidly increased production capacity to enter a period of
business recovery and growth ahead of industry peers after the Pandemic
outbreak.

Since the fourth quarter of 2020, the apparel market recovered slowly
and brought growth in orders for production enterprises, however the
unfavourable factors affecting market recovery also increased gradually.
The impact of the Pandemic on the market caused changes in market
procurement and supply mechanism and product structure, weakened
bulk purchase predictability, changed the structure of demand varieties,
and increased the varieties for random purchase and trial sales. The
halt in sales and the inventory pressure in spring and summer had
caused production enterprises and brand companies to operate under
tremendous pressure, with sluggish sales growth and slow processing
in postponed orders and delayed inventory supply. The procurement
and supply system of raw materials faced reorganisation due to various
factors. Production costs had little room for reduction, with labour
shortage and reduced mobility occurred, and labour costs went up. The
increase in orders in small batches, multiple varieties and short delivery
periods became the main pressure in production.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRADN (8

The management team of the Fountain Set Group always maintained
a strong will to deal with the crisis and was also highly cautious in
business philosophy. On one hand, it seized the transient market recovery
opportunity, actively expanded sales and increased the number of orders
to create favourable conditions for improving annual efficiency and
stable operation, while controlling costs, increasing operating income,
maintaining a stable and positive operating situation to form out of the
business crisis and strived to create operation efficiency.

On the other hand, it accelerated the reorganisation of the raw materials
procurement and supply system to cope with the possible supply
constraints in future, curb the abnormal rise in raw materials prices,
increase the proportion of yarn procurement applicability classification
and reduce procurement costs. The Fountain Set Group strengthened
its production scheduling planning and scientifically used its production
capacity to effectively respond to the increase in small-batch and multi-
variety orders, and also improved product quality, reduced quality costs
and production losses.

Getting out of the predicament to achieve business recovery
growth

The operation and management system of “production, supply and sales
integration” plays a key supporting role in the process of the Fountain
Set Group’s response to operating crises and market risks. In the crisis
of this year, owing to the sudden impact on the market, all plans related
to production and operation were disrupted, with market stagnated and
supply chain interrupted. Under such circumstances, the five sub-systems
under the operation and management system of “production, supply and
sales integration”, namely overall sales, centralised procurement, unified
scheduling, cost control and technical cooperation played a dominant
role in maintaining the foundation for corporate survival and operation.
Production enterprises could effectively adjust schedules, control costs,
cooperate and complement with one another, and could always maintain
close contact with the market. Not only could they leverage limited
orders to maintain enterprise basic operation within the Group, but also
effectively control and reduce inventory. These measures assisted the
Group to overcome the crisis and quickly gear up for market recovery,
provide effective support for the Group to prepare entering the operation
recovery growth in advance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

(4) Facing challenges to achieve high-quality development during

the 14th Five-Year Plan

The current global economy is undergoing significant changes, and
economic globalisation is facing challenges. Under the impact of many
uncertain factors, the global textile industry layout is constantly changing,
and a new global textile industry and textile trade layout are taking shape.
China’s textile industry is facing unprecedented challenges, and it needs
to accelerate adjusting its development strategy to facilitate transformation
and upgrading. Facing severe situation and challenges, the Fountain
Set Group comprehensively analyses the changes in macroeconomic
situation, accurately grasps global economic and industrial development
trends, and integrates the requirements of China’s textile industry
development and our own innovative development practices during
the 13th Five-Year Plan period to comprehensively plan the 14th Five-
Year development strategy and promote high-quality development with
innovation.

Innovation-led development during the 13th Five-Year Plan period
achieving remarkable results

During the 13th Five-Year Plan period, the Fountain Set Group achieved
remarkable results in process technologies innovation, and propelled
technology transformation of equipment and improvement of process
technology that significantly improved production efficiency and process
technology standard. On one hand, through equipment upgrade and
transformation, it introduced production equipment with advanced
technology into production, and improved manufacturing capacity
significantly. The production enterprises under the Group successively
introduced and put into production a series of equipment with advanced
technology, thus significantly improved production efficiency and
manufacturing capacity.

On the other hand, by continuously promoting production and application
of process technology improvement results and comprehensively
improving the level of production technology, the Fountain Set Group
achieved fruitful results in advancing process technology improvement.
Following a batch of new processes and new technologies were applied
to production practices, the production process had been optimised,
with production efficiency and product quality significantly improved, and
production losses and production costs also decreased obviously.

After years of continuous product development and improvement research
work, the Fountain Set Group achieved fruitful results in terms of product
development and variety improvement in 2020. By utilising new materials
and new technologies, it achieved results in nearly 1,000 varieties of
four major series, namely product upgrades, new material applications,
functional series and environmental protection products. Some of these
achievements won awards for invention and innovation, and were
recognised and acclaimed by the market.

(4)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRADN (8

®)

The application of new fibers and new materials continued to deepen
and a number of achievements were transformed into new products
and launched into the market, which enhanced the development of new
materials functional fabrics of the Fountain Set Group to a new level. On
this basis, cotton-covered silk plain weave products and cotton-covered
cotton plain weave products had been put into production. In addition,
a batch of products characterised by high wearability, strong texture,
energy saving and environmental protection, such as atmospheric tangible
cationic polyester staple fiber products, expanded acrylic mixed fiber
products, and polyester filament products hit the market one after another,
effectively facilitated the diversification and refinement of the product
portfolio of the Fountain Set Group.

The development and improvement of multi-layer composite structure
fabrics also achieved new results. Through continuous research and
tests in recent years, our development of three-layer composite fabrics
was extended to five-layer composite fabrics without altering the existing
equipment. The variety and features of such products were further
enhanced and broadened. At present, multi-layer composite sports and
casual apparel fabrics became one of the main products of the Fountain
Set Group.

The technological transformation project of the Fountain Set Group’s
intelligent information system is planned to be implemented in 2021.
The project aims to replace the existing MENU system and build a
manufacturing execution (MES+) system based on the Internet of Things.
Through the use of information technology and MES+ system, the
standardisation of process technology can be realised to improve the
predictability and accuracy of the implementation of production plan, and
lean manufacturing and flexible manufacturing can be achieved from the
past obsolete push-production approach to comprehensively improve
the production efficiency and factory management standard, which is
the basic information platform of the Fountain Set Group’s “production,
supply and sales integration” management system.

Events after the Reporting Period

The Group did not have any significant events after the end of the
reporting period (i.e. 31 December 2020) and up to the date of this annual
report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:

EEREFRES T (B

FA 5Ol BR

REEEHE2020F 12831 HIEEEZ T EBKE
KA FEIEZE25WMT ¢

2020 2019
Statement of Profit or Loss Items HERIEE

(Al amounts in HK$ thousands unless Y5 RIGEPRINT B 88

otherwise stated) BHUF AT
Revenue = E 4,943,230 6,605,655
Gross profit el 611,132 760,952
EBITDA* BT EE R 85 A0 316,486 438,540
Profit for the year EEERF 101,591 166,814
Profit attributable to owners of the NABVHEB ANEERA

Company 85,706 141,089
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SREARF GBI 7.0 11.6

Key Financial Ratios FEMFLEE

Profitability ratios BRIGESHE
Gross profit margin (%) FEFIZ(%) 12.4% 11.5%
EBITDA* margin (%) SERITE R EHEFFEE%) 6.4% 6.6%
Expenses as a % of revenue FIZ IS 23 HEF
Distribution and selling expenses DiIE M IHEE R 2.2% 2.0%
Administrative expenses THER 8.2% 6.4%
Finance costs [EE=i0%: 0.4% 0.6%
Asset efficiency BEMNE
Inventory turnover period (days) EFEBEE (H) 103 78
Trade and bills receivables turnover EELEREWEIEFE (H)

period (days) 76 62
Trade and bills payables turnover EELEREMARIEFES (H)

period (days) 82 51

EBITDA means earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

EBITDA#RE % BRI 88 K i dl m F1)8 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRADN (8

At 31 December

At 31 December

12H831H $12831H
2020 2019
Asset ratios BELE=X
Current ratio* TR 2.3 2.6
Net debt/EBITDA ratio BER BRITE KB HA AR (3.2) (1.6)
Gearing ratio BARE&ELEER
Total liabilities/Equity attributable to BEERE KABHE NEEER
owners of the Company 0.5 0.5

i Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.
MENEENF B A AR BB ERLURE &G

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$4,943,230,000 (2019: HK$6,605,655,000).

Revenue by business segments

12.5% -s
FY2020
202081

87.5%

EEH

EBEE2020F12831HIEFENEX£ENS
4,943,230,0003 7¢ (20194F : 6,605,655,0005%
7T) °©

EEEREBOE

Production and Sales of
Dyed Fabrics and Yarns

RIS MIHE M AR

@ Production and Sales of Garments

RIS R IHERX

In the year under review, the Group’s core business, production and
sales of dyed fabrics and yarns, generated revenue of approximately
HK$4,322,991,000 (2019: HK$5,804,550,000), which accounted for 87.5%
(2019: 87.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. Revenue from production
and sales of garments was approximately HK$620,239,000 (2019:
HK$801,105,000), which accounted for 12.5% (2019: 12.1%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

REBEFE SEZOVER - NENRBERR
Rt EREAY £ 4,322,991,0007 75 (2019
F 1 5,804,550,0007870)  HEBEEEEEEE
BI87.5% (20194 : 87.9%) o B K E Y
TR 22849 4620,239,0008 7T (20194
801,105,000/ 7T) > (L& E & £ FE42E/12.5%
(20194F 1 12.1%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020, overall cost of sales of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$4,332,098,000 (2019: HK$5,844,703,000) and
overall gross profit margin was 12.4% (2019: 11.5%).

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue decreased by 25.2%
compared with the last year, which was mainly due to the decrease in
sales volume of fabric by 21.4% triggered by the outbreak of the COVID-19
worldwide. Compared with the last year, the drop in production cost led to an
increase in gross profit margin.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s overall distribution
and selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$107,256,000 (2019:
HK$132,514,000), which accounted for 2.2% (2019: 2.0%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses amounted to approximately HK$406,800,000 (2019:
HK$424,871,000), which accounted for 8.2% (2019: 6.4%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s EBITDA amounted to
approximately HK$316,486,000 (2019: HK$438,540,000) and the EBITDA
margin was 6.4% (2019: 6.6%).

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s finance costs amounted
to approximately HK$19,562,000 (2019: HK$37,047,000), representing 0.4%
(2019: 0.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$135,777,000 (2019: HK$134,619,000) in additions of property, plant
and equipment. The Group’s capital commitments primarily related to the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had contracted capital commitments of approximately HK$105,938,000
(31 December 2019: HK$84,406,000) in relation to the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment.

EEREFRES T (B

HEMEREF

SEEEE2020F12831HIEFE 2 BRI
E A4 A4,332,098,000 75 (20194
5,844,703,000870) » BEBEFEXAH12.4%
(20194F : 11.5%) ©

REIBER > REBREEIE T EK25.2% T2
ERNMERBRRS RN TR ZMIREE > 512
ERHEE 2R 4921.4% c EBEFARLL ) EF =K
EARHNEEMATRESI R

DHRHEER

EBHE2020F12B31HIEEEZZEE D
R tHE B R4 A107,256,000% 7T (20194
132,514,000 7T) @ ({hEE S EFEEEN2.2%
(20194F : 2.0%) ©

THEHR
EREE2020F12831H L FE 2 BETHRE
FB#%406,800,00078 7T (20194 : 424,871,000
Br) IEEEE EREBERS.2% (20194F ¢
6.4%) ©

BRI E R a7 B(EBITDA)

EEEHE2020F12B31HIEEEZ BRITE
R 851 A1) 49 4316,486,00058 75 ( 20194
438,540,000 7t) > BMITE R @ A1 F) B =X
#6.4% (20194F : 6.6%) ©

RMEM
EEHE2020F12831HIEFEZREMEL

7319,562,0005 75 (20194F : 37,047,000 7T)
{HEEEE 2 2EEEM0.4% (20194  0.6%) ©

g NGRS

REIBEFERN > EEBKREA135,777,000E8 7T
(20194 : 134,619,000 7T) LUIE 42 ~
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFRADN (8

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2020, income tax expense of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$20,554,000 (2019: HK$42,805,000).

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2020, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$85,706,000 (2019: HK$141,089,000) and
the corresponding profit margin was 1.7% (2019: 2.1%).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s inventories amounted to approximately
HK$1,218,169,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,255,906,000). The inventory
turnover period was 103 days, an increase of 25 days compared with 78 days
in 2019.

Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade and bills receivables amounted to
approximately HK$1,027,493,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,129,994,000).
Trade and bills receivables turnover period was 76 days, an increase of 14 days
compared with 62 days in 2019.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade and bills payables amounted
to approximately HK$964,731,000 (31 December 2019: HK$823,798,000).
Trade and bills payables turnover period was 82 days, an increase of 31 days
compared with 51 days in 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, bills payables of HK$28,991,000 (31 December
2019: HK$19,313,000) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank deposits
of HK$5,798,000 (31 December 2019: HK$5,767,000).

FRiSH <

EEHE2020F12831HIEFE ZFAEMRETH
#9720,554,00078 75 (20194 : 42,805,0007
7T) °©

AT EBEABERT

EBEHE2020F12831BLEEEZEART
A AELRAL%A85,706,00058 7T (2019
£ 1 141,089,000787T) » HEREBFIEER1.7%
(20194 1 2.1%) ©

LAS
EER2020F12831H 2 FE#4A1,218,169,000

HE7T (20194128318 : 1,255,906,000&7T) ° 1%
SRS A103K > Bi2019F 78 K ABLEIE MN25K ©

EERFRBEWRIE

EER2020FE 12831 B 2 8 ¥ R EHEER
T5497%1,027,493,00058 7T (20198128311 :
1,129,994,0008 7T) © & K EEEWTIEE &
EAAT76K > B120194E62 K AHELIE IN14K o
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EER2020F 128312 EEREEBEMNR
TE4774964,731,0008 7T (20195128311
823,798,000787T) - EX K RIEENIBEE
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R2020FE12831H » ZE4E FE (T 7R IE28,991,000
7T (20194128318 19,313,000 7T) T4 H
REE 2 Z RFIIRITERG,798,00078 7T (2019
F12831H : 5,767,000 7T) (AL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net assets amounted to approximately
HK$3,579,789,000 (31 December 2019: HK$3,585,056,000). The key figures
of the Group’s financial position were as follows:

EEREFRES T (B

EEnHMRMBER
R2020F12A31H EBEEFENS
3,5679,789,000%& 7t (20194128311 :
3,585,056,000/87T) cEBHM B TN EEZER
o

At 31 December At 31 December

#¥12831H R12831H

2020 2019

HK$’000F & 7T HK$'000T T

Non-current assets JERBEE 1,746,822 1,835,805
Current assets MENEE 3,678,889 3,461,095
Total assets BEEHE 5,425,711 5,296,900
Current liabilities V=N 1,619,636 1,331,653
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 226,286 380,191
Total liabilities aEEE 1,845,922 1,711,844
Net assets EEFE 3,579,789 3,585,056

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation
by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to
HK$236,748,000 (31 December 2019: HK$222,382,000). Details of the bank
borrowings of the Group are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank balances and cash, including
short-term bank deposits, amounted to HK$1,255,567,000 (31 December
2019: HK$937,353,000) and were mainly denominated in HKD, USD and
RMB.

EENEEMSRENEAIBTHRERENR
BANAEEERE MEFHXNIEZEARY
IRTTE (T -

R2020F12B31H  AERIETEE
236,748,000 7T (2019F12H831H
222,382,000/ 7T) c AEEMNIRITEEFBD
BN RS IR RMI5ES o

2020128 31H » REBMRITHEFAIRE
(BB HRIR TR & 3£1,255,567,000%8 7T
(20194 12H31H : 937,353,000 7T) * =&

BAB ETRARK.
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EREF®ES (B

As at 31 December 2020, the principal financial covenant figures/ratios
(according to the definitions of the Group’s principal banks) were as follows:

1R20205F12831H » T BN HRMEUR th
(REEAEETEARRITNER WOH :

At 31 December
#12831H
2020

At 31 December
RM12H31H
2019

Consolidated tangible net worth REFATEE

Consolidated total bank debt to RERIRTEEHGES T
consolidated tangible net worth BREELLS

Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated 4% B0 178 K 84 p A1) B %
interest expense REF B HEEA

Consolidated current assets to GENBBEEHGANEER
consolidated current liabilities EE

Consolidated capital expenditure

HK$3,195,548,0007% 7T

HK$3,182,250,0007% 7T

0.1 0.1

16.2 11.8

2.3 2.6
HK$135,777,0007 7© HK$134,619,0007& 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
complied with all covenant ratios and undertakings.

Risk Management

The Group follows a stringent and prudent risk management policy to manage
foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

The sale and the purchase of raw materials of the Group were mainly
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Since the Group mainly carries out
production in China, we are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB
exposure. The Group has been closely monitoring the exchange rate fluctuation
for USD and RMB and will continue to monitor the trend of the exchange rate
and adopt appropriate measures in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk in
a cautious manner.

In addition, bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in HKD and
USD and interests were mainly charged on a floating rate basis. The average
effective interest rate of bank borrowings of the Group was 2.46% (2019:
3.81%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the bank
borrowings were repayable not later than three years. All bank borrowings were
unsecured for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
The Group will continue to monitor the interest rates fluctuation in the market
and will adopt appropriate measures to minimise the interest rate risk.

Charge on Assets

Details of charge on assets are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REE2020F K2019F12B31HIEEERN » &
EECEETHAE LA R R KEE -

= Bz E

£ BB R RS R B I R IR EUE S S
P Re 2 LB o

EEZHENMRMRBLUET EARARE
mE-MEBTBHNEEEMUNPE 80T KR
ARBREEZIERRE EE—ERTER
EUkAREERNES  GREGEENTSG A
BREBGEXNED  ZHSEOEIELURKE
BB R

s EEMIRITIEE U B TTiETTA BN 7
EFELEFFAEAE - AEFRBRTEEZTF
HEBRFRNZE22.46% (20194F © 3.81%) > Wi 7B
RARZHIRBEEAE R HAEE - 81 E2020F 124
S1HK2019F12A31HIEEE  FRAIRITEE
HABERR AERREESEMBNAER
) W2k aBAE i LU R = @k o

BEHC
BEEMCHBEHN GG BRRMEE23-



FEEEE(EE)HRAS  20206EFR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 7,600 (31 December
2019: 8,300) full-time employees. The Group will continue to implement
streamlined production so as to further minimise its labour cost. The Group’s
emolument policies are formulated based on the performance of individual
employee and the salary trends in various regions, which are reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also distribute a
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the
Group.

The Company has established a share option scheme for its employees
(expired on 19 January 2021), and also provides regular training courses and
subsidies for continuing education so as to improve the skills of its employees
with respect to production, selling and management.

STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT

We obtain and understand the views of our stakeholders regularly. This
communication provides valuable feedback for our business and assists us
to understand stakeholders’ needs and assess the best way to leverage
our resources and expertise to contribute to future business and community
development.

Across the supply chain, we have taken steps throughout the Year to ensure
that we operate responsibly and in the interests of our customers, workforce,
suppliers and other stakeholders.

Employees perform management, administration and human resources,
operation and finance relation functions respectively. The Group determines
the remuneration of its employees by reference to the market salary of their
individual experience and performance. The Group will continue to improve
and upgrade their management and professional skills. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by any collective bargaining agreement or labour
union. The Group has not experienced any significant problem with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour dispute, nor has
the Group experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff.

OUTLOOK

The sales momentum of the 2H2020 has been seen in the first quarter of 2021,
showing encouraging financial results compared to the same period last year.

Promoting high-quality development innovatively during the 14th
Five-Year Plan period

There is still a considerable gap between the current level of technological
development of China’s textile industry and the goal of being a textile
powerhouse. Therefore, the textile enterprises in China should adhere to the
strategic direction of taking innovation as the lead, transforming development
momentum with technology to promote high-quality development for a long
period of time in future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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The reshaping of the global textile industry layout and the complicated evolution
of textile production and trade environment determine the instability of the
textile industry layout and its development in future. The rise of emerging
economies, the advancement of technologies and brands in developed
countries in Europe and USA and the return of manufacturing industries made
Chinese textile enterprises facing a passive situation. Chinese textile enterprises
can only maintain their ability to compete in the market only if they could
improve their capabilities in four sectors: technological innovation, product
upgrade, production capacity coordination and market cultivation.

During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, the Fountain Set Group will lead the
transformation and upgrading innovatively to facilitate high-quality development
and achieve sustainable green development through technological innovation
and management innovation, so as to become an industry leader in the
manufacture and management of high-quality knitted fabrics.

Intelligent manufacturing is of important significance for textile enterprises
in improving production efficiency, changing traditional production models,
enhancing international competitiveness and achieving high-quality
development. In the future, the Fountain Set Group should adhere to promoting
intelligent manufacturing step by step according to the development path of
three basic paradigms of digitalisation, networking and intelligence based on
the results of existing informatisation construction.

Increase business share of overseas market

The Group will accelerate the development of the domestic textile market and
expand the proportion of domestic product sales to form a new situation of
coordinated development that complements the international markets internally
and externally. With developing industrial textiles as a new growth segment for
the domestic market, and taking medical textiles as the entry point, the Group
will enter the industrial textile market with constant deepening and expansion,
enable it to become a new source of growth in future.

Continuous investment in Research and Development

The Group will put more efforts in product research and development. By
taking functional fabrics, multi-fioer composite fabrics and fabrics for green
environmental clothing as the main direction, we will increase product varieties,
expand product applications in the industry, and transform from a sub-
contracting enterprise to a manufacturing enterprise to improve the quality of
development.

We believe that all of our staff members will work towards the Board’s direction
and objectives as well as implement the work plans set by the Board, and
will further map out our long-term development strategy. With our spirit of
“diligence, frugality, sincerity and integrity” and our general direction to “stabilise
operation and to enhance development”, we shall keep on enhancing our
efficiency and exploring the market with persistent efforts for bringing the Group
to a new level. We look forward to completing our annual operating tasks and
targets with excellent performances, and creating brilliant returns and results for
our shareholders. We are prepared to turn challenges into opportunities and will
forge ahead against all odds.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures as it believes that an effective corporate
governance framework is fundamental to promoting and safeguarding
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhancing shareholder
value. Throughout the year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the
“Year”), except for the deviation as disclosed in this report, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively) as
guidelines to reinforce our corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2020, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors” and the “Board”, respectively) comprised 9 members, namely 4
executive Directors (the “EDs”), 2 non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”) and
3 independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). The NEDs and INEDs
represented about 56% of the Board members thereat. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following members:

EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIU Xianfu

Mr. TAO Yongming

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. SUN Fuii

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM
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The number of INEDs continuously represents one-third of the Board as
required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The profiles of all the current
Directors are set out on pages 53 to 58 of this annual report. The relationships
among the Board members (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships, if any) are also disclosed there.

All Directors have entered into service contracts or letters of appointment with
the Company, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at the
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”). Article 102(A) of the Articles provides that
at each annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest one-third or any other number subject to
such manner of rotation as may be required by the statutes, the Listing Rules
or other codes, rules, and regulations prescribed from time to time by the
applicable regulatory authority, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire in
every year shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last
election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined
by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Article 93 of the
Articles also provides that any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy (who
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company) or as
an addition to the Board (who shall hold office until the next following AGM)
shall then be eligible for re—election, but shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to the
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising the business operations of the Group in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) by formulating
strategic directions and monitoring the financial and management performance
of the Group.

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the Board. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s business
to the executive management team, and focused its attention on matters
affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the Shareholders.
The executive management team assumes full accountability to the Board
for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule has been formulated and
will be reviewed regularly to identify specific matters that shall be reserved
to the Board and those delegated to the management. The Board has given
clear directions to the management that certain matters must be referred to
the Board for consideration and approval. The Board is the ultimate decision
making body of the Company except for matters requiring the approval of
the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly intervals were held
during the Year. Each of the Directors has actively participated in each meeting
in person or via telephone or videoconferencing. Decisions were made by
majority vote at the Board meetings.

The dates of 2020 regular Board meetings had been determined in 2019 and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least 14 days
before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place to allow the
Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) who regularly updated the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. Any Director, wishing to do so in the
furtherance of his respective duties, might take independent professional
advice (through the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)) at the Company’s
expense. The availability of professional advice extended to three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee” or the “AC”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee” or the “RC”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee” or the “NC”). Minutes
of the Board meetings were taken by the Company Secretary and, together
with any supporting documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and final
versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and record
respectively.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and such transaction or proposal was determined
by the Board to be material, the individual Director had to declare his interest
and was required to abstain from voting on any matter in which he or any of
his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest and
that he would not be counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board, the AC, HKEER ' EFNEETD:
the RC and the NC and the general meetings during the Year are set out inthe FZ -#HHEEC G % IRLEET D

following table:
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Meetings attended/Meetings required to be attended during the Year
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Extraordinary

Board AC RC NC General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM Meeting
B il b [

EERL EEQEE ZEREE ZECEE ZEREE BEAET HHRRAZ
EDs HirEE
Mr. ZHAO Yao Lt 4/4 = = = 1/1 11
Mr. LIU Xianfu ERLE 4/4 = = = 1/1 11
Mr. TAO Yongming MK % 554 4/4 - - - 11 1/1
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew il Epeeies 4/4 - - - 1/1 1/1
NEDs FHITEE
Dr. YEN Gordon BEWEL 4/4 - - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. SUN Fui BELsE 4/4 4/4 - - 1/1 1/1
INEDs BUHHTEE
Mr. NG Kwok Tung REREE 4/4 4/4 - - 11 1/1
Mr. YING Wei feRLaE 4/4 - - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wiliam LAM MEMLE 4/4 4/4 - - 1/1 1/1
Date of the meetings 2 M 20/03/2020 07/01/2020 Note 1 Note 2 08/05/2020 14/02/2020

03/07/2020 12/03/2020 HEE 1 Mz 2

21/08/2020 03/07/2020

20/11/2020 14/08/2020
Notes: Hiat -

1. During the Year, written resolutions had been circulated and passed by all the RC 1. RAFEE 2EFWEECHECERHLER

members on four occasions, which were dated 18 March 2020, 12 June 2020, 29
June 2020 and 18 November 2020, respectively.
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2. During the Year, written resolutions had been circulated and passed by all the NC 2. RAFE 2R E4ZESHEEHMAESR

members on three occasions, which were dated 12 March 2020, 26 June 2020

and 11 November 2020, respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Training of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the duties
and responsibilities as a Director as well as relevant laws, rules and regulations
applicable to the Directors, the duty of disclosure of interest and the business
of the Group and induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.

All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest developments
and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he had complied with code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the Year, each
of the Directors named below has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh his knowledge and skills and provided a
record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors Topics of Training covered (Notes)

EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. LIU Xianfu (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. TAO Yongming (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew (@), (b) and (c)
NEDs

Dr. YEN Gordon (@), (b) and (c
Mr. SUN Fuiji (@), (b) and (c)
INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YING Wei (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. William LAM (@), (b) and (c)
Notes:

(@)  corporate governance
(b)  regulatory requirements or risk management
(c) finance or business operation/management

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal action against the Directors and officers.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (THE “CEO”)

Since 23 January 2015, Mr. ZHAO Yao, the Chairman and an ED, has taken
up the position of CEO of the Company, details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 23 January 2015. This deviates from code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. However, having considered the current status of
the Group, vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same person
enables the Group to plan its overall strategy more efficiently and achieve the
budgeted target. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
under this arrangement is adequately ensured by the Board which comprises
experienced, professional and high caliber individuals with a sufficient number
thereof being INEDs.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the existing NEDs and INEDs were appointed for a specific term. Each of the
NEDs and INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of one year, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at
the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the existing INEDs, an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considers that all the INEDs are independent and at least one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. In response to the specific enquiries made by the Company on
all Directors, they have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
each with specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference have been
reviewed and approved by the Board and are updated by reference to the
CG Code from time to time. The terms of reference of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures and
arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The respective
committee secretaries took full minutes of the meetings of these committees
and the work of each of these committees was reported to the Board regularly.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised and
effective on 1 January 2019. The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
consider the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors, to monitor
the integrity of the Group’s financial statements with a focus on the changes
in accounting policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant audit
adjustments, going concern assumptions, and compliance with accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and to
review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises a NED Mr.
SUN Fuji and two INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. William LAM and
is chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year and details of the
attendance are shown in the table on page 38 of this annual report. A summary
of the work of the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

o provided recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor, and approved the audit fee and the terms of
engagement of the independent auditor;

o reviewed and monitored the independent auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and discussed with the independent auditor before
the audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and the reporting
obligations;

o reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report as well
as significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

e reviewed the financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems;
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e discussed the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management had performed its duty
to have effective systems. Such discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

e ensured co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensured that the internal audit function was adequately resourced and had
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and monitored its
effectiveness;

e reviewed the financial and accounting policies and practices; and

o reviewed the independent auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the independent auditor to management regarding
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to BDO Limited, the Group’s
independent auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$2,913,000 and HK$1,086,000 respectively.
The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review of HK$350,000,
payroll services of HK$43,000, tax services of HK$229,000, SASAC's report of
HK$460,000 and registered services of HK$4,000.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. They were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The independent auditor’s
statement about its reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 74 to 78 of
this annual report.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the re-appointment of the independent auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2021 AGM for the approval of
the Shareholders.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually; 2) to identify and recommend
suitably qualified candidates as new Director(s) or to fill Board vacancies as
they arise and to assess candidates proposed by the CEO as new Senior
Vice President(s) or to fill Senior Vice President vacancies as they arise for the
approval of the Board; 3) to assess the independence of the INEDs; and 4) to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the CEQ.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises an
ED Mr. ZHAO Yao and two INEDs, namely Mr. YING Wei and Mr. William LAM
and is chaired by Mr. ZHAO Yao.

The Nomination Committee passed 3 written resolutions during the Year. A
summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out
as follows:

e made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and assessed the
independence of the INEDs;

o reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and

o reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed the
balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with a diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the appointment
of Directors (including an INED) in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the current
composition and size of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

i. The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals
from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due consideration
given to the criteria which include but are not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service;
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Vi

Vil

Viil.

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available
time and relevant interest;

(c) Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industries in which the Group’s business is involved,;

(d) Independence;

(e) Reputation for integrity;

()  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the Board; and

(g0 Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of candidates who
are in and outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination
Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of
the remuneration package of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation to
the Board in relation to the proposed appointment, and where a Director is
considered, the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation
to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed by
the members of the Board, who are not members of the Nomination
Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the
appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the consent
to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the appointment
as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.
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POLICY OF DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a policy of diversity of the Board (the “Policy”).
The criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether
the relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills, knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural background and
SO on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the particulars of the
Policy as adopted by the Board are summarised as follows:

Purposes:

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable and
balanced development of the Group.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and other experience of the Directors. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will bring to the
Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy for all Directors; 2) to review
and approve the Group’s remuneration policy proposed by the CEO and
make recommendations to the Board; and 3) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration and incentive assessment indicators proposals
by reference to the Board’'s corporate goals and objectives. The Group’s
remuneration policy is to provide a competitive level of remuneration in
accordance with current market conditions to attract and motivate the
Directors and staff for their contribution.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
an ED Mr. TAO Yongming and two INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr.
YING Wei, and is chaired by Mr. YING Wei.
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The Remuneration Committee passed 4 written resolutions during the Year. A
summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the Year is set out
as follows:

e made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and assessed
their performance;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration and incentive
assessment indicators proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and

e ensured that no Director or any of the respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The risk management and internal control
systems employed by the Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material and/or
financial misstatement or loss. The Board has delegated the Audit Committee
the following duties:

1. to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems;

2. to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty
to have effective systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

3. where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness; and

4. 1o consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management’s response to these findings.

FEERNFHNEETBB TAREEARER
HFWNEEERNAFERANITHHEEEENTE
I8 ;

s MENEFkSREEEZMETERE
FERHEEZ QESEN D BRASRE
MRBEZR (BERRIRILERBNE
EREEE) » RFBRFZRIEA

s RAEEFEMIICERHKERMEHRE
BEMHMNRENEZEREE &

s BMEEIMNEFRAZENETABHBEA(ER
R EMMAER) FRAIBERERS Z FEM o

[\ B 32 e PO BB BE
EXT2REEHFIERNAREERAZ
EERK - AERECHAEREERABEER
MZzENERB O AERZERB AR NE
ERERREE BIFHMRAARRE RREMRE
K/ HHHNBBERERBRFLAEMIE
BENRE EFGERTELRZEGUTHE
= .

1. BEARAUHEE EREERANEE
R

2. HEEESNREREERANBEEZERG
BREEBEETRERIAVNNRGE
SmAREEEES RMBRERBAED
HNER - HEABIZ2ERERERESRE
5 UkzFEIMESHNEINIRERE
HARBREEESIE ;

3. WMABREMNIBETBAE  AIERAIBHM
SNESIZ BB B TIRIS EIHEE ; thARMRA
BEZNEEERDALAERHERE
B  WEABERNMAL ; URBT RER
Hp s &

4., THHEEFENZIR MEMERERE
ERABRGEZEEFENEZREERKEERE
HRBERNCIEETIARE-



FEEEE(EE)HRAS  20206EFR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Company has established the Internal Audit Department (the “IAD”) and
the Corporate Operation Management Department (the “COMD”) to manage
the internal control and risk management issues of the Group respectively. The
COMD reports to both the AC and the CEO, while the IAD reports only to the
AC.

The AC and the CEO report to the Board periodically regarding material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and other risk
issues of the Group identified by the AC and the CEO from time to time. The
Board, through the AC, reviews risk management and internal control matters
approximately once every six months. The Board and the AC are satisfied with
the effectiveness of the Company’s procedure for financial reporting.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The IAD is responsible for the internal control matters of the Group and
currently comprises 4 staff members. It is governed by an internal audit charter
and has established an internal audit approach for its internal audit function.
The IAD has prepared 17 internal audit reports during the year ended 31
December 2020. The Board has confirmed that IAD had been provided with
adequate resources and budget and comprised qualified staff with sufficient
experience and training programs to perform its internal audit function.

The missions of the IAD are:

— to evaluate and improve the Group’s risk management, control and
operation processes; and

—  to assist the organisation in achieving the best practice, thus becoming
the best managed company.

The IAD is authorised to have unrestricted access to records, personnel, and
physical properties relevant to the performance of audits. Their relevance
depends on the nature and extent of the audits as well as the audit
environment, and is subject to the internal audit guideline on the handling of
sensitive information as endorsed by the AC. The IAD is authorised to directly
and regularly communicate with the senior management and all executives in
individual organisation being audited to discuss its major findings. All personnel
within the Group are required to assert full cooperation any time and in any
place with the IAD necessary to allow it to discharge its responsibilities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management framework
(the “Framework”) since year 2016. The Framework is to execute the basic
risk management measures in various business sectors such as production,
operation and management, with the aim to (i) develop a group-wide, open and
proactive risk management culture, and (i) safeguard the strategic development
and current business operations of the Group.

The Framework consists of the following concepts:
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The Comprehensive Risk Management Framework
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The Company has also established the guideline for the Framework (the
“Guideline”). According to the Guideline, the risk management function of the
Group is made up of the Board, AC, CEO, senior management, COMD, IAD
and various subsidiaries of the Company.

The Framework is a tri-layer system. The first layer is mainly made up of senior
management and heads of various functional and operational departments of
the Group, who are the key players for minimising potential risks in advance.
The second layer consists of the AC, the CEO and the COMD, which is mainly
responsible for the organisation, co-ordination and planning of the corporate
risk management works and monitors the progress of the risk management
works. Thus, the second layer is vital during a risk management crisis. The third
layer is formed by the AC and the IAD to review and audit the existing operation
flow such as information system, business flow and financial disclosure. The
third layer is often the key to mitigate risk factors in the aftermath of a risk
management crisis.
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The following diagram displays the relationship and interaction among the three ~ FEIFER 7 IE2238 24 2 RIMRA R KR B )
layers of the Framework:
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assessment work; T1E;

2. Set reasonable assessment standards and methods for the impact of risk 2. ¥ EGIER 2 2R E M (HIZEEHE 5k E
categories; and TRERE &

3. Accelerate the implementation progress of the risk management work. 3. MRRBEEIENEMEE-
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During 2020, the IAD and the COMD had reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and reported their findings to the AC. The
risk management and internal control systems are reviewed twice during the
Year. There was no significant defect found in respect of the risk management
or internal control system under review. The Board and the AC are satisfied
with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established a policy for ensuring that inside information (the
“Inside Information”) is disclosed to the public in an equal and timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The senior management of the Group is to provide timely and accurate
information, to allow the Board to make an informed decision to determine
whether the information is Inside Information and/or whether the Company has
to disclose such information to the public. Senior management of the Group
must report to the Board and/or CEO any information they have which they
believe to be Inside Information and will trigger the Company to discharge its
disclosure duty. The Company Secretary will follow up accordingly.

The Company Secretary is responsible for disclosing Inside Information to the
public and/or is authorised to collect any information from any department and/
or employee of the Group in order to help determining whether the alleged
information is Inside Information and/or whether disclosure is required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices
on (i) corporate governance and (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (d) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. The Board has, amongst other matters, reviewed this
corporate governance report, ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wai Han Charmaine (“Ms. CHENG”), the company secretary of the
Company, has continued to perform and discharge the duties of a company
secretary under the Listing Rules.
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Ms. CHENG joined the Group in October 2003 and is currently the Deputy
General Manager (Corporate Governance Department of the Group) of the
Company. She has over 22 years of extensive working experience specialising
in company secretarial matters, credit management, investor relations,
corporate affairs and insurance operation. Ms. CHENG is a fellow member of
each of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) in England. Ms. CHENG obtained a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from Mount Allison University, Canada, an Executive Master’'s degree
in Business Administration (EMBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Science degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong. Ms. CHENG has fulfilled
the specified qualifications and experience under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules
and she has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain a
continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through various
channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below is a
summary of how the Shareholders can convene a general meeting and put
forward proposals at such meetings.

Convening a general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Shareholder(s)
holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a
right to vote at general meetings may, by written request authenticated by the
Shareholder(s) making it (the “Written Request”) and sent to the Company,
require the Directors to call a meeting.

The Written Request (i) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (i) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement of the relevant Shareholder(s) and such
meeting must be held within 28 days after the date of the notice convening the
meeting.

If the Written Request received by the Company identifies a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the notice of
the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business that may be
dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution that has been included in such
notice of meeting. If the resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution, the
Directors must include, in the notice of the meeting, the text of the resolution
and specifies the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution.

* For identification purpose only

EEERRS @)

B2 £ /2003 F10B MALRER  RIEART
BlAEKIE (EEBEBAD) - FHEABE22F
NEETERE EENABMESTHE -FEE
EE - KREERAR CESHENRREE L
T REBRTNEAT RN ARAEAE
(The Chartered Governance Institute) (B &2 E]
RHTMERTHRAEBLAE) NEFEE - BL
THRMEAVMRUABEBIEHES T 211>
REBRXABRETHRAEIHEIERE LTS
IEMBA)RIXE BT A2 G IERE L 21
(BXEZHELEER) - BLTEFELTH
BIE3.28RFMTERNEXERKERE  BIRE
WIFE BT EHRAFEI 20K ERNIZT R
D1 NEF BRI B R 2B AR

ARERZ R

FABDEFREREEBEAERNBEBETRRER
REKRKREEFRFTRBAERR 2EEATZK
RAG - UTHARREIUMAERKRRRE 2

RELRERZ-

BRRRAE

RiIERBMEG (FABEAF6225) (TABMEG)
55566E5681% 1R HZHKRE (HREARE
RERG ERANRRNBRRERDS%)
ABBENERERIAENEEAR (EE
BRI EXAE BEREFAEGH-

ZEHER()RLAETEENEHHN—RME
B RijJESIEEMBRTREZRRAN
g EBREBURE Ao

EFEARMAREIERREARG 2B RE
WREFRBABRRN2IBANERREARE
ZAGRATARZRRANEHVENE LB A%
AU28H 1T~

MRAQABDWEEEER FEH—EA B E M
HRUREZRRAG LHENRZE AIARE
BN AGEZRZNEN BEEIEATE
MABRE QIR A2 RS LRENER -1
RRAZRRESBIRZR EFHVANKE
RENBNANE S ZORERI XA > WA R
R RIRZEBIT VIR HEZORZERI R A ©

* ERER

51



52

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EEERERE (B

If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the Written Request, the
Shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a
general meeting.

The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (i) in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the
meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must be
reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 580 and 582 of the Companies Ordinance, a Shareholder
may request the Company to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to a matter mentioned in any proposed resolution or other
business to be dealt with at any general meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a Written Request must be made
by (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at the
meeting; or (i) at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a
proposed resolution at the meeting.

The Written Request must identify the statement to be circulated, and must
be received by the Company at least 7 days before the relevant meeting. The
expenses of circulating such statement must be paid by the Shareholder(s)
who requested the circulation of the statement unless (i) the Company resolves
otherwise or (i) the meeting to which the requests related is an AGM; and
requests sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement are
received in time to enable the Company to send a copy of the statement at the
same time as it gives notice of the meeting.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings or
change of address or distribution instructions to the Company’s share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited. Shareholders may at any time send
their enquiries to the Board via the Investor Relations Representative of the
Company whose contact details are shown under “Shareholder Information” of
this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “EDS”)
Mr. ZHAO Yao

Chairman of the Board, ED and CEO
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Aged 57, was appointed as an ED on 27 November 2012, and as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 14
November 2014. He was further appointed as the CEO of the Company on 23
January 2015. Mr. ZHAO also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. ZHAO has almost 33 years of experience in the textile industry.
He joined China National Textiles Import and Export Corporation* (70 B4 £
SmEHO4EAF]), the predecessor of Chinatex Corporation Limited* (FRE
4 EE A RAT) (“Chinatex”), a controlling shareholder of the Company,
in 1987 and has held positions as the Assistant President of Chinatex, the
General Manager of Asset Management Department of Chinatex, Chairman
and General Manager of Chinatex Xinyuan Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (7
HIE2EEBIEBARAT), General Manager of Chinatex Tianyuan Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (B354 KT EBR/AF), General Manager
of Chinatex Real Estate Administration Co., Ltd.* (P#¥ESEBRER
&) ) (“Chinatex Real Estate”), Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited,
Chairman of Huasheng Fujitec Elevator Co., Ltd.* GEFAELEBHEEREA
&), Chairman of Shanghai Huasheng Fuijitec Escalator Co., Ltd.* ( Ei&ZEF
ETEHKBAMRAT), Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron Science
& Technology Co., Ltd.* (E/BZEEHERITARAF), Financial Manager
of Wah Gar Knitwear Factory Company Limited, General Manager of Suzhou
Zhongfa Property Management Co., Ltd.* (BN 352 FR/AE)) and Vice
President of Chudai Trading Co., Ltd.* (HZA&FA#%I & $), a subsidiary of
Chinatex. Mr. ZHAO graduated with a diploma in industrial accounting from
Renmin University of China in 1987. In December 2013, Mr. ZHAO obtained a
Senior Management Master's Degree of Business Administration awarded by
The University of Texas at Arlington in the United States of America (the “USA”).

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. LIU Xianfu

Aged 55, was appointed as an ED on 28 August 2018. Mr. LIU has over 26
years of experience in the textile industry. He joined Chinatex, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, in 1994 and has held positions such as the
Deputy Finance Section Chief of Chinatex Cotton Yarns and Fabrics Import
and Export Corporation, the Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Real Estate,
the Deputy General Manager of Finance Department of Chinatex, the General
Manager of Audit Department of Chinatex, the General Manager of Finance
Department of Chinatex, the General Manager of Chinatex Raw Materials
International Trading Corporation, and the Vice President of Chinatex. Mr.
LIU has served as the Chief Accountant of Chinatex since March 2017. Mr.
LIU graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economics (formerly
known as Anhui Finance and Trade College®) in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) in 1987 in professional accounting with a Bachelor’'s degree
of Economics. He graduated in finance and obtained a Master’'s degree in
Economics from Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences (formerly known as The
Research Institute for Fiscal Science) in the PRC in 1990 and an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from The University of Texas at
Arlington, USA in December 2010.

Mr. TAO Yongming
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 55, was appointed as an ED and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 28 August 2018. Mr. TAO joined China National Cereals, Oils
and Foodstuffs Corporation (‘COFCQO”), formerly known as China National
Cereals, Oils & Foodstuffs Import & Export Corporation, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, in 1987 and has held positions such as the
Officer and Deputy General Manager of Planning and Finance Department
of COFCO, the Executive Vice President of COFCO Capital Corporation, a
subsidiary of COFCO, the General Manager of Shandong Peanut Import and
Export Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of COFCO, the Deputy General Manager of Risk
Management Department of the Auditing & Supervision Department of COFCO,
the Deputy General Manager of Audit Management Department of Audit,
Legal and Risk Management Department of COFCO, the General Manager
of Discipline Inspection & Supervision Department of Chinatex (a controlling
shareholder of the Company). Mr. TAO has served as the General Manager of
Audit, Legal and Risk Management Department of Chinatex since May 2017.
Mr. TAO graduated from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in
Foreign Trade Accounting in the PRC in 1987.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Aged 52, was appointed as an ED on 28 August 2018. Mr. YAU is also
the chief operating officer of the Group and holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. YAU joined the Group in 1992 and has
over 26 years of experience in the textile industry with extensive experience
in operations and strategic planning. Mr. YAU is also a director of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited. Mr. YAU graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
1991 with a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology and subsequently obtained
a Master of Science degree in Textile Engineering from the University of Leeds
in England in 1992. He earned an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree and a Master of Science (MSc) degree in Finance from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2015 and 2019, respectively.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “NEDS”)
Dr. YEN Gordon

Non-executive Vice Chairman

Aged 51, has been a NED since 31 May 2013 and was further appointed as
the Non-executive Vice Chairman of the Board on 28 August 2018. Prior to
that, he was the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and an ED. He joined
the Group in 1999 and was then promoted to the role of ED in 2004 before
being re-designated as a NED. Dr. YEN is currently the founding managing
partner of Radiant Tech Ventures Limited, an innovation and technology venture
capital firm, and is registered as a responsible officer under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance for Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity. He also
serves as an independent non-executive director and a member of each of
the audit committee and the nomination committee as well as the chairman of
the sustainability committee of Impro Precision Industries Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Dr.
YEN is a member of the Henan Province Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of the PRC; Honorable Life-Chairman of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited; chairman of the Hong
Kong Business Angel Network; and a director of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Manufacturing
Engineering from Boston University, USA; a Master degree in Business
Administration from McGill University, Canada and a Doctorate in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr. SUN Fuji
Member of the Audit Committee

Aged 57, was appointed as a NED and a member of the Audit Committee
on 28 August 2018. Mr. SUN is a senior engineer. He has over 36 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. SUN joined Zhucheng Chinatex Sunrise
Textiles Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Zhucheng Cotton Spinning Factory) in
1984 and has held positions such as the Technician and the Deputy Officer
of Front Spinning Department, the Factory Director Assistant and the Deputy
Factory Director of Zhucheng Cotton Spinning Factory, the Deputy General
Manager of Zhucheng Textiles Corporation, and the General Manager of
Chinatex Jinwei Textiles Co., Ltd.* (“Chinatex Jinwei”) and the General Manager
of Chinatex Sunrise Textiles Co., Ltd. (“Chinatex Sunrise”). Mr. SUN has served
as the Deputy General Manager of Textile & Garment BU, a subsidiary of
Chinatex (a controlling shareholder of the Company), the General Manager of
Chinatex Jinwei and the General Manager of Chinatex Sunrise since May 2017.
Mr. SUN graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering from the Textile
Department of Cotton Manufacturing of Shandong Textiles Engineering Institute
in the PRC in 1984.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE
“INEDS”)

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 70, joined the Board in 1993 as an INED, and was then appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. NG is a practising accountant. He is also the non-executive
director of Wah Ha Realty Company Limited and an independent non-executive
director of Palace Banquet Holdings Limited, both being listed companies in
Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and a Licentiateship
in Accountancy from McGill University, Canada and a Diploma in Chinese
Law from the University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is a member of each
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered Professional
Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Society of Registered Financial Planners in
Hong Kong.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. YING Wei
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 54, was appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on 1 January
2015. Mr. YING holds a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from
the University of San Francisco and a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from
the Zhejiang Gongshang University (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of
Commerce) in the PRC. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. For the period from 1989 to 2007, Mr. YING
served as an ED and the Vice President of China Resources Textiles (Holdings)
Company Limited. Between 2007 and 2009, he served as the Vice President
of China Water Affairs Group Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. From 21
July 2008 to 30 July 2009, he held the position of an Executive Director and
the President of China City Infrastructure Group Ltd. (formerly known as China
Botanic Development Holdings Limited), a company listed in Hong Kong. From
28 December 2012 to 24 March 2014, he served as an INED of China Public
Procurement Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. YING is currently
an independent non-executive director of each of CHTC Fong'’s International
Company Limited and Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited, both being listed
companies in Hong Kong, and being a director of Giant Network Group Co.,
Ltd. (formerly known as Chongging New Century Cruise Co., Ltd.), a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. YING is also the Managing Partner of
CDH.
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Mr. William LAM
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 62, was appointed as an INED, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee on 9 May 2016. Mr. LAM is a solicitor
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the Supreme Court
of England and Wales, and a civil celebrant of marriages in Hong Kong. He
graduated from the University of Manchester, England in 1981 with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Electronics and Electrical Engineering. His major study
included computer design, power transmission and telecommunications.
He is also a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
(M.LE.E.E)) in USA. After obtaining his Bachelor's Degree, he studied laws
at the Manchester Polytechnic (now known as Manchester Metropolitan
University), England and the College of Law in Chester, England, respectively.
Mr. LAM returned to Hong Kong in 1984 to work in family business of Tai
Sun Company (@ member of The Hong Kong-Kowloon Yarn and Fabrics
Association), and Shing Fung Finance Company Limited, both founded by his
late father Mr. LAM Muk Kwong in 1958 and 1972, respectively. In 1992, Mr.
LAM furthered his studies in laws at the University of Hong Kong and obtained
a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) and was admitted as a solicitor
of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1994 and of the Supreme Court of
England and Wales in the following year. In 1999, Mr. LAM founded William
Lam and Company, Solicitors to start his own practice in law. Mr. LAM also
serves in many areas. He is an executive committee member of the Federation
of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, the founding president
of the University of Manchester Alumni Association of Hong Kong and general
committee member of Yau Yat Chuen Garden City Club Ltd. He was a
member of the InnoTech Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong from 18
January 2005 to 30 September 2020 and a co-opted member of the Chinese
Temples Committee from 2009 to 2015. Mr. LAM has also acted as the legal
advisor of various organisations, such as the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Textiles Limited, the Chamber of the Hong Kong Computer Industry, the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council, the Hong Kong WEEE Recycling
Association, the Hong Kong Society of Medical Professionals, the Hong Kong
Software Industry Association, the Public Surgeons United, the Government
Doctors’ Association and the Hong Kong New Youth Energy Think Tank.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the textile and garment businesses, including the production
and sale of knitted fabric and garments. Details of the principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group'’s financial performance for the Year and the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 79 to 172 of this annual report. No interim dividend was
declared for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The board of Directors (the
“Board”) has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK7.00
cents per share of the Company (the “Share”) in respect of the Year (2019: final
dividend of HK9.28 cents per share and special dividend of HK1.16 cents per
share) to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names
will appear on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 18 May
2021 and the retention of the remaining profit for the Year.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on Friday, 7 May 2021, it is
expected that the final dividend will be paid on or about Monday, 31 May 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the performance
for the Year and an indication of likely future development in the business of
the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”) of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found throughout
this annual report, in particular the Risk Management and Internal Control
section under the Corporate Governance Report and the Possible Risks and
Uncertainties section of this Directors’ Report. The Group did not have any
significant event after the Year and up to the date of this annual report. An
analysis using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
and Statistical Highlights and the MD&A. Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular, the Corporate Governance Report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and relationships
with the key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the Group
are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Policies and
Performance section in the Chairman’s Statement and the Stakeholders’
Engagement section in the MD&A of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Possible Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s possible risks and uncertainties range from raw material risk,
market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial risk.

Raw Material Risk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw materials,
in particular cotton yarns and any disruption in the supply or fluctuation in the
prices of such raw materials, which could materially and adversely affect the
Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Market Risk

The global financial markets have experienced volatility recently, which may
have a negative impact on the Group’s business operation. Affected by the
China-United States trade war, textile industry related products have appeared
in the list of tariffs imposed by both parties. Therefore, the latest trend of trade
negotiations will determine the extent of the impact of tariff policies on the
textile and garment industry. The financial uncertainty may affect the global
textile and garment industry, which in turn may affect the business of major
retail brands and garment manufacturers, which are the principal customers of
the Group.

Operational Risk

The Group’s fabric production facilities emit wastewater and other pollutants
and are subject to various environmental protection laws and regulations in
China and other countries where the Group’s production facilities are located.
Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with, environmental protection
laws or regulations may cause the Group to incur additional costs and
expenses.

In addition, if the production facilities of the Group experience any power,
steam or water shortages, the Group’s business and results of operations may
be harmed.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that a customer in a transaction may
default. The Group identifies and manages credit risk by defining the target
market segment, formulating appropriate credit policies, and carrying out credit
assessment and monitoring asset quality. The Group has established policies,
procedures, and rating systems to identify, measure, monitor, control and
report on credit risk. They are reviewed and enhanced on an ongoing basis
to cater for market changes, statutory requirements and best practices in risk
management processes.

Financial Risk

For financial risk, please refer to the Risk Management section under the MD&A
and note 39(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars
of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 73 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$135,777,000 to property, plant
and equipment, which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the Group’s
manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as
at 31 December 2020, calculated under Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), amounted to
HK$1,306,206,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,400,836,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. ZHAO Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIU Xianfu

Mr. TAO Yongming

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”)
Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. SUN Fuiji

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Note: According to an announcement of the Company dated 19 March 2021, the
appointement of Mr. ZHANG Zheng as an ED with effect from 1 April 2021.

According to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), Mr. LIU
Xianfu, Mr. TAO Yongming and Mr. SUN Fuji will retire and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Mr. ZHANG Zheng will be appointed as an ED with effect from 1 April 2021.
According to the Articles, Mr. ZHANG Zheng will retire and being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM had a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 53 to 58 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”), which were required to be: (a) notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO (the “Register”), or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules” and the “Model Code”, respectively), were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares:
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his spouse under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
(@) had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
(b) were recorded in the Register, or (c) had been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 20 January 2011 (the “2011
Scheme”).

The 2011 Scheme

The Company adopted the 2011 Scheme pursuant to a shareholders’
resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held on 20 January
2011 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the 2011 Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as defined in the
2011 Scheme) and for such other purposes as the Board may approve from
time to time.

The Participants of the 2011 Scheme include (i) any directors or any employees
(whether full-time or part-time) of the Company and its subsidiaries, associated
companies, jointly controlled entities and related companies from time to
time (the “FSH Group”); (i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-time)
of each member of the FSH Group; (i) any consultants, professional and
other advisers to each member of the FSH Group (including their employees
or executives or any persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed
for providing such services); and (iv) any chief executives or substantial
shareholders of the Company, provided that the Board may have absolute
discretion to determine whether or not one falls within the above categories.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2011 Scheme and the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) are in aggregate
equal to 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date,
i.e. 79,401,096 Shares. Under the 2011 Scheme, share options comprising
23,045,000 Shares and 26,100,000 Shares were granted on 18 August
2011 and 19 January 2018, respectively. The closing prices of the Shares
immediately before the dates of grant were HK$1.21 and HK$1.07 each,
respectively. Among those granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011,
share options comprising 1,980,000 Shares were exercised on 30 June
2015, and the share options comprising 21,065,000 Shares lapsed due to
non-exercise thereof or resignation of grantees. Among those granted on 19
January 2018, share options comprising 5,800,000 Shares lapsed during the
Year due to non-exercise during the predetermined exercisable period.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted pursuant to the 2011 Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to each Participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of share options in excess of the Individual Limit shall be subject
to Shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his close associates (or his
associates if such grantee is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
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In addition, share options granted to a substantial shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an INED or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue and
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at the date
of each grant, exceeding HK$5 million must be approved by Shareholders in
general meeting in advance.

The exercise price is determined by the Board at the date of grant and should
be the higher of (a) the average of the closing prices of each Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (b) the closing price of each
Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant. The amount payable on acceptance of the share option granted is
HK$1.00. Acceptance must be made within a period from the date of grant
to such date as the Board may determine and specify in the offer letter (both
dates inclusive). The Board is empowered to impose, at its discretion, any
minimum period that an option must be held at the time of granting any option.
The option period of the share option granted is determined by the Board at
the time of offering the grant and, in any event, shall not be longer than 10
years from the date of grant.

The 2011 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, after which period no further share option
will be granted. The 2011 Scheme expired on 19 January 2021.

As at 31 December 2020 and date of this annual report, there was no
outstanding share option under the 2011 Scheme.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options
granted under the 2011 Scheme during the Year:
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5HEIFR2021FE1 B 198 R -

B E2020F 123 1B A AFEHRH » 2011 FETE
TR A M RITHERIEIRE

TREBEART N EIBEHARANRE20115F5 8
ERLEREZEHER !

Cancelled/ Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
as at during during during 31 December
Grantees Date of Grant Exercise Price 1 January 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2020
120205 1220205
1A1H FR 128318
R RS 1M WK ATE FREEH FRETE  EBH/&X W KATE
Employees 19/01/2018 HK$1.10 5,800,000 - - (5,800,000) -
=] 110 &7
Total 5,800,000 - - (5,800,000) -
ey
Notes: Bist

1. The share option will be fully vested after 12 months from the date of grant and the
exercisable period of share option is from 19/01/2019 to 18/01/2020.

2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$1.07.

Other particulars and movements of the 2011 Scheme during the Year are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

1. BERERNELBEHES12EARE2HUE
B Kz i Be T EHAMR A1 19/01/2019F8 18 2
18/01/2020°

2. EERHAERIRMNOEHER.07ETe

FR20MEEINEMBER REH) > IR/l
B &M 5E34
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company)/entities had interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register of interests of
the substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO (the “Substantial Shareholders’ Register”).

Long positions in the Shares:

/|

FERRKREMATED

R2020F12831 8 RIEA AR HFEHF KHAE
BRI FEIBCRFMEEZETERERM (EERK
REM) £ FIAL (RATESEHERST
BAERRIN EBENRRMNAREERGS DES
ERRRES

REMNERER !

Name of Number of Approximate % of
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total  the Issued Shares
HILEET
TERFRE 13 e FERNEUE B RipEAL
GOFCO Corporation (‘COFCO”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 465,262,000 465,262,000 37.98
FiEEBEERAE (Tig)) corporations EERER (Notes 1 and 2)
EREEN R (hizt1k2)
Chinatex Corporation Limited Interest of controlled Corporate interest 465,262,000 465,262,000 37.98
(“Chinatex’) corporations HERER (Notes 1 and 2)
FEPHERERAR (R4  EREENER Wizt Rk2)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment Interest of a controlled Corporate interest 409,036,000 409,036,000 33.39
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Jinhui’) ~ corporation HERER (Note 1)
THRELREEEER EREEN R (Hizt1)
BARAR (8518
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment Beneficial owner Personal interest 409,036,000 409,036,000 33.39
Co., Ltd. (*Yieldfull’) EnEAA EVN 30
HHREREEEERAR
(rBeg))
Mr. SUN Weiting (“Mr. SUN’) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000
BEREE (MREE) corporations AEREG (Note 3) 211,966,000 17.30
EREEN R (Ha23)
Ms. CHEN Lingfen (‘Ms. CHEN”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000
B¥He LT (ML) corporations HERER (Note 3) 211,966,000 17.30
EREEN R (Ha23)
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Name of Number of Approximate % of
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total  the Issued Shares
HIEBET
TERERTE g1 EaEtE BERNHYE By BRIABERL
Huafu Holding Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
(‘Huafu Holding”) corporations HEER (Note 3)
EIRRBRAT R EENRR (Hz23)
(FEESHER)
Huafu Fashion Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
(‘Huafu Fashion”) corporations HEER (Note 3)
EIRHRNERRH R EERRR (Hz23)
(FEESZ B i)
Mr. HA Chung Fong Beneficial owner Personal interest 109,030,581 109,030,581 8.90
(“Mr. HA") BREAA BARR
EmERE (%4
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui (‘Ms. TANG")  Spouse’s interests Family interest 109,030,581 109,030,581 8.90
ijclrseqnnt (s kegun)) [T B (Note 4)
(Hizta)

*

Notes:

For identification purpose only

*EHEE

Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui. Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO. Therefore, each
of Jinhui, Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Yieldfull under the SFO.

As at 31 December 2020, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited (“Chinatex (H.K.)")
held 56,226,000 Shares as beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO.
Therefore, each of Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Chinatex (H.K.) under the SFO.

Hong Kong Tin Shing Trading Limited (“Tin Shing”) held 211,966,000 Shares as
beneficial owner. Tin Shing is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huafu HK Co. Limited
(“Huafu HK”). Huafu HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Huafu Import
and Export Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Huafu”) and Shenzhen Huafu is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huafu Fashion. Huafu Fashion is owned as to 34.27% by Huafu
Holding and Huafu Holding is owned as to 50% by each of Mr. SUN and Ms.
CHEN. Therefore, each of Huafu HK, Shenzhen Huafu, Huafu Fashion, Huafu
Holding, Mr. SUN and Ms. CHEN is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Tin Shing under the SFO.

Ms. TANG, spouse of Mr. HA, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Mr.
HA under the SFO.

1.

REBEREFRPERY BERREZL2EWE
NEIRERATHZE2EWB AR M4 8
RHTRNEEMBAE ALt iR ik H
BEBERRIEEEREMFTRMD 2 Bm o

RIBE SRS KM > 1220205128310 >
i (ER) ERERQRE (Th4s (FH) ) FAE
56,226,0008% &5 (fEABRHEAN) H4 (F
) APz 2EWBAT MP4pATE>
2EWBAB AL PR FIES BWIRIE
HEESA (BB FERmnZER-

EAXMEZBERAR (TR BAE
211,966,0000% 8818 (fEABREB AN o KA
EBEZHRAD ((BEBEZ)) 22BN B
NE - EBAEZAFYHEZEHOBRAD
(CRINZER) 22 BB AE MFEINIEZS
EIRHZEEWNBAG EZREHEFE
BRIFE34.27 %R - T HE F IR A 1A 5 4 KR
DA EL0%ER - AL BIFEHE RS
&F) > EREZ REZ FEZEFE FEZET
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BRAR BOME RS
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of
the Company) who/entities which had any interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares, which were recorded in the Substantial
Shareholders’ Register.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and no such arrangements subsisted as at 31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office. Such provision was
in force during the course of the Year and remained in force as of the date of
this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ Report below and note 44 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company, or its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2020 or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Year or during the period from 1 January 2021 to
the date of this Directors’ Report are available on the Company’s website at
www.fshl.com.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, there
was no contract of significance (whether for the provision of services to the
Group or not) in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules)
(the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and by reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
has issued a letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the Continuing
Connected Transactions entered into during the Year is set out in note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s independent auditor has confirmed that all of the Continuing
Connected Transactions (a) had been approved by the Board; (b) were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where applicable; (c) had
been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
the transactions; and (d) had not exceeded the respective cap amounts in
respect of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions.

The INEDs have also reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions and
confirmed that the same had been entered into by the Group:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group

than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Save for the transactions disclosed in note 44(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the related party transactions disclosed in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted a one-off connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements for all the one-off
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may
be) in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company had not redeemed its listed securities, nor did
the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all the INEDs meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. The remuneration committee
of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) will review and approve the
remuneration policy to be recommended to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of each of the Directors is reviewed and recommended
by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for approval, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. None of the Directors or executives, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is involved in dealing with his own
remuneration.

The Company has adopted the 2011 Scheme as an incentive to the Directors
and eligible employees, details of which are set out in the “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” section above and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy, provided the Group is profitable and without
affecting the normal operations of the Group, the Company may consider to
declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia: () the general financial condition of the Group; (i) capital
and debt level of the Group; (iii) future cash requirements and availability for
business operations, business strategies and future development needs; (iv)
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders; (v) the general market conditions; (vi) the interests of the Shareholders;
and (vii) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business (apart from the Group’s
business) which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information of
the Directors since the date of the 2020 interim report of the Company required
to be disclosed in this annual report are as follows:

Dr. YEN Gordon was appointed as the chairman of the sustainability committee
of Impro Precision Industries Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1286), with effect from 3 July 2020.

Mr. William LAM was appointed as a general committee member of Yau Yat
Chuen Garden City Club Ltd. with effect from 1 November 2020, and resigned
as a member of the InnoTech Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong with
effect from 30 September 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the EDs’ service contracts) concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers was less than 30% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest
suppliers during the Year. One of the Shareholders (Huafu Holding) and its close
associates (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more than
5% of the number of issued Shares) had beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and/or five largest suppliers during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$528,334 (2019: HK$445,424).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 35 to 52 of this annual
report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as the share options granted, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares throughout the Year and the
period thereafter up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management.
The Audit Committee presently comprises one NED and two INEDs, and one of
the INEDs acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the audited consolidated final results as well as the systems of
internal control and risk management of the Group for the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a resolution
will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM for the Shareholders’ consideration
and approval to re-appoint BDO Limited as the independent auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHAO Yao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
19 March 2021
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

FR20206 128310 ZEEREYEAEFHEUT ¢

REYFFS

The Group’s
Location Lease Use effective interest
bt HEFH R& FEBEBENED
Unit A2 on 5/F,, & Unit A1 on 7/F, Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%
Eastern Sea Industrial Building, AR E SEERMAE
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BB R EEIBZE S 1K29-395%
REBITHEKE
SIBA2E RTIBA1TE
Office Units A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08-10 and 12, Medium-term land Office 100%
Block A, United Plaza, Futian District, use rights WAZE
Shenzhen, the PRC FREA - 3t 55 PR A
FR B 2R 311 T 43 (& 0 R B B 2 R e A2 B R
& BIBARIEIE
A3801, 083, 05, 06, 08 10F112
Factory Nos. 5, 9 and 11 Medium-term land Factory and office 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights BB AE
Xiangshan Industry Zone, PR A o 3 f5F AR R
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
RIS S EMmR LG 2 EE F 2 F66-685%
F&& A5, K11k =
Portion of Dormitory No. 3, Medium-term land Dormitory 55.5%
Factory Nos. 3 (Phase 1), 5, 6, 9 and 11, use rights B/E
Factory Nos. 3 (Phase 2), 1, 2, 12 and 13 FRHA £ st {5 A A
and portion of bare land,
No 66-68, Danxia Road,
Xiangshan Industry Zone,
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
BT S 2R R LG = EE FH 2 FK66-685%
& AR AES -BmEANI (1H7) 56 9%
115805 ~ k@ A3 (28A) ~ 1~ 2~ 12135 =
AT & 3 22 31
A pier located at west port dike of Baiqu Port, Medium-term land Pier 100%
near No. 9 Xiaoshan Road, High-tech Zone, use rights b5EE
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the PRC R EA - 3t {55 AR A
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TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 79 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment of inventories
Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

A degree of substandard products is typically produced during the normal
course of the Group’s production process. Moreover, inventories of the Group
will become aged and/or obsolete in the absence or cancellation of orders. The
Group maintains a sophisticated information technology system to keep track
of the aging and utilisation of inventories and materials regarded as wastage for
the estimation of net realisable value.

Based on the utilisation of inventories which became wastage and long-aged,
the Group made an accumulated provision of HK$222,173,900 as at year end
by reference to estimated net realisable value of inventories.

We identified the impairment of inventories as a key audit matter because the
estimates of net realisable value and how materials are regarded as wastage on
which this impairment entailed a significant degree of management judgement.

Our response:

We performed audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of inventories which included:

— evaluating the methodology and key assumptions adopted by
management in estimating the net realisable value and discussing them
with management;

— challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

—  checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input data
used by management in capturing the aging and utilisation of inventories
and estimate the net realisable value of those inventories; and

—  testing controls over recording impairment of inventories.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

B ZEEMRE (8

REEZEE ()
FEHE
HB BB REN 220

EEERAREEBRETBRREEEE —K
RENASEGREM- I FESTENEH
B BEENTFESERRER SE
Fo EEERARENEARRRS EUE
REERBEEEBREYIME ZRERERB
MU EE RIS E

REBERREFZENEARABR SE£EERN
FEAERES2EEENGI ISR FEEY
Rt 222,173,9005 7T ©

ARBEMITRET S REANRERER I
T B 4 4 A B 4 B R (B 1 5 AR
HARREAERMEE SREBEHEA
) o

KRNI THIEE -

AT EEENEERENLETHE
ZRFEE

EREERRETTELEAEEEETH

1A .
off »

- REBEAZBETHEBRITENER B
RERBRRNGEN;

- HEREEEERFEFERERERE
o UKk Et R E T AR R SRR ER P
ERBA BB ERME AR &

- AEHEREFERENEE-

FHRANEME R

EFANHMENES - HMEHNERE &2
BIFERAAEER A BRGEGMBRERE
TZEED T RLIE 3 BRI BIET 3R & o

AZBMITHEGYHFRENERLNRER
thER AREMT TSR EMENERE
I A LR A 5 o

75



76

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Bz HEmERE (8

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information. We are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Bz HEmERE (8

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah

Practising Certificate Number P05325

Hong Kong, 19 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
m R H it 2 ER R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #;ZE2020F12H31H IEFE

2020 2019
Notes Kzt HK$'000 F#;r  HK$'000 F&ET
Revenue =E L 6 4,943,230 6,605,655
Cost of sales fi=N==I DN (4,332,098) (5,844,703)
Gross profit EF 611,132 760,952
Other revenue HA A 69,688 63,911
Other gains and losses H il am  E518 (27,313) (21,448)
Distribution and selling expenses D MIHEER (107,256) (132,514)
Administrative expenses THER (406,800) (424,871)
Finance costs L E AL A 7 (19,562) (37,047)
Share of profit of an associate FEE—REEE AT 2B F 18 2,256 636
Profit before income tax expense PREAIEMZHATEF 122,145 209,619
Income tax expense FrigfiR sz 8 (20,554) (42,805)
Profit for the year EFERN 9 101,591 166,814
Profit for the year attributable to: BB EERA
Owners of the Company KRBEB A 85,706 141,089
Non-controlling interests JEVER R = 15,885 25,725
101,591 166,814
HK cents #l HK cents 1l
Earnings per share SREF
- Basic —EK 12 7.0 11.6
— Diluted —#E 12 7.0 11.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

meEmRHEMEERER (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #;ZE2020%12831H IEFE

2020 2019
HK$000 F#&7x  HK$000 FET
Profit for the year EEERR 101,591 166,814
Other comprehensive Httz2mu =
income, net of tax (430 FRR1E)
Item that may be reclassified HETEEHLEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmZIEE !
Exchange differences arising on MEBNEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations bEE 7 A= 5 21,035 (9,319)
Other comprehensive income EEEHM2ERE
for the year 21,035 (9,319)
Total comprehensive income EEEZEKREEE
for the year 122,626 157,495
Total comprehensive income EheFEE2EmREEE !
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A 103,004 135,237
Non-controlling interests JEIE R M 19,622 22 258
122,626 157,495
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBIRRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 7£2020412H31H

At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H R12831H

2020 2019

Notes [z HK$'000 F#7T  HK$'000 FET

Non-current assets JERBEE
Investment properties LEYE 13 72,524 51,545
Property, plant and equipment ME BB RRE 14 1,341,494 1,435,486
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 217,398 244,479
Other intangible assets Hhm&E 17 9,045 12,060
Deposit paid for purchase BB MR EN
of plant and equipment Bffiee 12,506 17,879
Interest in an associate R—EBE A2 m 18 22,793 20,537
Deferred tax assets IEIEMIBEE E 19 71,062 53,819
1,746,822 1,835,805
Current assets MBEE
Inventories 78 20 1,218,169 1,255,906
Trade and bills receivables EERERRIHIE 21 1,027,493 1,129,994
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIEBE S &
other receivables HihE W RIa 22 166,967 127,564
Tax recoverable AUl I8 3,342 2,223
Restricted bank deposits ZPREIRITER 23 7,351 8,055
Short-term bank deposits ZHAIRITIE 24 229,313 168,175
Bank balances and cash IRITH R IR E 24 1,026,254 769,178
3,678,889 3,461,095
Current liabilities mEhaE
Trade and bills payables EEREBEMRIE 25 964,731 823,798
Other payables and accruals EMEHIE L
Est&EA 26 280,312 266,863
Contract liabilities s5498%5 27 22,014 15,315
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaE—NEID 28 31,399 31,053
Amounts due to non-controlling RIEFERG G B IR
shareholders 29 64,525 80,100
Amount due to an associate N —R SN T I8 29 5,861 7,179
Deferred income — current portion IEIEIN A —RENE D 30 3,701 1,622
Tax payable FEATIRIE 17,487 37,800
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE——FERNEH 31 229,606 67,923
1,619,636 1,331,653
Net current assets REEEFE 2,059,253 2,129,442

Total assets less current liabilities BEEHERTHERE 3,806,075 3,965,247
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

REMBRRR (@

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 7£2020412H31H

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H 128318
2020 2019
Notes [z HK$'000 F#7T  HK$'000 FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income — non-current portion IRIEW A —IFEREBIZB 30 66,311 55,745
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE——FRIH 31 7,142 154,459
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEafE-IERSILD 28 146,037 158,783
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIBEE 19 6,796 11,204
226,286 380,191
Net assets BERE 3,579,789 3,585,056
Capital and reserves BEXRKEE
Share capital &N 32 889,810 889,810
Reserves 5 2,504,762 2,529,651
Equity attributable to owners NABIER ANEIERER
of the Company 3,394,572 3,419,461
Non-controlling interests JEER S 33 185,217 165,595
Total equity EmiEE 3,579,789 3,585,056

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 172 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2021 and are

signed on its behalf by:

ZHAO Yao
R
Director

EF

YAU Hang Tat, Andrew

ER{EE
Director

EF

BIOEIT2BENRE B HRFZEN2021543819
FHESFSBBRIZEER THTHEEMR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #;ZE2020F12H31H IEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRTEE NESS

Share Non-
Share Translation options  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total interests equity

kRt ERGEE BRERE AEHRE RERAY BE FERED  EnE
HK$000 — HKSD00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSU0OD  HKSUOO  HKSDOO  HKS000
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEn

(note)
(Hzz)
At 1 January 2019 as originally presented 1R2019E181H  RAL25] 865716 (47,400) 2,597 89,382 2522505 3432800 168445 3,601,245
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BREREBYBRE
Q165 - 28 - - (24407) (24,379 (1) (24,390)
Restated balance at 1 January 2019 R201951818Z
FER 865,716 (47,372) 2,597 89,382 2498098 3408421 168434 3576855
Exchange differences arising on BWEBNEREL L
tranglation of foreign operations EREE - (5,852) - - - (5,852) (3,467) (9,319)
Profit for the year REERR - - - - 141,089 141,089 25,725 166,814
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2ERFAE - (5,852) = - 141089 135237 20258 157,495

e AL ot g

Equity-settled share-based payments MR #E

MR AERZ AR - - 133 - - 133 - 183

Exercise of share option R e 24,094 - (2,094) - - 22,000 - 22,000
Dividend recognised as distribution BREIADRZKE - - - - (146,330)  (146,330)  (25097)  (171.427)
Transfer from retained earnings HAGRABRE AT HE

to statutory reserves ‘ - - - 10,736 (10,736) - - -
Transfer from share options reserve HEREREREE

to retained earnings EER - - (29) - 29 - - -
At 31 December 2019 120195128318 889,810 (53,224) 607 100,118 2,482,150 3,419,461 165,695 3,585,056
Exchange differences arising on BEBNERESE Y

translation of foreign operations BRER - 17,298 - - - 17,298 3,737 21,035
Profit for the year =EERT - - - - 85,706 85,706 15885 101,591
Total comprehensive income for the year REEZEWHAE - 17,298 - - 85706 103,004 19,622 122,626
Dividend recognised as distribution BREIADRZRE - - - - (127,893 (127,893) - (127,893
Transfer from retained earnings HRERNBREATRE

to statutory reserves - - - 5,182 (5,182) - - -
Transfer from share options reserve HEREEEREE

to retained earnings EER - - (607) - 607 - - -

At 31 December 2020 R2020E12A31H 889,810 (35,926) - 105300 2435388 3,394572 185217 3,579,789
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Note:In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of

China (the “PRC”) and Articles of Association of the company incorporated in
the PRC now comprising the Group, i.e. the PRC Operational Entity, it is required
to appropriate 10% of the annual net profits of the PRC Operational Entity, after
offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined under the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory reserve fund before distributing any net profit. When
the balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital
of the PRC Operational Entity, any further appropriation is at the discretion of
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses,
if any, and may be capitalised as capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau Special
Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered under private limited liability
company by quotas in Macau are required to transfer part of their profits of each
accounting period of not less than 25% to statutory reserves, until the amount
reaches half of the respective share capital.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
GAEmEEE (@

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #;ZE2020%12831H IEFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mARERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #;ZE2020F12H31H IEFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING CSEBEBFRENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax expense PRETEMZ KA &R A 122,145 209,619
Adjustments for: THEE
Amortisation of deferred income IEIEUT A 2 3 (1,643) (1,622)
Amortisation of other intangible assets B s E 2 i 3,015 3,015
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19t8RAFE & = (2,082) =
Depreciation of investment properties KEMEZITE 3,735 3,544
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 30,527 29,945
Depreciation and impairment of property, M2 R R B 2 ITE A
plant and equipment 204,727 233,519
Equity-settled share-based payments MERGEEURMDAERZ M - 133
Finance costs AR Al AN 19,562 37,047
Interest income FEWA (7,574) (10,058)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE MiHmE WS RREZ
plant and equipment 518 11,286 14,841
Provision for impairment loss recognised EEKRERBRREWFIEZREEK
on trade and bills receivables, net BEERRE 13,966 6,079
Share of profit of an associate EL—E#E AR 2 BH (2,256) (636)
Written-off of other receivables i B FE W R 1B - 11
Operating profit before working capital EEETEHFIZEERY
changes 395,408 525,437
Decrease in inventories FEZRLD 42,862 219,780
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B REREWTIEZ H LD 120,120 89,364
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FENRIE e R EMERRIEZ
deposits and other receivables (g (39,043) 52,110
Increase in trade and bills payables EEIRE VAN NSyl 112,585 63,148
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and HtEI B ETER
accruals & GRlz 13,740 (33,324)
Increase in contract liabilities HHaEZEm 6,253 2,519
(Decrease)/increase in amount R—REBEABRIBL
due to an associate CRIZY) /100 (1,318) 2,910
Increase in deferred income RIEW A Z 320 14,288 -
Cash generated from operations EEMSZRE 664,895 921,944
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refund (Bf) RESEFER (21,429) 376
Overseas tax paid BEEIMRIE (42,163) (42,729
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZiEIEBFBNREFEE 601,303 879,591
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

RERERER @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #;ZE2020%12831H IEFE

2020 2019
Notes Hiz# HK$000 F#&7x  HK$000 FET
NET CASH FROM OPERATING SEEBMENREFE
ACTIVITIES 601,303 879,591
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KREEAMSENHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B UWF 2 7,057 9,809
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE 1 233 RREBFTS
plant and equipment I8 4,838 1,409
Deposit paid for purchase of plant EERINKRENENEE
and equipment - (17,879)
Purchase of property, plant and EEYE HBRRE
equipment 14 (130,404) (134,619)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits ZIRBIIRTTERUR LD 704 5,926
Placement in short-term bank FERIPBA=ZEAU LN
deposits with original maturity FRHARITTERR
over three months (27,433) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING KREEEMANRERE
ACTIVITIES (145,238) (135,354)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEEMENRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised MEEZIRITTEE 40 555,833 1,119,755
Proceeds from exercise of share options {7188 IR #EFr 1S =18 - 22,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTEE 40 (541,961) (1,696,117)
Repayment of principal portion BEHMEERZEAEED
of the lease liabilities 40 (23,026) (16,546)
Repayment of interest portion of the BEREaEZMNELLD
lease liabilities 40 (8,930) (10,020)
Repayment of amount due to BERIEERERRIE
non-controlling shareholders 40 (15,575) -
Interest paid BF 2 40 (9,984) (27,924)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BENREFIEERRKE
shareholders - (25,097)
Dividends paid BKRE (127,893) (146,330)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEEEFANREFEE
ACTIVITIES (171,536) (780,279)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
REHERER (@

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #;ZE2020F12H31H IEFE

2020 2019
HK$°000 T %71 HK$'000 F &1

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

HERERREEEN
wm, G 3E 284,529 (36,042)

REFERBRBNRER

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ERREIER 937,353 975,666
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE EXEHHEERK

CHANGES ON CASH AND ERIESERNTE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,252 2,271)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MREFEEARERHNRER

AT THE END OF THE YEAR ERREIER 1,228,134 937,353
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RE&EEEFERELEBEREEN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: pAR I
Short-term bank deposits FEERIRTTIERR 229,313 168,175
Bank balances and cash RITEGRAIRS 1,026,254 769,178
Cash and cash equivalents in the REMBRARANRER

consolidated statement of ZRIFEEB

financial position 1,255,567 937,353

Less: Short-term bank deposits with
original maturity over three months

BRI =ZERMU LN
OHRIRTTERR (27,433) -

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

elReEREaRkNNIRE R
=EIELIEE 1,228,134 937,353
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M ERAR M EE

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to
the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The directors consider its immediate parent is Chinatex Yieldfull Investments
Co., Ltd. and ultimate parent is COFCO Corporation, a state-owned enterprise
under the direct supervision and administration of, and is beneficially owned
by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council of the PRC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material impact on the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior period. The Group has
not early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period except for the amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions. Impact on the application of this amended HKFRS
is summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient to lessees in
accounting for rent concessions arising as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
by including an additional practical expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities
to elect not to account for rent concessions as modifications. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following criteria are satisfied:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be accounted for in
accordance with this practical expedient, which means the lessee does
not need to assess whether the rent concession meets the definition of
lease modification. Lessees shall apply other requirements of HKFRS 16 in
accounting for the rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications would have resulted
in the Group remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised consideration
using a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change in the lease liability
recorded against the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical expedient,
the Group is not required to determine a revised discount rate and the effect of
the change in the lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendment and apply the practical
expedient for all rent concessions that meet the criteria. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, the Group has applied the amendment retrospectively,
and has not restated prior period figure. As the rent concessions have arisen
during the current financial period, there is no retrospective adjustment to
opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2020 on initial application of
the amendment.
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A MBRERMEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective

The following amendments to HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply
these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause*

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?
Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2'

Amendment to HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments?

Amendment to illustrative examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, Leases?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

s Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

5 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or contribution of assets
occurring in annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current is based on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period, specify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting
period. The amendments also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the interpretation to align
with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and does not
change the existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments and revision in the future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, are recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments will likely have an impact on the Group’s accounting policies
in respect of the construction of assets, as certain proceeds of selling items
produced whilst bringing assets under construction are currently deducted
from the cost of the asset.
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31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfiling” a contract comprises the
‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g. direct labour and
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments will likely have an impact on the Group’s accounting policies
in respect of the determination of when contracts are onerous, and the
measurement of provision for onerous contracts recognised.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within
the scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at
the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a
levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21, Levies, the
acquirer applies HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition
date. The amendments also add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction with an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, any gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the remeasurement of
retained interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
amendments may have an impact on the consolidated financial statements in
future periods should such transaction arise.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting when
a company replaces the old interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform (the
“Reform”). The amendments complement those issued in November 2019 and
relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not have to
derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments for changes
required by the Reform, but will instead update the effective interest rate to
reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge accounting
in which an entity will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; and (c) disclosures in which an entity will be required
to disclose information about new risks arising from the Reform and how it
manages the transition to alternative benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle, Amendment to
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

The annual improvements amend a number of standards, including HKFRS 9,
Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received between the entity and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on
other’s behalf are included.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle, Amendment to
illustrative examples accompanying HKFRS 16, Leases

The annual improvements amend a number of standards, including HKFRS
16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise
because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the acquisition
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value.
The Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@) Business combination and basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise control.
The Company controls an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Associates (continued)

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred, they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged so
as to write off the cost of investment properties net of expected residual value
over the estimated useful live using straight-line method. The useful life, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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A MBRERMEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and
freehold land) are depreciated so as to write off their cost or valuation net of
expected residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are
as follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 20 — 50 years or period of the
lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 — 10 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 3 /s -5 years

Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate asset
category when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Leasing
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist
for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value
assets and leases for which at the commencement date have a lease term of
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would comprise:

(i)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
leasehold land and buildings held for own use are carried at cost model.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings which are held for own
use under HKAS 16 and are carried at cost model. Other than the above right-
of-use assets, the Group also has leased a number of properties under tenancy
agreements which the Group exercises its judgement and determines that it is
a separate class of assets apart from the leasehold land and buildings which is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use assets arising from the properties
under tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

4. FEGHEK @)
() #HE
FEFEBAAN

PREMENARMBRIRRNESCAERE
EEKRBEEE HEHREZT]HERE
BERB)BRAEEZHER H()VEEEE
RBEEZHEETENM-AEEBEET
MEBEEENEERRRALBHIR12EH
ZHERIAERAREEREBEARG BZF
HERBZEAEMRERBEHNNRER LS
85 o

EHESE
ERREERIZ M AR L EE !

) MERGBZVIHAESR (RTXREE
BREARZGSER) ;

() RESBABMRZ AL EREELR
HEAE K S ESE ;

(i) ABAEEZEANTEZRE ; &

(v) AEBEARIFERREREREE N REER
BRI AR RE 2 R FEEZ
et A BRIFZEMATREEFTEM
L

AEBBRARABRAGFEEREEE - REFEN
KRN AEBEZNA B ERRSHTERER
BMERKGIECAREE UREMAEZAE
AEHERRETAB B KRFEEE
RARFERZ EAREERRARIIR

AEEREEEGSHENFIGRRFIFERZ
HE It REF AR WM AERTE R L
MEREEEN AEETREBEAEHEZEE
ZEYFE FEERHETHANREEARS
BRRFFERAEL AT S —EES
BleEHIL - HEBRETNEEEZEREEE
TH LT EE ARSI ME

2020 E% 99



100

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments:

(i)  fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

(i) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

(i) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees;

(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and

(v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability
by:

(i)  increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for
example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a
rate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-
use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted
to zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor,
if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for
an amount commensurate with the standalone price for the additional rights-
of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all
other cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional assets being
leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on
the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same
amount. With the exception to which the practical expedient for COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions applies (see note 2(a)), if the renegotiation results
in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease
liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any difference recognised in profit or
loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term,
with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a number of tenants.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that was not part
of the original terms and conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as

follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised in

profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
(i) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note 4(m)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount; however,
the carrying amount should not be increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have resulted had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
immediately.

(i) Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade and bills
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other financial assets of the Group, the ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 60 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (2)
the financial asset is more than 1 year past due.

4. FEGHEER (B

() E=WMIR @

(i) ZTHEEZHEREL

RE TS XK F R WGRIE « EthEURIR
RBBHAAS ENEREERDARESS
B (EHEERER) BiEkE RHEEERE
BUTHAR—BEEESE ((1)12EBNRAE
EiEE  EARNREEHR12E8 AR ERE
EERNSHERNTRREERE  RQERA
FEHRESEE  WhHRERT AR EHRM
BrfEHENSESHEENRREEEE G5t
BHGEEBRERMEENRRMBATERR
HEERBNRRSIHE-

RHREEGERESEEBRENMRMEMSLS E
BEBEENEAEEREBESOBRHNMEGNR
TRERAEREBRHPWNNREREREZMHE
WERABE - RERHARRUBLEERAER
FRBAI

FEBBERETAVHREENFIRMBIE X
MEtBE X AZEERUGRIENGBRE® LB
REBEFRAEREEBEAERAEGHERE-
FERCRURBAERBEEEHERER
BEREHER TIZEHFARFENREIEER

REERBICBIRIE T URE

MAEEHEMEMEEMS HREEHE
TSLL2EREREEEERSEE A BFE
JEL Bz B B 4A LR KIS 18 A0 B > B LU PR
TRIEEHEEREE

EEETMEEZEFERRBVNTIRIRES
RIBE MR A RMEEHEER  AEET
ZEBEAAERANTHBEHNANEZ IR AER
ZHERAREN LEERBEEAEERZBE
KBEAEMNEEFGFHZEERETERK
DT LB FERTREMEE R o

FEERR HEMEEANBER  HiEE
Bk B R IRLE A0

FEERR/ETMEENR TIERTREER
B (VERAPNKAEEAEBEEERERN
178 (BIg0 : SIRIEI) WFH) BWBERTEE
EEXHEXANEHEERE  WQRTHEER
HAEBB1E o



FEEEE(EE)HRAS  20206EFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset. Interest income on non credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

(iij) Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose for which

the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders/an associate and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition
in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash
which are not restricted as to use.

(k) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets.

() Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(m) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exist or may have decreased:

e  investment properties;

° property, plant and equipment;
*  right-of-use assets;

e  other intangible assets; and

e interest in an associate.
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FEEEE(EE)HRAS  20206EFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets) (continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods
or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the goods or services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15.

(i) Production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments

Customers obtain control of the products when the goods are delivered to and
have been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one performance obligation.
Invoices are usually payable within 60 days.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from the sale of product
provides customers a right of return (a right to exchange another product).
These rights of return do not allow the returned goods to be refund in
cash. The right of return gives rise to variable consideration. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until the
associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application of the
constraint on variable consideration increases the amount of revenue that will
be deferred.

(i) Other revenue
Rental income under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange
for goods that the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS
9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue before
being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set
out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 4(i)(ii) and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

(p) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time to
be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

(g) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted for
items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes and is

calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

4. FEGEBER (B
(o) BMEERAEME

BNEEEAERARBREERERFANEGY
T 1) AR B 7 AR F BB RVER ATV IREBE
BUBREENBOGFETRETE - BHM
= BB A ERH B EFFEF] - B
XA ZABEREERE RN EEIH-

BNERERAEENAEEEEERT A REN
HE AN ESER MEOREREBREY
BEE-

GREERTERRESHPTEBIRFRME
BARGERIRAEREBRARRER GHNEE
MR M SE4() () P BBV R ET (A TR RIE B 18
7 R R AR AR U ERAC (B s 587 0 4R 72 P LR
Igo

GHEBERAEERDERBANER AR
ERREY o i B AERE AR A EE
RFWERAE TEEDBENER-NEFER
IR & SR FERY A YRR ©

p) EERSTEFESE

W REREEREREE AIRERERH
ERHEBRERRAMHHENEE) BEEEEN
BERABFEER  (FRARFEEMAH —E
NeoRFEERATXHNBEEEHRRRERN
BRISPIRA REAENBER TR -FIA
HfE G AT HEE BB ERAES

() FRISHR
RFEMSHERERFERBRELERIE

REERANRFIREBZ AR AER 5
PRS0 & BRI SR AT 17 2 16 B (F 138
% RREBRDAGAER L EEmNRE
L

2020FF#® 109



110

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

(r) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iij) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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A MBRERMEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be credited to share capital. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

(u) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group
if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in
(a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)() has significant influence over the entity

or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides

key management personnel services to the Group or the Group’s

parent.

(viil)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product or service output of the
asset expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are difference from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade receivables, using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date. The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL model
is measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (continued)

The economic downturn and uncertainties that have arisen as a result of
COVID-19 pandemic have made these estimates more judgemental, which
the Group has taken into account in its determination of applicable ECLs
attributable to trade receivable arising from sales to customers on credit term,
including the incorporation of forward-looking information to supplement
historical credit loss rate. Further information on the impairment assessment on
trade receivables is provided in note 39(b).

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group
regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving and
obsolete merchandise. The Group makes allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete items through management’s estimation of the net realisable value
for such obsolete and slow-moving items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions, including the consideration of potential
impacts on the subsequent sales orders and demand of its products resulting
from the COVID-19 pandemic. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the Group
estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for inventories.
If the market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower than its carrying
amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), i.e. the chief operating
decision maker, regularly reviews the operating results and financial information
based on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including
Hong Kong (place of domicile of the Group), the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe and Others, i.e.
representing other geographical locations mainly Bangladesh, Vietnam,
Singapore and Macau. All of these geographical areas are operating segments

except “Others” which is an aggregation of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by

reportable segments for the year.

ARG AT ERARYEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

6. EXBEROSEEN

ARBEFRE ((E59) EEZEERRE)
RIBZ B PR7E 3 & 1 [B By 5 i B & BB AS
EXERVBER 0FREE (FEEEM)
hEARHAMER (ThE)) ~8E REHE
B =N BUN R EMih& (B s H fhithisg {i
B T B2 R RN 87  #NRRRPT) o Fr
EZEHEUERAEENE MM Hit & Al
PR aZEE DR

UTHRTEERRFERERERHEERT
MR pIARIZ ] R D RE D 2 E X R AN
R EEFREZ DHfT

2020 20205 Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others Segmenttotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
9 A Al &H B2+ S| B HftiE P H# ke
HK$ 000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$'000
AT T T AT 7T T T AT A7 T T
Revenue H28
External sales HiHE 608,561 1,602,187 352,448 398,678 787,851 205977 57,174 980,354 4,943,230 - 4,943,230
Intersegment sales ot AEmEE ) 258175 1,216,163 . = 200970 = . SI461 4056380  (4056309) -
Total segment revenue DESEBNE 3,190,356 2,818,350 352,448 398,678 938,821 205,977 57,174 1,037,815 8,999,619 (4,056,389) 4,943,230
Results ES
Segment prof PERA 58,644 175,986 37,969 42,891 65,244 7810 6,163 103,929 498,696
Interest income FEMA 1,574
Unallocated income FAEMA 1,635
Depreciation, amortisation TEBRRAERL
and impairment loss (211,477)
Other unallocated expenses EthxAELH (156,977)
Finance costs HERK (19,562)
Share of proft of an associate Ef—EREND 2 ER 2,256
Proft before income tax expense  BRFR/SRE HEIRA| 122,145
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. EXERISEEN (B

2019 195 Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others ~ Segmentfotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
BB HE a8 &8 LETS eS| & EftiE HEBE B ga
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
Fér T FET FEr FiEr T FET Fér FEr FET FET
Revenue g8
External sales HiMHE 1,024,837 1,820,310 648,284 696,241 874,650 407,693 56,220 1,077,420 6,605,655 - 6,605,655
Inter-segment sales /ot DEBHE (i) 3,835,433 1,877,950 - - 290,807 - - 127471 6,131,451 (6,131,451) =
Total segment revenue PEEEBUE 4,860,270 3,698,260 648,284 696,241 1,165,547 407,693 56,220 1,204,591 12,737,106 (6,131,451) 6,605,655
Results E
Segment proft PERF 94,956 201,706 66,209 71,100 84,885 21,913 5741 109,419 665,929
Interest income HEWA 10,088
Unallocated income FARMA 2,086
Depreciation, amortisation nE BHERAGERE
and impairment loss (240,078)
Other nallocated expenses LS (181914)
Finance costs HERE (37,047)
Share of proft of an associate - RHENE 2B 636
Proft before income tax expense  RFTERS HAIRA 209,619

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at price by reference to the prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central administration
costs and other expenses (including non-production related employee benefits
expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.), depreciation and
amortisation of investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets, interest income, impairment loss and loss on disposal/
written-off of property, plant and equipment, finance costs, share of profit of
an associate, etc. This is the measure reported to the Board for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis on segment
assets and liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the Board.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit:

Hong Kong  The PRC Taiwan
&R H aE
HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET 77 FE7

ir e TS IRRMTEE (B
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6. SEHRDSEEN B
HthaER

EEETENHEBN £

Korea  Sri Lanka America Europe Others Consolidated
BE HEEF =M Bl HfttE &8

HK$000 — HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HK8000  HK$000
TET THET THET THAT TAT THAT

2020 2020F
Impairment loss (reversed)/ EENEREWTIEZ

recognised on trade and REBL @R /

bills receivables, net BEE 3,868 6,794 643 124 2,187 (18) 7 361 13,966
2019 2019
Impairment loss (reversed)/ SEREREWTEZ

recognised on trade and REBRX @)/

bills receivables, net BREE (230) 5,250 4 26 882 44 12 91 6,079
Geographical information i & L

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-current
assets (note) at the end of the reporting period:

REBESHE xEBZIFRBHEE (W5 @ith
BUBZ DM

At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H 128318

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

The PRC s 1,509,710 1,592,523
Hong Kong 58 25,194 29,646
Sri Lanka SRR S 137,429 152,331
Others HitithE 3,427 7,486
1,675,760 1,781,986

Note:Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

Hiat . IFRBEENIEELERNAEE -
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by products and

6. EXERSEEN (8

EEENY

REMREEDBARBEIDNERSREA

timing of revenue recognition are as follows: 2HUWT
2020 2019
HK$000 F#&7T  HK$'000 FET
Revenue from contracts with customers HARMEHREER F15588EE RN
within the scope of HKFRS 15: EFRERWA :
Production and sales of dyed fabrics SIS MIHE B R
and yarns 4,322,991 5,804,550
Production and sales of garments BU3E M IHE K 620,239 801,105
4,943,230 6,605,655
Timing of revenue recognition: FERR U A RYBFRT -
At a point in time ERBEEES 4,943,230 6,605,655
Transferred over time PEBS e S = -
4,943,230 6,605,655

The following table provides information about trade and bills receivables and
contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

THREHAMEERZBRBUERENAREE

RERMEHNEaREER-

At 31 December

At 31 December

#12831H ®12831H

2020 2019

HK$'000 F#&x  HK$'000 F&E7T

Trade and bills receivables (note 21) EEREREWRIE (at21) 1,027,493 1,129,994

Contract liabilities (note 27) BHBE Wat27) 22,014 15,315
Information about major customers FREXERRZEN

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

B E2020F 12831 H &%2019F12831H L&
ERKEBENERL ZWA(GREBE EEE51Y

EHBIE10%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A RRAEE (@

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERA
2020 2019
HK$000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET
Finance costs on: MBS
Bank borrowings RITEE 10,632 27,027
Lease liabilities HEa®E 8,930 10,020
19,562 37,047
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FSMH
2020 2019
HK$'000 F#E7xT  HK$'000 FET
Current tax: BEEMRIE .
Hong Kong 5E 9,969 11,042
The PRC s 22,203 39,158
Other jurisdictions HhsaM& 8,806 9,677
40,978 59,877
(Over)/under provision in prior years: BIEEE (BREEEH) BERR
Hong Kong s (34) (49)
The PRC F (384) 547
Other jurisdictions HihsaM& 1,601 2,115
1,183 2,617
42,161 62,494
Deferred tax (note 19): IRIERRIE (ff5E19)
Hong Kong 58 (3,117) 1,481
The PRC = (15,711) (14,836)
Other jurisdictions Hhsl s & (2,779) (6,334)
(21,607) (19,689)
20,554 42,805

Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of one subsidiary of the Company, which is
a qualifying corporation, is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits
at 16.5%. The profits of other group entities not elected for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%.

RIEEEFSRMEG A2 —AEE
MR B AT RIE2,000,0008 T EER
BANREA8.25% Mz FTHWERREBHNA A
16.5% o FNEIRF] SR MAF N EMEREE
2 BAR M EIRTRE16.5%F R ¢
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
is 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the tax rate of Sri
Lanka subsidiary is 14%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 19.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before income

tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

8. FreMixi (@

REREEERFRE (REMRB/RE) kib
EFRSRABRIRS > TENBARDZMES
25%-°

REFERFBEBZZRRER HERFH
BRBZMER14%°

HthElitE 2 RBENERSBRZEE
ISP S

B REIER A s BN EE190
REERGEEREAAMEEWERARNIES
HEBRFI IS AT B AR AR T ¢

2020 2019
HK$’000 F T HK$'000 T &7

Profit before income tax expense FRPFEMZ HAT & 122,145 209,619
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits REMBEEMEERENEBELR

or losses in the jurisdiction concerned BHRETENRIE 19,946 33,413
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERNENRNREEE

for tax purpose 2,665 9,837
Tax effect of income not taxable WA BERRNR T

for tax purpose (2,846) (1,147)
Over provision in prior years BT FEBEREE (265) (3,332)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MIBEIBRWERNRE S 3,499 4,099
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised EIEIEFR B R FERAIIR TS5 & 113 5,015
Utilisation of tax losses previously AP R ERINIRIER R

not recognised (62) (4,867)
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously ERBERWERNEMIREERIE

not recognised (2,077) (228)
Deferred tax provided on withholding tax BN B A B TEIIREH Y

on overseas subsidiaries RIETR B 317 183
Income tax on concessionary rate BREBEEREFENMER (738) (165)
Others HAth 2 @)
Tax charge for the year BEEERELH 20,554 42,805

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year decreased which is
caused by changes in profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective
countries they are operating.

EFEENMBFHBRAREXTEIDERAERZ
MBARNKECEMERBRZBAENED
PEL o



EEEE(Z2E)AFReE  2020FEH 121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A RERMAEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. BEEEZRF

2020 2019
HK$’000 Tz HK$'000 T 7T

Profit for the year has been arrived at EEERABIR GtA) :
after charging/(crediting):

Amortisation of deferred income (note j)' IRIEUR A 2 38 (L) (1,643) (1,622)
Amortisation of other intangible assets HithmpEE 2 #iH (Wati7)°

(note 17)° 3,015 3,015
Auditors’ remuneration TZ 21 EM 2 B

- BDO Limited — BB EERGFMEBAERAT 2,913 2,952

— Other auditors —H iz 8Em 47 48
Cost of inventories sold (note i) FEHERA (i ati) 4,332,098 5,844,703
Depreciation of investment properties KREYEZINE (WaE13)

(note 13) 3,735 3,544
Depreciation and impairment of property, ME- -BBERREZITERRE aE14)

plant and equipment (hote 14) 204,727 233,519
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) fEREEEZITE (Hfat15) 30,527 29,945
Employee costs (including directors’ BEMAE (BFEHNHE10ZEEME)

emoluments set out in note 10) 813,296 963,911
Government grants (note i)’ BT 4R B (7 &) (18,417) (4,005)
Interest income' FEUA (7,574) (10,058)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE B WIS KRR E 2 B8

plant and equipment? 11,286 14,841
Net exchange losses? b 2 518 75 (82 2,218 1,120
Net rental income from investment properties' & &Y% > WA S E' (11,772 (11,282)
Provision for impairment loss recognised SN ERENGRIE 2 R BB K B E R

on trade and bills receivables, net? F1E2 13,966 6,079
COVID-19-related rent concessions! COVID-1918 B & B %! (2,082) -
Research and development costs N 35,197 16,295
Written-off of other receivables? it EL i FE W FR B2 - 1
1 Included in other revenue ! BIEEHMKTAR
2 Included in other gains and losses 2 BRETEEMK G REERN
8 Included in administrative expenses 8 BREETBREAR
Notes: Wizt
)  Amortisation of deferred income represents grants received from the PRC local ()  #EAEUT A E4 5 WENZR B th B & 3 B T i 18 42

government authority as subsidies to the Group for acquiring property, plant and FAREBREBAYE BB RRHE /ML &
equipment for business development and energy saving scheme implemented by LTI AR EB R E R EE BT NITH

the PRC local government. EiREEt &) ©
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9.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(i)

Cost of inventories sold includes HK$1,377,761,000 (2019: HK$1,702,274,000)
of staff costs, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment,
depreciation of right-of-use assets, subcontracting fee, recognition/(reversal)
of write-down of inventories and other manufacturing overheads. Staff costs,
depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and depreciation
of right-of-use assets are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
above for each of these types of expenses.

Government grants include grants received from the PRC local government
authority as subsidies to the Group for incentive of foreign trade and steady growth
of business. There were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.
Government grants also include government support programs introduced in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Included in profit or loss is HK$9,352,950
of government grants (2019: Nil) obtained relating to supporting the payroll of the
Group’s employees from the Hong Kong Government and the Macau Government.
The Group has elected to present this government grant separately, rather than
reducing the related expense. The Group had to commit to spending the assistance
on payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed
levels for a specified period of time. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
does not have any unfulfilled obligations relating to this program.

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of

9.

EEERA (8

Htat (&

(i)

(i

10.

(a)

FEHE R AEE1,377,761,0005 75 (20194 :
1,702,274,000870) 2 E TAA ¥ KBS K
RETERBE - FREEERE - NMIER
WEETFERR, () REMEEER -8 TM
I SRR REITERREU R ERES
ENENTEERE LXREESEMS > AR
HEZEPY o

L7 468 e B2 48 U B 2R B R B 3 B AR AR 1 1
Rt EERBNEREFREERZ MM -
2 % BT 48 Bl A 16 AR AR PR ) o BUR ARG 7R &
HEEECOVID-19% 18 5| ABBUT X 5t 8]
BEBHN KRR ESEXFAERRES
A BRI BN #6R89,352,95078 7T (20194 :
) St ABm - AEBEBREEEER2IZBUTH
R T IRIBARRAR S - AE BB AER &R A
REEMAXENBERBRNTERER ABR
DEREKFLUT  PRIRE A > R EE I 5 A
ZEt BRI BERMNERRETER

EEXREEMEEH
EExM=

RIS B A TG (55622%) 5538316 kAT
BEFMmER) RO (55622GE) (RA) KE

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the Regulation) HFIEHEENEIT .
are as follows:
YAU
ZHAO YEN NG Kwok  William YING Hang Tat, LIU TAO SUN
2020 20205 Yao Gordon Tung LAM Wei Andrew  Xianfu, Yongming Fuiji Total
HE BENR GER MER g HEE YBE BkE HELC MM
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FEr FEr FEn FEn  FEn  FEn  FEn  FEn  FEn FEn
Fees e - 200 250 200 200 - - - - 850
Other emoluments Ete
Salaries and other benefits FeNEMET 3,304 - - - - 2384 - - - 5688
Discretionary bonuses® RiEe 1,525 - - - - - - - - 1525
Retirement benefits RANERFHEIHE
scheme contribution 18 - - - - 165 - - - 183
4,847 200 250 200 200 2,549 - - - 8,246
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 10. EEREEMEEN (&)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEfME @
YAU
ZHAO YEN NG Kwok  Wiliam YING Hang Tat, LIU TAO SUN
2019 20194 Yao  Gordon Tung LAM Wei  Andrew  Xianfu, Yongming Fuji Total

BR RER MER HEN ER MEER ABE BA# REL 0 26
HKS000  HK$000  HKSD00 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS00D  HK$000
TEr  TEn TEx TEn  TEn  TEr  TEn  FEn  TEn TEn

Fees ik - 200 250 200 200 - - - - 850
Other emoluments EfilE
Salaries and other benefits HeREMERN 3,304 = = = - 2384 = = - 5688
Discretionary bonuses® Higs 1525 - = = = = = = - 15%
Equity-settled share-based NEaEENRNAER
payments PANE - - - - - 9 - - = 9
Retirement benefits RIRBHFHEIER
scheme contribution 18 - - - - 165 - - - 183
4847 200 250 200 200 2558 - - - 8%
*  The basis of the discretionary bonus is based on the profitability of the Group. * NERENEREZENAEBRFFES]
Notes: HiaE -

During the years 2020 and 2019, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director 720204 20194 » 7 £ [F If 4 [A) {F 7] 2 =5 =% 1<l
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. =& » LU N8 2 5 [ o 72 0 A 7 £ [ B 19 252 JBh o
BwhE -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, three directors (2019: three directors) waived & ZE2020F 12331 H LEFEE > 311 (20194 : 3fi) BE
their whole-year emoluments. BEREZ2EMNE-
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees included two (2019: two) director, whose
emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of the remaining three
(2019: three) employees are as follows:

10. EXREEMEEH (B

(b) EEME

BEeMEsrNsREE@IE2MI (20194 | 211)
BE HMS B8 7 L M 5E(a) 8% 311
(20194 : 3fi) BREMEMEWT :

2020 2019
HK$000 F#&7T  HK$'000 FET
Salaries and other benefits e RHEMEF 6,290 6,247
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRIRERFTBIHERR 105 112
Discretionary bonuses B S - 325
6,395 6,684

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMENFLULTAER
2020 2019
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0007& 75 £2,000,00078 75 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017& 75 22,500,000/ 75 2 3

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were
within the following bands:

(c) SREEEM=

ENHEMESREEERNEZMEN FLUTE
il

2020 2019
HK$2,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,0007 75 £3,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001/ 75 %25,000,0007 7T 1 1
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11. DIVIDENDS

ir e TS IRRMTEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

1. B8

2020 2019
HK$’000 T T HK$'000 T

Dividend recognised as distribution EFEERIBADKZEE !
during the year:
2019 final dividend of HK9.28 cents 2019F KR EA I B & %9.2878 1
(2018: HK10.64 cents) per share (20184 : FH10.64781L) 113,683 130,071
2019 special dividend of HK1.16 cents 2019F R IR EE1. 16781l
(2018: HK1.33 cents) per share (20184 : =/%1.338 1) 14,210 16,259
127,893 146,330

No interim dividend was paid or proposed for both years.

The final dividend of HK7.00 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: HK9.28 cents and special dividend of HK$1.16 cents) per share,
amounting to approximately HK$85,752,000 (2019: HK$113,683,000 and
special dividend of HK$14,210,000) has been recommended by the Board and
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

P B S 3 £ B AT SRR P RAAR B o

EETEBRMEE2020F12831HIEEE
ZARHKREEKR7.008 1 (20194 : 9.287%
AR B 1.16781l) » & 3£4985,752,000
HIT (20194 : 113,683,000 7T K45 5 i &2
14,210,000/ 70) > W BFRENR A QB ER
REBEFERTG Lt

125
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. EREF
The calculation of the basic earnings and diluted earnings per share attributable ~ ZRATIHEA AL ESRERBT R E#HERF] T,
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: RETEEE

2020 2019
HK$’000 F T HK$'000 F&7T

Earnings &ZF
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary M EEREARI REERT

equity shareholders of the Company for FRBZ AR B EBEREESE AEL

the purpose of computation of basic EFEAF

earnings and diluted earnings per share 85,706 141,089

2020 2019

Number of shares iR &E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FistEEREARZFIFIEZ

for the purpose of computation of ZERINEEEHE

basic earnings per share 1,225,026,960 1,218,336,385
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BB RITTEBRES S

in respect of share options outstanding BEZERZEE - 740,894
Weighted average number of ordinary MEtEEREERAFTA

shares for the purpose of computation of TR IEEEEE

diluted earnings per share 1,225,026,960 1,219,077,279
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) ERELRF

The computation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December E, E2020F12B31HLtEE > SR EREF
2020 is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of JHIRERAR AT ZERRETE AEIEEF
the Company of HK$85,706,000 (2019: HK$141,089,000) and the weighted 85,706,000/ 7% (20194 : 141,089,00078 1) K&
average of 1,225,026,960 ordinary shares (2019: 1,218,336,385 ordinary  NIHEFHE H1,225,026,9600% = 8% (20194 :
shares) during the year. 1,218,336,38508 Z 3@ AR) 5T & ©
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The computation of diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of HK$141,089,000 and the
weighted average of 1,219,077,279 ordinary shares after adjusting for the
potential dilutive effect caused by the share options granted under the share
option scheme (note 34). Its computation is done to determine the number
of ordinary shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached to the outstanding share
options. The number of ordinary shares calculated above is compared with the
number of ordinary shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the share options.

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

12. 8RB (@)
(b) SRETRF

HE2020F 128310 ILEE > AT W HE 21T
EHNZ EBEEREE Y TIER - B E20194F
1283 1HELEEZSRBERA TN AREL
RS E (ff5134) REZBREER 2
BEREEER REAAIZERKESE
ANFE(EZF)141,089,0008 7t R NEF 198 B
1,219,077, 279 ZER T H - ERIBE RITE
HERERE DB EBEBETERATF
BE (BEAALABDEERZFHHE JKE

ZTEREB LM E s ZERSEE TH
REBREETHREEZT 2 ZERKEE
HEEE e

13. IREWE

HK$'000 F &7
Cost %
At 1 January 2019 720191811 72,307
Currency realignment NIRRT R (1,026)
At 31 December 2019 2019512 831H 71,281
Transfer from construction in progress BEEEREILRE 17,313
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BIEEME B NRE 4,689
Currency realignment NI Z R 3,661
At 31 December 2020 202012831 H 96,944
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2019 20191 81H 16,466
Currency realignment SN E Z R (274)
Provided for the year BEEEA 3,544
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12H31H 19,736
Currency realignment SMNEEME EER 949
Provided for the year TEEERE 3,735
At 31 December 2020 720205 12831H 24,420
Carrying values IREE
At 31 December 2020 12020%F12H31H 72,524
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12H31H 51,545

2020EE8K 127
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties consisted of leased properties and leased
pier. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2020 was HK$261,907,000 (31 December 2019: HK$192,417,000). The
fair value of leased properties was HK$237,312,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$168,304,000) and the fair value of leased pier was HK$24,595,000 (31
December 2019: HK$24,113,000) which have been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent property valuer.

The valuation of leased properties was determined by direct comparison
method and term and reversion analysis of investment approach.

Direct comparison method is based on the principle of substitution, where
comparison is made based on prices realised on actual sales and/or asking
prices of comparable properties. Comparable properties of similar size, scale,
nature, character and location are analysed and carefully weighed against all
the respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in order to
arrive at a fair comparison of market value.

Term and reversion analysis of investment approach estimates the capital value
of a property by capitalised rental income on a fully leased basis having regard
to the current passing rental income from existing tenancy and the potential
reversionary rental income at market level.

The valuation of leased pier was determined by Depreciated Replacement Cost
approach, which is based on an estimate of the market value for the existing
use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of the improvements less
allowance for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation. The key input of Depreciated Replacement Cost approach is the
building construction cost per square metre. A significant increase/decrease in
building construction cost per metre used would result in a significant increase/
decrease in the fair value of the leased pier.

13. REME (B

AEEBNKREEREREYELEERS
FHo AREBEREYEMN2020FE12H31HM A
FEEA261,907,000% 75 (20194F 128 31
H 192,417,000 7T) - FHEMENAFE
B%4237,312,000%8 7t (20195128314 :
168,304,000 7t) MEEBBEN A FTEES
24,595,000/ 7t (2019412831H : 24,113,000
Bro) o ThHRBIUYEGLEMKFITIERBS
[RABETHGHESHEEH

HEYENGEEDRER LB KRR ERIR
MBS ITEEE

BERIEBUGADUEBERRASEE  MEERT &
ERBEBRZERKL /A HIEBEYE LR
BEH X/ RE-MHE - FREAMEBEZ
BB ED BRI EZARARETD
M RAFHAEE > LUERAFHELR-

RERRMEB A EE BEIRAHEIR
SR WANTIZKFRBEERESWA
WERL Z2REEEESHEHSKRAERT
st —EENERBE

HEBENGEENRTEEENFEZET &
FAEDRBELIMBRERAER B EFL G
MEERMEEEENREAREBEERERERFR
PRERBTEANREREBIESE - NEEER
FENETEBABBEAS T RBRBRERE-
BYHARNEERAKRELFA " THRREHRE
EREZ ATEBEREBLEATEe
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The valuation of leased properties takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level,
year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market
price. The key input of direct comparison method is the unit market price. A
significant increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the leased properties.

Significant unobservable inputs were used in the valuation of investment
properties. The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of 20 to 50 years or period of the lease term.

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation.

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

13. REME (B

HEMELEREEERENFEZERERE
BREMERT A R B  ERFD K
HAR > LS HEUMSER ERIEBEZ
FTEHABEBERSEUDHZER HHERANRE
ER/THREEREEMEZ ATFEEKNEL
/TR

BANIRERBGASHFAENARREYEZ
BME-REMEZATEEREBYHFREE
AIE 13 A T EBESEMAENIRAFEE
BRETZEIREEEATEBEFE - ATE
B ENRULEMEZ RS RRERBHK
B HEYEZBRARILEER -

LR EYE U ERER20E0FHEEFH
UUBREERE) TE-

FEBMBEREMENDFIIFRIESNE ARG
=0
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. YE KB KR

Freehold and Furniture,
leasehold fixturesand  Plant and Motor Construction
land  Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KAKER BiKE
&ML BEY k& RERKS BE  EREIE B
HK$000 — HK$000  HKSDOO  HK$O00  HK$O00  HK$UO0  HK$O00
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost [
At 1 January 2019 F2019E151H 21573 1,007,390 955,806 2,557,458 23538 7321 4573086
Currency realignment SMEBMEET (19) (1,793) (4,858) (2,932) o) (285) 9.972)
Additions 1&m - - 8,516 83,980 2,345 39,778 134,619
Transfer from construction in progress FRATREIR = 871 15,427 1,365 = (17,663) =
Disposals/written-off HE /M - - (19,694)  (268,278) (1.293) - (289,265)
At 31 December 2019 120195128318 21560 1006468 955,197 2,371,593 24,499 20151 4,408,468
Currency realignment HERMEER (11) 3,053 11,081 864 150 3,553 18,690
Additions tm = = 19,637 27,538 338 88,264 185,777
Transfer from construction in progress BEATEIR - - 9,166 - - (9,166) -
Transfer to investment properties BEERENZE - (6,775) - - - (17,313 (24,088)
Disposals/written-off HE /s - (397) (84539)  (158,333) (2,461) - (245,730)
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 21549 1002349 910542 2,241,662 22,526 94489 4,293,117
Depreciation and impairment TERAE
At 1 January 2019 120191818 13000 488,808 672,710 1,823,828 18,511 - 3016947
Currency realignment HERMEER - (710) (1,764) (1,934) (61) - (4,469)
Provided for the year REERE 215 42,088 44,274 145,221 1,721 - 233,519
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /HisER - - (07468)  (262,022) (1,247) - (2713015
At 31 December 2019 120195128318 13,305 530,186 705474 1,705,093 18,924 - 2972982
Currency realignment SMEMBET - 1,530 4,453 (295) (82) - 5,606
Provided for the year REERME 215 38,639 66,253 97,852 1,768 - 204,727
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /Hissk - (188) (71,385)  (155,689) (2,344) - (229,606)
Transfer to investment properties BEEREYZE - (2,086) - - - - (2,086)
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 13520 568,081 704,795 1,646,961 18,266 - 2951623
Carrying values REfE
At 31 December 2020 12020128318 8029 434268 205,747 594,701 4,260 94489 1,341,494
At 31 December 2019 12019£128318 8,255 476,282 249,723 666,500 5,575 20151 1435486

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated, after

taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis.

LA RS R 2 A EE AR EFZ A
STRIREBERUEGRERE-
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. ERAEEE
Land and
buildings Equipment Machinery Total
TR EEY) 04 123 “afg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2019 20195 181H 257,857 775 429 259,061
Currency realignment NI = 2 (349) = = (349)
Additions B0 17,271 - - 17,271
Depreciation e (29,492) (182) (271) (29,945)
Effect of modification BSTHERMZZE
to lease terms (1,559) - - (1,559)
At 31 December 2019 20195F12831H 243,728 593 158 244,479
Currency realignment SN Z 2 842 - - 842
Additions B 2,650 - 131 2,681
Depreciation e (80,139) (183) (205) (30,527)
Effect of modification BETHEERRZ FE
to lease terms (59) - (18) (77)
At 31 December 2020 720205 12H31H 216,922 410 66 217,398

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying

assets is as follows:

RIEMEERE D2 EREEEREFED

g

At 31 December

At 31 December

Ft12H31H 1128318
2020 2019
HK$’000 F#E7x  HK$'000 T &1
Ownership interests in leasehold land and RHEEL MR ERY) 2 FRE#EER
buildings, carried at depreciated cost with PRI E A5 B K R TR
remaining lease term of: - EEP
— 30 years or more — 30 MU £ 81,773 93,938
— between 10 and 30 years — 10FE&30F 2 [H 9,788 -
Other properties leased for own use, carried FHEEE 2 EMt4pE
at depreciated cost ITE A {E 125,361 149,790
Plant, machinery and equipment, carried M5 AR R R FRITE A ASIE
at depreciated cost 476 751
217,398 044,479

2020 F#® 131
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FR{IHEEMIE

2020 2019
HK$’000 T # T HK$'000 T &7z

The Group’s prepaid lease payments REBNENEERIBEERE !
comprise:

Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong i3 & LN FE & 1 3th

At 1 January as originally presented R1A1H > BRL25 - 96,624
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BRERAESETEREAERNF1659E - (96,624)
At 1 January and 31 December M1A1E&12831H - -
17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HithWEREE
Software
B
HK$'000TF &
Cost s
At 1 January 2019 R2019F181H 31,267
Additions a0 -
At 31 December 2019 20195128 31H 31,267
Additions a0 -
At 31 December 2020 220205128 31H 31,267
Amortisation #heH
At 1 January 2019 R2019F181H 16,192
Provided for the year BEEEE 3,015
At 31 December 2019 72019128 31H 19,207
Provided for the year BEEREME 3,015
At 31 December 2020 22020FE12831H 22,222
Carrying values EREE
At 31 December 2020 220205128 31H 9,045
At 31 December 2019 20195128 31H 12,060
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

ir e TS IRRMTEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

18. R—E AT ZHE
At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H M12831H

2020 2019

HK$’000TF %77 HK$'000F BT

Unlisted investment, at cost JEEME » LU ATIE 16,204 16,204
Share of post-acquisition profit PE{L U BB R R A 6,589 4,333
22,793 20,537

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019 is as follows:

RERBBE /AT R2020F 12831 H &20194F12
BA31EZEBUWT :

Percentage of

Form of ownership
business Place of Place of operation and interests/voting
Name structure incorporation principal activities rights/profit share
FRi& R
D REES
%18 EBEEREYX  EMBIFEt SEREMEATIEER BRI AL
REMBEKBERAR Corporation The PRC Construction and managing 30%
of sewage treatment plant
in the PRC
EHE E AR E R & EIE S KR IR

The primary business of ERFEMBEKIEBEAF is engaged in construction
and managing of sewage treatment plant in Dongguan of Guangdong
Province.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information of an associate that are not individually
material:

REMBAKBZERADNEZEDRNNERS
REMmERMEESKEER -

LB E AT H U EN FEEM B ERES
fRo

ERFBEEZME AT ZHFHERRM

2020 2019

HK$’000 F#E7x  HK$'000 &1

Profit from continuing operations FREKEEH BT 2,256 636
Other comprehensive income HihemEmWlam - -
Total comprehensive income EEWEARE 2,256 636
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A MBRERMEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

19. DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and

19. JEEMIA
A B ARSI BB R S HA R R R

movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods are as EIELERBERE  (BE) RESBUWT :
follows:
Accelerated
Right-of-use Lease tax Tax
assets liabilities depreciation losses Others Total
ERAEEE HEaE RARERE RIEESE Hith HE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
(Hizt)
At 1 January 2019 201951818
as originally presented BRI E - - 19,892 (3,155) (31,489) (14,752)
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BREREBMBERE
ZBIFE165% 40,449 (48,573) - - - (8,124)
Restated balance as e019F1 A1
at 1 January 2019 Il S 40,449 (48,579) 19,802 (3,155) (31,489) (22,876)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss R 1E#EER AR, Gt A) (3,374) 3,360 (1,097) 2,522 (21,100) (19,689)
Currency realignment SN E = 5E - - (50) - - (50)
At 31 December 2019 120194128318 37,075 (45,213) 18,745 (633) (52,589) (42,615)
Credited to profit or loss RIBRBEPET A (6,091) 2,923 (1,980) (224) (16,235) (21,607)
Currency realignment SN E ERE - - (44) - - (44)
At 31 December 2020 #20204E128318 30,084 (42,290) 16,721 (857) (68,824) (64,266)

Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit on
inventories, provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment and trade
and bills receivables, write-down of inventories, unrealised gain on transfer of
plant and equipment between subsidiaries and deferred tax liabilities arising from

withholding tax charged on a PRC/overseas subsidiary.

Wat: BEREIEATENRERERN W%

188 e 58 1 LU 8 3 T SRR P SRR TR R (B 188
R ~ B I8 A B) 2 FE 14 23 e =% 8 A 4
RSB IRNEFIELENEERNEBEEE > Uk
H—RPE BN E A BRI TRI0IRFT

B FE

EEREIERBEAR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$48 million (31 December 2019: HK$39 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$5 million (31 December 2019: HK$4 million) of such losses,
which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
as it is considered by the management that future taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$43 million (31 December
2019: HK$35 million) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. As at 31 December 2020, of the above tax losses, an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$2 million (31 December 2019: HK$12 million)
can be carried forward for five years following the year when the losses were
incurred. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2020, the Group had other deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$43 million (31 December 2019: HK$58
million) mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment
between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance for doubtful
debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is
not certain that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in the
calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies established
in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and holds at least
25% of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced rate of 5% will be
applied. Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to retained profits
of the wholly-owned PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$474,700,000 (31
December 2019: HK$429,100,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Besides, no deferred tax
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the
temporary differences attributable to such loss amounting to HK$3,323,000 (31
December 2019: HK$$6,136,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in respect
of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits after 1 January
2008 of a partially-owned PRC subsidiary amounting to HK$13,602,000 (31
December 2019: HK$7,888,000).

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

19. EIEFRIA (1®)

$R2020%F12831H > A& E 0] B EHE#H KK
BN REBRIELEIEL 548,000,000 7T
(2019128318 : 39,000,000 75) © MLt
IE 518 1 495,000,000 7T (20195128311
4,000,000/ 7T) BEER A —EBREEREBEEE >
WA ABETHBARFREENKRIBEERE
KEBEBEZEIDARKNERRBA O ZER
IEFRIEES 18 © BR T BIFR IE A5 18 743,000,000 70
(20195128318 : 35,000,000 7T) Kk A&
FERARRNBIFEMABERRDEELRIE
B E o R2020F12831H» LiiiRIERKE S
48 38492,000,0007% 7T (2019F12831H
12,000,000 70) IR EXBEBEEBREREFS
F o HhiRTE R 18 o] FE R Efth 88 7

tESh > 1R2020FE 128318 » AEBEE fh el 078
s = E 49743,000,000% 75 (2019812531
H : 58,000,000 7T) » TEEEHWEB AR ZME
R RREBRENRERNE - FENRER
B RERGEBEURFNEERL-AX
BEFE RN B A A (EIR L r R R =
BoMARERIZANREREREARIERIE
BEo

RiE P ERERZE B2008FE1B1HE
Bl A% 17 B9 A Bl MR MG B B K B R 2008E
ERUBFENRABENKREBHMNI0%
FEIFER RESEMATERETR R
ARV HERNIEEE  BEAERKRE
5% o 1 F 7 82 B 0] LA ) 8 B = B B 0] 2 B
B MERERERIENTRERAGEL
HIEEME2EPENBABRERAN Y
B Z= #474,700,000/8 7T (2019F12831H
429,100,000/ 7T) 4R & B 7S Rk P 1E IR IE
RIBEME o LN R A BIRR AN B 2SS
18 B 4E Y B 7= #3,323,00078 7T (20191248
31H : 6,136,000/ 7T) fEHIEIEIR B H o

R2020F 128318 AEEEM—BEIEEEZ
H R B /B A B FR2008E1 B1H B 2 A D IR & F]
13,602,0007 77 (2019412831 H : 7,888,000
70) 2R HETHRIEIEIR B # o
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31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

19. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 19. IRERIE (&)

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial FizE MR AERNEN M= > & TIEILERE
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The ZBEKEBGEEEH UTEHBMM= WIELE
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes: MIBAEER DT

At 31 December At 31 December
©¥12831H 128318
2020 2019

HK$000 F#;z  HK$'000 FE7T

Deferred tax assets RERIBE E (71,062) (53,819)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 6,796 11,204
(64,266) (42,615)

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7§
At 31 December At 31 December
#12831H ®128318
2020 2019

HK$’000 F &z HK$'000 F &7

Spare parts B 26,165 35,597
Raw materials R 437,988 489,695
Work-in-progress FEE 380,750 422,006
Finished goods AL M 373,266 308,608
1,218,169 1,255,906

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. EEREEREWRIE
At 31 December At 31 December
¥12831H ®128318
2020 2019

HK$’000 F &z HK$'000 F &7

Trade receivables EEEWRIE 857,558 913,513
Bills receivables SR EWREIE 194,991 231,019
Less: loss allowance B ESIREE (25,056) (14,538)

1,027,493 1,129,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to its trade
customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables
based on the invoice dates, as at the end of the reporting period:

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

21. EXRFREURIE (&)
FEBREN FIOREOXEEMFHERE
Fog¥RBEBENERBEROBNURE
B BRI DT AN T -

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H R12H31H

2020 2019

HK$’000 F#7T  HK$'000 FET

Within 1 month 1E B &~ 586,759 667,466
1 to 2 months 122 A 278,901 322,236
2 to 3 months 2&3@E A 116,324 93,737
Over 3 months IEN=RY 70,565 61,093
1,052,549 1,144,532

Less: loss allowance B EBEIREE (25,056) (14,538)
1,027,493 1,129,994

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are made to
customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade and bills receivables.

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables. The Group has
fully provided for all trade receivables over 360 days as, based on historical
experience, trade receivables that are past due beyond 360 days are generally
not recoverable. Trade receivables not past due and due within 360 days have
been provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts, determined by
reference to past default experiences.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting policy stated
in note 4(j).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
debtors and bills receivable are set out in note 39(b).

AERRBEREAMERA SFEZEES
FREEEEAFRTHEERE - SEHER
ERTEECHRRENER TR EERETE
HA T LU ST o

AEBTEMREXERREBIGRER B ERFE
e

BHREXBBRBERANE AEECHBE
B60KRBIFTA EXBUGRIBZ BETIREHE LTS
MR RBBELR  BAEE60RE £
FRIE— AR A R (0] o 3 R 3 HA Ko S HABB0 K Y
BEXEUGRIA AT EERETRT 2E
BIER KA P E M st B o

A5 BARIRMY 52 4()Fr 805 B9 G 5T R RESY R {E
BKe

ERAEBREERERKREBRBBETKERE
EWARENEERMNE P BHNKHEE
39(b)°
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31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$45,708,000 (2019: HK$57,395,000). The Derecognised
Bills had a maturity of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of
the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC
banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised
Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21. EXRFREUTRIE (&)
EWEIERENEHRSHEE

R2020F12H31H  KEBHEETHER
HEETEAMNIETEANE TEREW
B (MR IR ER))  UEBREEGRS
45,708,00078 7T (20194 : 57,395,00078 7T) B X
NZERERNEXEMARIE RREHL K
IFEREZENERA1E6E A - RiIEMEZE
o MR EMIRITES AR ILRIZEHFAA
BAEEBBRE (FESH) - FEERA X
SECERAERRKRILERRENE RS D AR
K [ElFR » R IE - B BUH M3 4% IEFE S0 =R M A8
EERNRENEZNEERE - AEERFES
BRI EREE R ABRZERIEER RN
AMIBREREMEENRERNBLAENHEER
B-BERA AEBZRBSHKRIEERERE
AT EBELFEK-

22, FEIRRIA 2 E R H MW TRIA

RECEIVABLES
At 31 December At 31 December
®12831H 128318
2020 2019
HK$000 F#;z  HK$'000 F#E7T
Value-added tax recoverable AJUgElIE(ER 61,161 57,036
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 3% ~ T8 70 I8 K E fth FE W 3k 18 105,806 70,528
166,967 127,564

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, restricted bank deposits of HK$7,351,000 (31
December 2019: HK$8,055,000) mainly represented guaranteed deposits
placed in the banks in PRC and Sri Lanka as securities for the bills payables
and bank overdraft.

24. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry market interest rates
ranging from 0.001% to 4.5% (31 December 2019: 0.001% to 7.5%) per
annum.

23. ZPRHIRITER

120205128318 » 2[R HIR17EF 7,351,000
7T (2019128318 : 8,055,000 7T) =235
ERRTERTEE FIRITIEAZERENRIE
B RITE IR RN B IERER

24. FEHARITERRIRTTERRRE

WRERRITERRIRITEREEN F0.001%E
4.5% (2019 12H31H : 0.001%E7.5%) =2
BEFEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25, SEREREMNRIE

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H M12831H

2020 2019

HK$°000 T %77 HK$'000 Tz

Trade payables EERENNIE 631,840 640,537
Bills payables ER R IE 332,891 183,261
964,731 823,798

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on the
invoice dates, as at the end of the reporting period:

EEMEBERORERZEZARRBIHLH

BRECDATLOT ¢

At 31 December

At 31 December

#¥12831H R12831H

2020 2019

HK$’000 F#5T HK$'000 F 7T

Within 1 month ENEER 726,372 627,948
1 to 2 months IEE)E 146,890 117,429
2 to 3 months 2E3E A 49,141 38,800
Over 3 months RIEN=E 42,328 39,621
964,731 823,798

All the bills payables of the Group were not yet due at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2020, bills payables of HK$28,991,000 (31 December

2019: HK$19,313,000) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank deposits
of HK$5,798,000 (31 December 2019: HK$5,767,000).

The credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120 days.

RB|EHL > AEBZFAARBRAREAEER

FHRo

52202012831 H » ZRE TR IE28,991,000
T (20194128318 : 19,313,000 7T) JH H
REME 2 ZREIRTITFERS,798,000%8 7T (2019
F12H31H : 5,767,000 7T) 1EAIKIR

BENEERNFI0KEI20K
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26. HfthETRIERESER

At 31 December

At 31 December

#12H31H M12H31H

2020 2019

HK$’000 F & T HK$'000 T BT

Other payables Hh I 89,156 98,961
Accruals FEstER 191,156 167,902
280,312 266,863

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

27. BHEE

AEBERSRUTRABBENERE:

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H »12831H
2020 2019
HK$000 F#&5x  HK$'000 FET
Contract liabilities GH8E 22,014 15,315
Movements in contract liabilities SHNEaBENEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 &z  HK$'000 F#E7T
At 1 January R1B1H 15,315 17,834
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~ KFEREDEN T ASHEEN
recognising revenue during the year that WAMEBRGHNEERD
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (15,542) (17,186)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AW EEANEMREmERN
advanced consideration received from HHIBEEM
customers 21,795 14,667
Currency realignment NI R 2R 446 -
At 31 December (note 6) ®128318 (#ize) 22,014 15,315
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

28. LEASE LIABILITIES

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions from which it
operates. The Group leases various factories, staff quarters, offices premises,
warehouse and machinery and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods from 2 to 50 years for land and buildings and 2 years for
machinery. All rental contracts comprise only fixed payments over the lease
terms.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk of lessee; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

28. lHEA&E
HELEME (EAXHEA)

FEERHEEZREMEHESZEYE K
EEHELHIBR - BIBES WAEME B
Bk REE - HEGN—RZEEFH
H2E505 (LM RZEYMS) K2F (Fitkas
Mme) s -FIAEEENEEaNEEREL
[ TE {3 7K

BHTESHERIFAEMERED - AEER
BHERIFAEMEMRED 2 ENEBERS &
BNZNEBLEERERIFEEMEME D -

HERNDRENEEETER BE3ZELR
BRI AR - HEHE A SRR 2255 78
EBEENSRFEERZIER-

HEMREAENDBERAEERS ZHHER - HEE
HEBEEZNR FEEZHEEESNL) - 8
ERABE A ZEEERFX > BME R AE AR
BLEERBEREBECER  BRREGHE
ABRGHERAREEBENREZEEMTZE
EMR A ZFF o

MEEREEMMN R AER

o  ERIBEBR NMERERABANLHEREZ
B RMEFAER WIFHBELRB
BERSFE = RMBELURRE R 228 ;

s BRAERME BEAMABAZEERES
BERARNE &

s HHEMFLREAR MEH HxX -G
Pdii i
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

28. HE&E (@

Land and
Lease liabilities HEARE buildings Equipment Machinery Total
TR B EY = iE 2% HWE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAETT FAETT
At 1 January 2019 20191 81H 193,739 784 428 194,951
Additions )| 17,271 - - 17,271
Interest expense FMEZH 9,990 21 9 10,020
Lease payments HEMRIE (26,094) (196) (276) (26,566)
Effect on modification EBRHERRZZE
of lease term (1,834) - - (1,834)
Currency realignment SN E E R (4,002) = (4 (4,006)
At 31 December 2019 72019&E12831H 189,070 609 157 189,836
Additions 110 2,550 - 131 2,681
Interest expense MEZH 8,909 16 5 8,930
Lease payments fHEmE (31,552) (197) (207) (31,956)
COVID-19-related rent COVID-19t8RAME &R %
concessions (note) (Hat) (2,082) - - (2,082)
Effect on modification of EBREERR &
lease terms (96) - (18) (114)
Currency realignment NI A ER 10,138 - 3 10,141
At 31 December 2020 1202012 H31H 176,937 428 71 177,436
Note: The Group has received rent concessions from lessors due to the COVID-19 Az . EIRCOVID-19& 15 » AR EE UM & L

pandemic in the form of rent relief (e.g. reductions in rent contractually due under
the terms of lease agreements). As disclosed in note 2(a), the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient introduced by the amendment to HKFRS 16 to
all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria. All of the rent concessions entered
into during the year ended 31 December 2020 satisfy the criteria to apply the
practical expedient. The application of the practical expedient has resulted in the
reduction of total lease liabilities of HK$2,082,000 The effect of this reduction has
been recorded in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers those payments occurs.

X MRFEAEBERERRSORER LA
&) B HIEANESEZ R R o SN 5E2()FT
BorEHCEEREBMBREENE6
SRZESIASIAZRTRE R ERBIRIAE
FEzBRENEERR  REE2020F127
SIHIEFESIZFARESRRENEER
AfTRESZZRE-BAFNTEEREE
BYHEE S EREER1 2,082,000/ 7T © Z
DR BENEEBEZSOIRZE4IE
2z BB Em AR
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The analysis of the present value of future lease payments is as follows:

28. lHE&E (&)
REMERE BESHNT

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H 128318

2020 2019

HK$000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET

Current liabilities mENAE 31,399 31,053

Non-current liabilities FEmEaE 146,037 158,783

177,436 189,836

2020 2019

HK$'000 F#E7x  HK$'000 &

Short-term lease expense RHAEES N 4,132 5,644

Low-value lease expense BREEHEESZH - 36
Aggregate undiscounted commitments RAGIR A2 HATE B AR IE 48 B

for short-term leases 1,196 920

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE

(@) Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Amount due to an associate

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable with agreed 30 days
credit period.

29. RIEERRR —HBE QBN

Ead

(a) RIFFERIRRMRIA
BRMESERT  REREEREER-

(b) R—FREBERBMRIE

BRMESERE  REREAROXRHBEREE

HAREE -
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30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. IREWA
At 31 December At 31 December
128318 ®12831H
2020 2019
HK$'000 &z  HK$'000 F&7T
Arising from government grants (note i) RS Rk E 4 (WAL 56,349 57,367
Arising from rental income (note i) B W AFTESE Hati) 13,663 =
70,012 57,367
Current Vi i] 3,701 1,622
Non-current JETRED 66,311 55,745
70,012 57,367

Note: =2

i) In 2008, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for the
purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise as income over
the useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfilment of the relevant conditions.
The Group has no unfulfilled conditions attaching to the government grants.

i) The amount represents the rental income of HK$13,663,000 for the leasing of an
investment property, which had been deferred to recognise as income over the
rental period of 10 years.

i

1220085 » AEEE W —EBF 572,912,000
B ARBEETEE  MELSNIERBERE
HhREEHEEERFREISBA -FEH
Wt 5 27 5 TS 8 e P B 75 DO SR AR £ o

ZRERFHE-—BEREYVWENEZ WA
13,663,00078 7t » 2 A BRI OF FESR A UL A ©
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31. BANK BORROWINGS

ir e TS IRRMTEE (B
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31. ;RITEE

At 31 December At 31 December

Ft12H31H 128318
2020 2019
HK$’000 F#E7x  HK$'000 &1
Unsecured borrowings: mIRHEE .
Bank loans RITE™M 208,729 222,382
Import bills loans EOEMX 28,019 -
236,748 222,382
Repayable as follows: AR Y HAEEE
On demand or within one year (note) FEEREZEHIFR (B3 229,606 67,923
More than one year, but not 1FE L L EFRBE2F
exceeding two years 7,142 147,317
More than two years, but not 2F M E{ERBIBSTF
exceeding five years - 7,142
236,748 222,382
Less: Amounts repayable on demand or BIARSBEREREETIEARNT
due within one year shown AR
under current liabilities
— bank borrowings due within - 1ERFNBENRITEE
one year (229,606) (67,923)
Amounts due after one year 1F BT 7,142 154,459

Note: As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the current liabilities include bank loans that

are all scheduled to repay within one year.

The bank borrowings of the Group are mainly variable rate borrowings which
carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging from 0.975% to 2.25% (2019:
0.975% to 2.25%) or London Interbank Offered Rate plus a spread, ranging
from 0.975% to 1.8% (2019: 0.975% to 2.25%) per annum in Hong Kong. The
average effective interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group is 2.46%
(2019: 3.81%) per annum. Some other bank borrowings of the Group carry
interest at fixed rates ranging from 1.41% to 2.50% (2019: 2.49% to 3.14%)
per annum.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required to
maintain a number of covenant ratios. During the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, the Group had complied with all covenant ratios.

st . 122020F K2019F 128318 BB EEE

APEREIREEZIRITEN

AEBNBRTEEFEAIEEE REBD
BEBRTEEREMEEEZENF0.975%E
2.25% (20194 : 0.975%F2.25%) T @ FIRTT
FEFEMEEENF0.975%F1.8% (2019
F 1 0.975%FE2.25%) 2 FF R B o AERIR
TEREZFHEREFER2.46% (20194 !
3.81%) c AEBE D HEMIBITEELZEE
FERENF1.41%E2.50% (20194 : 2.49%=F
3.14%) 5t B o

RIBAEBEIRITRERMGE  KERBHEFH
BIZRAILEER o A E 20204 2019412831 H
IFEE AEBEETFMERNEE.
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. jg#&
At 31 December At 31 December
t12831H ®12A8318
2020 2019
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
R1EE FAET g 4=l FAET
Ordinary shares, issued ZEk BETR
and fully paid B
At beginning of the year RER] 1,225,026,960 889,810 1,205,026,960 865,716
Exercise of share options 1T1ERER R - - 20,000,000 24,094
At end of the year R 1,225,026,960 889,810 1,225,026,960 889,810

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622), the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value.

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited, a 60% (2019: 60%) owned subsidiary of the
Company, has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The NCI of all other
subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are considered not to be

material.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Ocean Lanka (Private)

Limited, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

RIBEB A ERA (55622F8) F1356MF > XA H
NEBERI EEEEE-

33. JEEERR S

KNABR—E K BABOcean Lanka (Private)
Limited# A 60% (20194 : 60%) B2 EAYE K IE
R (TFEERER)) - WIFRAEEER
100% R ZFTEEMKBAR 2 IFERER
WAL B

REBEREHIHE A > BROcean Lanka
(Private) LimitedJFZEREZNEM B ERE
FIEAF

2020 2019
HK$’000 F % T HK$'000 F &7

For the year ended 31 December HE12BA31HILLEE
Revenue O 677,137 827,339
Profit for the year EEERF 33,388 54,313
Other comprehensive income Ef’@%ﬁﬂ&%ﬁ 1,900 (96)
Total comprehensive income EELIT* 35,288 54,217
Profit allocated to NCI @aiak?ﬁﬂyf‘ﬁfmﬁﬂ 13,355 21,725
Dividend paid to NCI TR FIEER R BIEE E - 25,097

For the year ended 31 December HZE12A31HILEE
Cash flows from operating activities SEIBEEMENIRENE 78,048 83,186
Cash flows used in investing activities CEIEEMBNRERE (28,677) (11,912)
Cash flows used in financing activities nﬂéf EHEMANRERE (37,437) (25,317)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXEHHINE NER

and cash equivalents EEEIE B & (622) (478)
Net cash inflows BERMAEEE 11,312 45,479
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

ir e TS IRRMTEE (B
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33. IR Em ()

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 12831H
2020 2019
HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET
Current assets MENE E 453,234 379,636
Non-current assets ERMBEE 137,429 152,331
Current liabilities mEAaE (147,292) (120,686)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (7,875) (9,571)
Net assets BEFE 435,496 401,710
Accumulated non-controlling interests RET IR S 173,279 160,684

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The 2011 Scheme

The Company adopted the 2011 Scheme pursuant to a shareholders’
resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held on 20 January
2011 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the 2011 Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as defined in the
2011 Scheme) and for such other purposes as the Board may approve from
time to time.

The Participants of the 2011 Scheme include (i) any directors or any employees
(whether full-time or part-time) of the Company and its subsidiaries, associated
companies, jointly controlled entities and related companies from time to
time (the “FSH Group”); (i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-time)
of each member of the FSH Group; (iij any consultants, professional and
other advisers to each member of the FSH Group (including their employees
or executives or any persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed
for providing such services); and (iv) any chief executives or substantial
shareholders of the Company, provided that the Board may have absolute
discretion to determine whether or not one falls within the above categories.

34. U ABRZAHRE
2011551 &

KABRER2011FE1H208 (TR H ) £17
ZRERR ARG LiBBr —EREREZRN
2011 & 20115 B EELR TEALAE]—
BEHFE UE2HEE (ﬁuzoﬂfﬁ‘%@lﬁﬁﬂé
T IEED S BIRE S BN S  IRBN A SR A &
EESE AR EZHEMBERN-

2011 B 228
BAEHAEAR
g (TFSHEE)) A

i)

BB R AT~ B R Z B
~HEER QB RAERRI A
VERESEHERES (T

Jﬁm

2RESFRE) (i FSH%IREJZ ANERERE
FREMRE (FREBaERE AR 2#E

SEMNEREESHEA () FSHERZRE QT
HERFEHERRE  EX KR EMERN (BEHER
BRTHAENREZRIEERZERFHEMAA
T BEHRARE) ; K(iv)ASA B EREBITEH
AERTERF HESTZO2HNBRED
AALTREBR LaifER] o
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The 2011 Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2011 Scheme and the maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) are in aggregate
equal to 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the Adoption Date,
i.e. 79,401,096 shares. Under the 2011 Scheme, share options comprising
26,100,000 shares were granted on 19 January 2018. The share options
was fully vested after 12 months from the date of grant and the exercisable
period of share option is from 19 January 2019 to 18 January 2020. The
closing prices of the shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$1.07
each. Among those granted on 19 January 2018, share options comprising
5,800,000 shares lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2020 due to
non-exercise during the predetermined exercisable period.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the 2011 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to each Participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of share options in excess of the Individual Limit shall be subject
to Shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his close associates (or his
associates if such grantee is a connected person) abstaining from voting.

In addition, share options granted to a substantial shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or an Independent Non-Executive Director
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1%
of the shares in issue and having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the shares at the date of each grant, exceeding HK$5 million must be
approved by Shareholders in general meeting in advance.

34. URRIDAERZ IR
201155128 (&)

RITEREE2011E 5188 TR HWFT A BRI
KA ABMEMEMBEREE 0B BIET
RHERPMEBKREMAEZITHRMDEE &
ZEHEERRMBEZTRMDBEN10%
BRE 8 %&79,401,0068 c IR#HZ2011F 512 » 1Y
201818 19H B H & 526,100,0008% % (5
ZHERE BRECERHBSBEI2ERETE
B MERENTTEIRA2019F1819HE
20201 818H RPN RZIKH HERRI 2 W™
BEAER1.078T  HPFt2018F1 5190 #%
FH 655,800,000 & 10 2 B R ETE S E
EZITHERARARETET ERE E2020F128
S1HIEFELRR

(%)

FAEMEN2(E R BB AR ZFE2011 F5t 8 R A AT
EREMBERESERTARETERSREE
MBI (BEETHE  EERERITENER
%) BETEMELRF FTETHRMNEH  F1F
BEEETRMEBHN1I% (HERIRER) - E—
TR FBEER R BRERERRS
THtE > HRIRY MBARAREREZBHEA
(SHEHBMEA Mz ALEREAL)) ARE
KiRe

5 REERSEERR TR ER12E
AHBER AEARABZETERR (EER LHR
A) WBIFRTEFARSSEZEMTHE
AL (EER LHRA) REBABSHTRNZ
0.1%> B#8E ZRMNERHBIHZ WS ESt
%) #8%15,000,0008 T2 B8 » BEILINRE
RE LERRHAE -
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The 2011 Scheme (continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Board at the date of grant and should
be the higher of (a) the average of the closing prices of each share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (b) the closing price of each share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant.
The amount payable on acceptance of the share option granted is HK$1.00.
Acceptance must be made within a period from date of grant to such date as
the Board may determine and specify in the offer letter (both dates inclusive).
The Board is empowered to impose, at its discretion, any minimum period that
an option must be held at the time of granting any option. The option period
of the share option granted is determined by the Board at the time of offering
the grant and, in any event, shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of
grant.

The 2011 Scheme shall valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, after which period no further share option
will be granted. The 2011 Scheme expired on 19 January 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, there were no outstanding share options (31

December 2019: 5,800,000) under the 2011 Scheme.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options
granted under the 2011 Scheme.

ir e TS IRRMTEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

v

3. URMDABERZHARKS @
2011518 (8

THEEHESESRRHEBEFERERET B
WEBEATIRSE (RN BEEEZEREs
HRIABEEXHRBRMER 2B HRERMN
MZBRMIFEHERTEE ; RO)REEZBEREZ
HREBRMEH 2 8HBRERM ARG WS
B BMNERENREBA1.008T HEEBRE
HAEEEEEEE2HR CBEENRT
1500 N (BEEEMR) BR -EESH RN E
HERERERBITAEN AT EBRENE
AIREHR BREZTEBEREHESINIR
HIRFRERERET  HEAER T HEHE
HRREET ) RNGHBE10E -

01 EFEEEI 2 BRI ERMAELEI > BHI10
FoRZPREBEAITBRTFTERAE 20114
sHEIR2021FE1B198 EIHR -

2020128318 > 2011 E 5T &I » I £ & 5k
TEREERSHE (20191283183  5,800,00017
FEIRHE) o

TREBERRTRBF2011FFEERHBERE
88BN

Cancelled/
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
as at Forfeited Exercised as at
Date Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Scheme of grant price 2020 the year the year 2020
420205
12020  ERERHE,/ 12A318
BHE] RHAMH 168 1B1EEKT K¥/ 8K FRNET HARITE
Employees 2011 19 January 2018 HK$1.10 5,800,000 (5,800,000 - -
(== 20114 2018515198 1108 7T
Exercisable at the end R REERLER
of the year AF{I6 5,800,000 -
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

34. URINBERZARR S (&)

Cancelled/
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
as at Forfeited Exercised as at
Date Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Scheme of grant price 2019 the year the year 2019
120194
12019  FRERHE/ 128318
2 REBH B 1B1HEERTE K%/ B FRBITE HRITHE
Category 1: Director
b
Mr. Yau Hang Tat, Andrew 2011 19 January 2018 HK$1.10 1,800,000 - (1,800,000) =
il 20114 2018515190 11087
Category 2: Employees 2011 19 January 2018 HK$1.10 24,300,000 (300,000) (18,200,000 5,800,000
Fof BB 20114F 201815190 11087
26,100,000 (300,000) (20,000,000) 5,800,000
Exercisable at the end RREERER
of the year BF 176 - 5,800,000

The fair values of the share options were determined using the Polynomial

model:

BREZAFEENDFBZEENETE !

Under the
2011 Scheme
Share options

granted on

19 January

2018

RiF20115F

51817220185

119 EEEN

BERG

Number of options BREHE 26,100,000
Grant date fair value BBz AFEE HK$2,732,00078 75
Grant date share price RHEBRAZRE HK$1.107& 7T
Exercise price IR B HK$1.107& 7T
Suboptimal exercise factor REBITHRR 2.86
Contractual life BHEH 2 yearstE
Expected volatility TEEHKIE 23.81%
Dividend vield SIS 4.82%
Risk-free interest rate 2R B = 1.28%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Polynomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share
options granted on 19 January 2018. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may result in changes in the
fair value of the options.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit and loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

Expected volatilities were determined by using historical volatilities of the
stock return of the Company over the previous 2 years. The risk-free interest
rates used in the model were determined based on the yield of Hong Kong
Sovereign Curve for the share options granted on 19 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2020, there was no remaining contractual life (31
December 2019: weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.05 year) of
outstanding share options as all lapsed after 18 January 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no expense charged (2019:
HK$133,000) in relation to share options granted by the Company.

All share options granted on 19 January 2018 under the 2011 Scheme lapsed
after 18 January 2020.

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

34. LRI BERZARR S ()

2018 F1B19RRHMEREZ AT EER
BZBRARN G N EEREQFEER
ERZEBERBRRIDRES I REMGFEE
BERBRES LS INEREZATFEER
o

REREHE ZEBETHEHENRREEB
MIEREHME 2t Bt EEZFE W
B) RIBHRAESY Wit BREEE FLAE

R o

BHAREDHRBERABDBE2EREORZE
LRBEE - EAPARAZERRMETIR
BEEBTRMGE®RE (F2018F1819HER
H 2 i) BRE o

1202012831 H » i) K17 2 B IR FE I £ 5%
TAEHFH (2019F12831H  NEFHR GRS
#)FEHJ0.055F) > REAAEE2020F1 5180 &
ERIPSVE

HE2020FE 12831 A IEEE  TEEAKRATE
HZBEREARZES (20194 : 133,000

7T) °

RIE2011FETEIR2018F1 B19BH HWFRE
RS HETE2020FE1 B 18H B LR »
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35. RESERVES 35. f#fHE
The Group wE
The Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior ZAEBAFEERBEFEENHE RESEHET]
years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. RiFaEmEF R
The Company b /N
Share options Retained
reserve earnings Total
FER R BERA WE
HK$'000 F#E7x  HK$'000 FEmx  HK$'000 FET
At 1 January 2019 as originally R2019FE1818 R L
presented EX 2,597 1,359,750 1,362,347
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BREREEMBHREEL
sB168% = (15) (15)
Restated balance at 1 January 2019 2201951 B1H Z & &5
A5 BR 2,597 1,359,735 1,362,332
Profit for the year EFEEA - 187,402 187,402
Dividend recognised as distribution ERRADIRZEKRE - (146,330) (146,330)
Equity-settled share-based payments MEREHLIRNDAER
(NE/S 133 - 133
Exercise of share options 1ThRERR 1 (2,094) - (2,094)
Transfer from share options reserve to FIEREFHERBRERERF
retained earnings el (29) 29 -
As 31 December 2019 720194128318 607 1,400,836 1,401,443
Profit for the year EFEEA - 32,656 32,656
Dividend recognised as distribution BRI RDIKZKEE - (127,893) (127,893)
Transfer from share options reserve ~ FIREREFEFHREE
to retained earnings EEEN (607) 607 -
At 31 December 2020 72020512831H - 1,306,206 1,306,206
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36. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36. ZERAT ZMIFRRIRER
POSITION

At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H ®128B31H
2020 2019
Notes [zt HK$'000 F#;r  HK$'000 F&ET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB RRE 3,492 4,919
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 687 732
Investments in subsidiaries WEASKRE 7,650 7,650
11,829 13,301
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAIE 2 & R HAE
receivables WRIE 907 2,412
Amounts due from subsidiaries ¥ /&8 /A B) P ‘R =R I8 2,981,562 3,027,477
Bank balances and cash IRITHERAIRE 64,441 25,670
3,046,910 3,055,559
Current liabilities mENAME
Other payables and accruals Hth G RIER
FESTE A 7,256 8,364
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaE-— R 361 323
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB A B 7B 854,761 768,062
862,378 776,749
Net current assets MBEERE 2,184,532 2,278,810
Total assets less current liabilities BEERBERATEBAR 2,196,361 2,292,111
Non-current liabilities ERHERE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEaG-IEREE 345 428
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE - 430
345 858
Net assets BEFE 2,196,016 2,291,253
Capital and reserves BExRGEE
Share capital A& A 32 889,810 889,810
Reserves G 35 1,306,206 1,401,443
Total equity i iRE 2,196,016 2,291,253
ZHAO Yao YAU Hang Tat, Andrew
R BBlEiE
Director Director

EBEF EF
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2020

and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

37. B ARKRE
202012831 H KR2019FE12H31HAAT +
BB ATMIEBUF :

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETR
ML Lk BRMRE/ FARMBERTRE/
WEAE % BRI/ BR BXkE BiRAmE TEEK
Directly Indirectly
B# fitE
% %
Dong Guan FuYi Apparel Co., Ltd. (note &/ The PRC HK$14,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of garments
RERIREBRAE (Hia) hE 14,000,000 7 RERHERK
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 9 Knitting, dyeing, printing and sales of
Dyeing Co., Ltd. (note b) dyed fabrics
REVEEEHENEERAR (b e 307,500,000 7 S B HIEIHERR
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and yarns
RHEXERAF &H 3,000,000 7 BhRRBYES
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of yarns
LN &8 3,000,000 7 T4 85
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BRGEERAT &8 2ET e
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (ote g) The PRC USD110,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
fabrics and yarns
IRREHBERAR (i) e 110,000,000% 7 A FENEERRREL
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
EBTERERAE &H 2B T REER
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (nofe a) The PRC USD18,000,000 - 55.5 Production and sales of garments
EREBRKRBERAD (Hita) HE 18,000,000% 7T RERHERR
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Socialist Sri Lanka Rupee (‘LKR’) - 60 Knitting, dyeing, printing and sales of
Republic of Sri Lanka 985,000,000 dyed fabrics
HERRRINETE  HEHFEL (EL) S B DIEIHERR
#HE 985,000,000
Oceanstar Textiles International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEGARRERAT 2 2B T ey,
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BERBERAE &H 28T REER
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2020

and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

37. B ATHKRE (&)

202012831 H K&2019F 12831 HAAT +
ERBABMGEBN T ¢

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETR
SRR Bk BERRE/ FARAMRERTRS/
WEARAHE B/ EX BXkE BRRAMILE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B# &
% %
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited ~ Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs and
chemicals
B2 (R FEERY) BRAT B 100,000 % R REBIHES
Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd. frofe g}~ The PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
TEREGBERERAT (Wia) e AR 5,000,00070 BHES
FINRNGARBRAT fnote o) (Hita) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
H A& 35,000,0007 it
Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note g) The PRC USD800,000 - 55.5 Production and sales of garments
BRARRKBRAT (&a) e 800,000% 7t RERHERR
REERSMEREIRAR fnofe ) (Tzta) The PRC RMB90,000,000 - 100 Heating supply
H AE190,000,0007 2
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited. (hote g) The PRC USD89,900,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
fabrics and yarns
HRREGABRAT (i) e 89,900,000% 7% A FENEERTRED
Notes: HiaE -

a. Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of the Group for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and liabilities of the Group
at the end of the reporting period. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive

length.

a. RABEMSINEBEEEERINAT -
b. HRPBUSELENSIEIINMILAIAT

UERABDNBABDERERTDNEERS
HEAERERFEXEAEEREUEBNLE
ERREHRNEEREREZRL DMK -
FRBERI R EMMBRATDNFFEESI
HRREER IR
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 31, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with the share capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group may balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debts and the redemption of existing debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total liabilities divided
by total capital. Total liabilities is calculated as current liabilities and non-current
liabilities. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

38. EAEEERE

AEEEERESAZEN AN EREAEERE
BRUFESE FAREENCEGEHFEERZ
BNREFE SFNEFNERALR - AEH
BVRES RS R F 2o

AEENEARBEUERS (Eh BN
PRIRBERIEE) R ABHAE AEBGED (815
BETRE KRB o

K@ﬂ%%?ﬁﬁgiﬁ-ﬂzﬁﬁzﬁfdﬁ B R
& — CEEEEREANMEER ARG
%ﬁﬂh%ﬁﬁé?B’JL- AEEGUEBIKE
IR B~ BT R R BB R U R BT HER K
BORAEHUTHHEHBERERRE

rEETCHERASELER (RIS EBEERUE
BX) BEHER -BERENRABEEKRIF
MBERFAE - EXBREEARBER ABIGE
meRBEMARNEABR/LERNT !

At 31 December At 31 December

12A31H 128318

2020 2019

HK$'000 F&;x  HK$'000 &

Total liabilities BE4E%E 1,845,922 1,711,844
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z~AE#EE AL m 3,394,572 3,419,461
Gearing ratio BRBBLE 54.4% 50.1%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

ir e TS IRRMTEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

39. TR TH
(a) =TI RER

At 31 December At 31 December

¥12831H R12H31H
2020 2019
HK$’000 T T HK$’000 F 71
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost IR IHM AT ENEHMEE (BIERE X
(including cash and cash equivalents) EAEEEE==)) 2,310,364 2,095,447
Financial liabilities ERaE
Financial liabilities measured BgER A ENTHREE
at amortised cost 1,521,158 1,389,223

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group include trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, restricted and short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, amount due to an associate and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
() Currency risk

Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. To
mitigate the risk of foreign currency, the Group manages the foreign currency
bank balances by performing regular review. The Group will continue to assess
if the use of the foreign currency hedging strategy as appropriate in order to
mitigate the foreign currency risk.

(b) MAFEEEERBRRER

AEENETE %n@lﬁ&%éi&?ﬁﬁ*}%u&
B~ HAEWGRRIE ~ R IRG B RRIRIT R0 1R
‘Léﬁ?r)i’ziﬁ‘i\ A%&TTFE{TT)\IE HAh &S
IR RIFERRRBIRIE - R —E B E AT
TAIEEﬁEfﬂﬁ,\Oaéﬁﬁﬁlﬂzﬁ%em\%
EBﬁ.ﬁqﬂﬁ%O,L\ié?%‘i\%lﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁwﬁ@
ETEER (EBERRKAXEAR) - EER
&/ﬁ@]éé‘c\ﬂﬁw°‘F§Z$§Z§'JE%§§DHB¢TEEM—I
EBRER - BEEEEEREEZF AR LR
R BB Rt BREGE = HE i o

HIBER
0 EEES

FEEETERENERS  WAEED R
R o

FEBEERBEIINERR  URRFREEFNA
MHIREE BB - BREINERR > FEEE
BB 5L E RN 2 R 5 0 AR

BESTER D E B IMNEE A LIRS
mﬂ[‘”ﬂ"
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group that are
considered significant by the management are as follows:

39. T H (@&

(b) HEREKBEEEEREE (@)
iR (&)

) EEEE @&

RBREHE EEERSBERNEER U
KIEMEREEREBEENEREEIDT

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: EEsEREG®AaR
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
#12H831H R12831H #12H831H R12H31H
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 F#E7T  HK$000 FE7  HK$000 F&ET  HK$000 F4E7T
usD ETT 838,088 782,085 439,010 324,943
RMB ARE 300,670 285,404 549,824 573,709
CAD mr 6,016 832 - -
LKR Bt 1,402 643 2,697 1,249
HK$ BT 2,572 1,970 16,278 14,278
Indonesian Rupiah (‘IDR”) ENER (TENEREL) 360 998 1,165 926
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD and
HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant group entities.

The following table detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency of
the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HK$ is
pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
On this basis, there will be an increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit for the year
where foreign currencies strengthen against the functional currencies of the
corresponding group entity by 5%, and vice versa. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2019.

FEBEFESRET ARE - MxkET (B
ZEERKEARERERNINEEE TRE)
BYR BN E R

RS LNE R AMERERINES
BIHER R ES%MEBRE » AR BTl R
i FHIE A TR ETRIN 5% mAMEBREEA
ENH2RIERBREEASHERTES
BEFITEMRANSRELE - RESD
ESFEHAEELUOMNEIENERKER I
PRERIEE%INERBFFERIRE - IRILE
# ZINE R EEBEREEEAE%
EFEERAAENES i"?]D/(/m"\) R 2 TRk
BRAD 512019 F BRI EEETT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

() Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities:

ir e TS IRRMTEE (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

39. £RIT A (@)

(b) HBEEREEEEREE (@)
HEERE (E)

() B (&)

SELE DT ()
EREERESEE:

At 31 December At 31 December

®12A831H "12831H
2020 2019
HK$'000 F#&7T  HK$'000 FET
Increase/(decrease) in EEERAERFIEM, OFL)

pre-tax profit for the year
RMB against HK$ ARBRET (12,215) (14,092)
CAD against HK$ R AT 299 39
(11,916) (14,053

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk primarily in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollars
denominated borrowings. In light of low interest rate expected to be maintained
in long period of time, the Group shall monitor the interest rate fluctuation
closely and arrange appropriate financial instruments to minimise the interest
rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative instruments (included variable-rate
borrowings only as the directors consider the exposure on bank balances
is not significant) at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 (31 December 2019: 50) basis
points increase or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax
profit for the year would increase/decrease by HK$914,000 (31 December
2019: increase/decrease in pre-tax profit by HK$1,100,000).

(i) FIEEE

AEENRESRABNKARETERT BRI
ERREEER AERNBREHERHEIRT
BERFBFRLURBE R FEEFRERE &
EENRTAENXERTIEERNAELER
WHETHENEBEELE 2 EBRITRAEREK
o AN BN XA ERF—RERE 58T
PUBEANXRS T2 BNE/mITAR
RH R

BRE D

THSKESWRBIETETR BEEZE
EE NESRAMIBTERARKIEZ AR
TEAKR) R2020F K2019F 12831 BHHFIXR A
BT BROMILERRESPREKREEDN
EEHETAEREEFENEAREZNRR
MFER - BHETESTEAEBRBEIRFIZRRET
KAS01E (2019F12831H : 501@) HEHIF
B RREEBHAEJESEEHNT G

MIECTERITEEMS WA ELFH T H
S501EE 2 MAFA MBS g BIARE
BNREERABAEM,B1L914,000%8
70 (201951283183 : MAT&A &M, # D
1,100,0007& 7T) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the maximum exposure to credit risk
by the Group which will cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of the
recognised financial assets as stated in the statements of financial position.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers with good
credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group regularly reviews
the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and individual basis to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, management has also been performing
more frequent reviews of credit limits for customers in regions and industries
that are severely impacted. During the year ended 31 December 2020, a net
impairment loss of HK$13,966,000 (31 December 2019: HK$6,079,000) in
respect of the trade and bills receivables was recognised.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and bills receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2020 and
2019:

39. Rt TR (&)
(b) MERKBERERBE (&)
V=13

R2020F K%2019F12831H » KEBERH FH
REBTEXMERFHELNESEERR
AZEEMBRRERAEIIERIBEHEEN
IRESEEo

AEBEERR  AEENEEBELZR—4
ANEEEETEERBE EEBMNREMERE
R UBARIEETH R CIEIAEE  EH
EEHEEREATEERTEEEEZRERNT
BRI P o lhSh ) REE S EHRRER RERE
ZE N s (& TE Y Bf UR (0] 70 58 » LURR (R 04 U (B
EREH B AR EIB %k - AFEHCOVID-19%
B EEENCHZIREFENHE RITE
HNERETEMEENEERESE -NEE
2020 12831HIEFERN AEBEEMEEK
5 e IR FIEHE SRR (B 18 5 5 {8 13,966,00078 7T
(20194128318 : 6,079,000 7T) ©

AEEREFNFRARBEEHERNETE (R
BREEEAERSL) StEEXERERBU
BEREF ARFIEENBEEEEHRELR
WERAARERDENEGRENAAREES
ORI EE-—TEDAERARETFERA
HAMR Y B 1R

TRIBHEN A< E B 7220204F K2019F12 531
HME R EREWFIEFEENEE R &
FEHREEBENER

Expected loss Gross carrying Loss

2020 20205 rate amount allowance
FEHARS 18 EE=R HERMEE EEiEEE

(%) HK$'000 F#;T  HK$'000 F#T

Not yet due KRE|ER 1.10% 925,273 10,199
Overdue 1-60 days #HR1-60K 1.10% 102,445 1,123
Overdue 61-365 days #1HA61-365K% 52.87% 23,547 12,450
Overdue >365 days 7 HAB3A3656K 100.00% 1,284 1,284
1,052,549 25,056
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 390. £EFIT A (&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) MHEAMEEEERERE B
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
2019 20194 rate amount allowance
FEHARS 1B L= HARmEE B IR

(%)  HK$000 F3Er  HK$000 FEm

Not yet due REHA 0.17% 1,020,375 1,751
Overdue 1-60 days #HA1-60K 1.23% 105,297 1,292
Overdue 61-365 days #1HA61-365K 45.83% 13,597 6,232
Overdue >365 days HHAB4E365K 100.00% 5,263 5,263

1,144,532 14,538

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 5 years. FEHAEIBLER L IRBASENERIGELEE S
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions — E#E o 52 E R THHEE MR MITINEREH
during the period over which the historical data has been collected, current 35 EA 5 A9 €875 iR 550 ~ B BRI LUK & B H FE I
conditions and the group’s view of economic conditions over the expected FIEMITEHIEHHIBS BRIz BENER
lives of the receivables.

Movements in the loss allowance are as follows: BRI 2 BT ¢

2020 2019
HK$°000 T %77 HK$'000 F BT

At 1 January ®1B1H 14,538 10,849
Impairment loss made on trade and EERTHRREWGRIEY

bills receivables, net SHRRERKLFE 13,966 6,079
Amounts written off as uncollectible Aol ElmiitE =58 (3,448) (2,390)
At 31 December 128318 25,056 14,538

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade and bills receivables included in the X 2020F 12831 H  BiE T HBEREE S
loss allowance with an aggregate balance of HK$25,056,000 (31 December #5685 725,056,00078 7t (2019F12831H
2019: HK$14,538,000) was impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral 14,538,000 77) HYZs & B & % & T AEUN R 1A
over these balances. ERE AERLEMZELRITEEMAIER

O
an °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The following changes in the gross carrying amounts of trade and bills
receivables mainly contributed to the increase in the loss allowance:

— increase in lifetime expected credit loss after assessing existing or forecast
change in business, financial or economic conditions which may cause
deterioration in the operating results of the debtors;

— increase in the adjustment factors to expected loss rates as a
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic; and

- written-off of uncollectible trade and bills receivables.

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its subsidiaries
after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial conditions. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by reputable credit-
rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the available unutilised banking
facilities of the Group are approximately HK$2,793 million (31 December 2019:
HK$2,875 million).

39. Rt TR (&)
(b) MERKBERERBE (&)
EEmERE (B

EEMEEBUGERRAEZ A TEHER
P IR R A G AT 2R -

- RRIETEEREBACKERESEZ
EH - MBREBERRZRAE TR ES
BIEMFRANTBRMEERSSE

- [HCOVID-19& B E MIAH A R BIHE
HE &

- MEARKRENEEREREWRIR

5 " ABERBIREEEN B AT
RREHT EHENE A RHMFER UL
B ARAEERATEENEERBREKE
AR

KEENRBESEERRBEER  RHEFHIH
%Ef:.%ﬂwmféﬁﬁm%?f% AT = EETRNIE
170

BEBERINETEEEFRIBTHABES
ZEERBREPIN AEBTERHNEARER
SERR HRROBNZEHFTS-

TREE T

REERDESRRE  rEETERRER
EEERARNKTNREREFRREIER
NENAERZEMRRABRERERIN
FE - BEEIERRITEENERBR  MLHE
RETHAEMEL -

BRI RERMBBRTEEBEAITERY
BE AR 2020128310 AEBER O H)
R{ERERRTEEEE472,793,000,0005 7T
(20194128318 : 2,875,000,0003 7T) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 390. £EFIT A (&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) MHEAMEEEERERE B
Liquidity risk (continued) RENEZEE (B

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for FRFVIEEZCEERARERIEITESR
their non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. B &R F AN HIE T o 2R L IRBAREH
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of FIAERERMHNEREHHAEESREBRR
the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be BiIRIBEREBRH -ZXROIEFEERASRS
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To & 7EA BIRAFEBFIERZRER » REIRE
the extent that interest is floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived — ZEJhEH¥RESHIAR 2 R KB H o

from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted Carrying
average  Less than Total  amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 December

2020 20205 interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over5years cash flows 2020
142020
My DMfER KERRE 128318

BRfIEZ  HEER 1EMER  EREIF 1528 2E5E  BiBsE  REME  WERERE
%  HKSU00  HKSU00  HKSU00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000
&7 &7 &7 &7 &7 TE7 &7 &7

Non-derivative financial FiEEHas

liabilities
Trade, bils and other payables &% ERREMELLE 604531 289,106 52,953 - - - 103659 1,036,590
Amounts due to non-controling  RFFEIRIREZE

shareholders 64,525 - - - - - 64,525 64,525
Amount due to an associate Gl A=UNGIEE] 5,861 - - - - - 5,861 5,861
Bank borrowings RITEE

- variable rate 38 246 7,862 33,811 136,332 7,151 - - 185,156 182,479

- fixed rate -E8 1.76 - - 54,771 - - - 54,771 54,269
Lease liabilities HEER 4,96 9,195 5,704 24,831 28,248 77,029 97,700 242,707 177,436

781,974 328,621 268,887 35,399 77,029 97,700 1,589,610 1,521,160
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

39. Rt TR (&)
(b) MERKBERERBE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) BB ZEE (18
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 December
2019 20196 interestrate ondemand  1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over5years  cash flows 2019
120195
mgTs  OMEAR FHHERE  12A31H
BEA=  ZEER  1EMER  EAEIE 152 2F5F BlsE  REME  NREE
% HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAT FAET FET FAT FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial FiEemas
liabilities
Trade, bils and other payables &% EBREMENTE 612,121 236,857 40,748 = = = 889,726 889,726
Amounts due to non-controling ~ RIEZRBREZIE
shareholders 80,100 - - - - 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate R—EHEARNE 7179 - - - - 7179 7179
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate %8 412 819 1,586 71,570 151,980 7,158 - 233,113 219,251
- fixed rate -ER 2.96 - - 3,170 - - - 3,170 3,131
Lease liabilties RE&R 5.21 9,573 5,611 24,712 30,343 75,448 114,411 260,098 189,836
709,792 244,054 140,200 182,323 82,606 114,411 1,473,386 1,389,228

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

(c) Fair value
(i) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, lease liabilities, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders, amount due to an associate and bank borrowings.

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills payables, other
payables, lease liabilities, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders and
amount due to an associate approximates their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

3 BRI 2 BEA BN RS BT REE 2
RE (3 B LRI ERRABZ FETA
2 S EBFE

(c) 2FfEE
() WU FEEFEZZHMITR

WIFNATFEBEAEZERTIAGERERS
FIREIEE & E R ZHREUGRIA  HAEUR
BEERRBEERMRE - AMENREEE
B RIFERKRERNIR R —REBE QTR
BRIRITEE

MARBREMATEE  BEhFRRERE EER
REBUGIR S HERRUE X R EBEN
MIESHthEARE - BEEE RIFERRE
MIERR—EBHEARDMENREEREAE QY
BEMES

REBIIRRALEHEA AT ENESR T ENIER
H{E > B £ 520205128331 H &2019F128
SIHMNAFBEITIEEAER
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OF CASH FLOWS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

= A
i o = |

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

ReRERME

METHELNGBEZHIR

Bank borrowings

Amounts due to

non-controlling

shareholders Lease liabilities

RIELERR
RITEE BE R FRIE HEARE
(note 31) (note 28)
(Hiz#31) (Ht5£28)
HK$'000 F#&7T HK$'000 F &7
At 1 January 2019 as 201951818 »
originally presented HBIRFEZES 798,513 80,100 =
Impact of initial application of BRERE B HHRELE
HKFRS16 AlE165t s & = - 194,951
Restated balance at 1 January 2019  7R2019FE181HZ
K EBY| MR 798,513 80,100 194,951
Changes from cash flows: REnsEs) .
New bank borrowings raised MEEZIRTTEE 1,119,755 - -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (1,696,117) - -
Interest paid BENFE (27,924) - -
Repayment of principal portion of the {EEHEE&/E 2R E9D
lease liabilities - - (16,546)
Repayment of interest portion of the  EEHESEZFEZH
lease liabilities - - (10,020)
Total changes from financing MERSREEBELE .
cash flow: (604,286) - (26,566)
Other changes: H &) .
Interest expense (note 7) MERX (W1a27) 27,027 - 10,020
Increase in lease liabilities from FRNFTIIHEEMER
entering into new leases ZHEaEEN
during the year - - 17,271
Effect on modification of lease term  1E:JHHE G £ - - (1,834)
Currency realignment SN B TR 1,128 - (4,006)
Total other changes HthEEHh a5t 28,155 - 21,451
At 31 December 2019 2019%F12H31H 222,382 80,100 189,836

2020 ##% 165



166

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mAMBRRMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020412H31H

40. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 40. ZEWRERERMEE &)

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (continued) MEEBELENEBZHIE: (@

Bank borrowings

Amounts due to
non-controlling
shareholders

Lease liabilities

RIELERG
RITEE BE R RIS HEaR
(note 31) (note 28)
(Hz#31) (H1zt28)
HK$'000 F %77 HK$'000 F#&7T
At 31 December 2019 $20195E12831H 222,382 80,100 189,836
Changes from cash flows: REnsEgs) .
New bank borrowings raised MEEIRTTEE 555,833 = s
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRTEE (541,961) = =
Interest paid BT (9,984) - -
Repayment of amounts due to non- B2 X IFEZERL IR BB FIE
controlling shareholders - (15,575) -
Repayment of principal portion of the EEIAE&EBEZAREIH
lease liabilities - - (23,026)
Repayment of interest portion of the EEAE&EEZF BIH
lease liabilities - - (8,930)
Total changes from financing MERTRELERE .
cash flow: 3,888 (15,575) (31,956)
Other changes: HhEs) .
Interest expenses (note 7) MEREZ W5E7) 10,632 - 8,930
Increase in lease liabilities from RERFTILMAEMERN
entering into new leases ZHEEAREEN
during the year - - 2,681
COVID-19-related rent concessions ~ COVID-19f8RATE 2 5 5 - - (2,082)
Effect of modification of lease terms 5] EERZ F £ N - (114)
Currency realignment NI RE (154) - 10,141
Total other changes Hth & 55t 10,478 - 19,556
At 31 December 2020 1120205 12H31H 236,748 64,525 177,436
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41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. BEARKIE
At 31 December At 31 December
*12A31H *12831H
2020 2019
HK$’000 F#E7T  HK$'000 FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not B WS HEER
provided in the consolidated financial EENERGRE M HBHRE
statements in respect of acquisition FAEEHEBEERRHS
of property, plant and equipment 105,938 84,406

42. OPERATING LEASES

As lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during the
year was approximately HK$12,299,000 (2019: HK$11,933,000). The related
outgoings amounted to HK$527,000 (2019: HK$651,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, in
respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease receipts.

42, EEHE

EBHBAA

EERN AEERRKREYEFMBRENMA
S ALEELNA12,299,0008 7 (20194

11,933,000 7T) ARt A527,000E T
(20194 : 651,000 7T) ©

RBREMHE AEBEBFRBAEYEETY
WARRRBEEWRANT -

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H R12831H

2020 2019

HK$'000 F#&;cr  HK$'000 FE

Within one year 1ER 10,566 9,563
In the second to fifth year inclusive F2EEFESERN (EREMECIEEN) 8,749 10,423
Over five years 5FEM 792 97
20,107 20,083

43. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible employees
of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees. The retirement
benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the required
contributions.

43. BRIREF]EHE

AEBRFERER KRS BRGEMMNIL—BE
BRMHARET S (TR RN ) RIBERGEIMER
& BMRG R — BRI ARS8 (T
BESE) FTRECERNAEREBES
EMESENEENBINAEBEELHRE
SEANEE - EIRERA I FREVR KRB B A TS
FEERBAIEECLEEAENROESMH

=h
N

AERHMBENEAMENEERIESEZE A
& BT &2 18 B9 B SR IR ) 5t B S E BR AR T
georEEARRBEHFMNETEDLEHERT
ZEtAFRENERZ AEREHZFHEN
M—EERERE L e
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43. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)

During both years, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, amounting to HK$54,292,700
(2019: HK$60,858,000) have been charged to profit or loss for the year and
included in employee costs as set out in note 9.

44. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 29.

(b) Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related
parties:

43. BRIREFIEE (B

RmEEE  FHESRHERKER BRI
AU RR L R B A > LR IR B A R0 IR R 2R
E B itk o

EREEEEEDRAINRNEKRER 584
B EB 454,292,700 7T (20194 © 60,858,000
B WEE AMGEOFTE 2 BE AR o

44. B R FREE AN TRUIRER

(a) FAEKEA LBV ER

A& E E R A LR R EBRGE R BERIINR
B IR R R P 5E29 ©

(b) BABEALRZ
EEERAEREFBALTETTIRS !

Related party Nature of
Name of related party relationship transaction 2020 2019
REtA T8 EARA R N T RIRR 1% X5HE HK$'000 F#&x  HK$000 FET
REMBEKBERAE Associate Sewage expenses 20,112 27,064
HE A E] TSKERIEE A

None of the related party transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(c) Connected party transactions

BB BB A TR S L IREE
1AASF RE 2 BES 5 R R o

(c) REALRS

Name of connected party Nature of transactions 2020 2019

RAEANLTRTE RH5HE HK$'000 F#&7x  HK$'000 FET

The FM Group (nhote i) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and 232,578 228,760
garment parts

FMEE (#752) EE MR FEAD B4 R AR EC

The AH Group (note i) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and 152,182 192,868

B garment parts ‘

AHE B (H/3Ei) EEME - FAD M 4E R AR EC

Chinatex Group (nhote i) Purchase of yarns, cotton and other 6,507 22,924
materials for the manufacture of
fabric, garments and

‘ __cooking oil and foodstuffs

FREREE R (B 3Lii) REBILAD ~ IRTE R M A E AR B R M
B R R HE @

Huafu Group (note iv) Purchase of cotton yarn, cotton blended 88,861 31,209

yarn, top dyed melange yarn and other

- ‘ __yarn products
EZEE (Wativ) PREEMRA 1R~ BAH K
Hihah E &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

44. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Omar”) entered into a FM Master Sales
Agreement (the “2021 FM Master Sales Agreement”) on 22 November 2018
regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by the Group to
the FM Group. Mr. Omar is a director and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The FM Group comprises companies which Mr. Omar
and his associates and relatives individually or together exercise or control the
exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general meetings or control the
composition of a majority of the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the FM
Group are associates of Mr. Omar and hence connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2021 FM Master
Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2021 for
the 2021 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$350,000,000, HK$400,000,000 and
HK$400,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 22 November 2018.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$400,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2018.

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

44. F R AEANTHKE (8

(c)

MEALRS (&)

Mt -

)

K/ATEAFeroz Omarfc 4 (TOmarft41) 522018
F11R22HMAEBAFMEREEHRE K
4~ M e B IREC A 5T SLFMARSH & 19752 (T 2021
FEFMABTHE R cOmarftE AR AT —RIFE
2ENBABZESRTIERE RBIFLHHR
B BAXABZEEALT-FMEBZHRER
BlEIEAHOmarft E R HBMB A T RRB I T %
ERNRMNKREAS AR MR R M ITHEIHE
BITEBFHEU ERRE JEHZEAT
NEEZGABOKRENAT At FMEEZ
B AT AOmarcEZHMEA LT miRE L
MR BEARBD ZEABEA LT -RIELHRAE
14AE > 2021 FFMAZTHERZE B M RETZR
SIBMARB)Z BB 5 °

2021EEFMARSE & 1735 2 HABR 201951 B1HE
2021F12831H (BIEEEMXK) °

FUA AT HEAA2018FE11 228 2 A&
Frel 2021 EFMB I ERZE N E £20214F
12A A=A BREENEE LRESESY
Bl 350,000,000 75 ~ 400,000,000 7T &
400,000,000 7T

ZEMBERZMLEBIBAAS HEA20185FE11
B22H Z AEFr#E E2020F 128310 LEEE
2 _EFR400,000,0005 7T ©
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44. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(c)

(continued)

Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”)
entered into a AH Master Sales Agreement (the “2021 AH Master Sales
Agreement”) on 22 November 2018 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers
and garment parts by the Group to the AH Group. Mr. Hirdaramani is a director
and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
AH Group comprises companies which Mr. Hirdaramani and his associates and
relatives individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than 50%
of the voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of
the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the AH Group are associates of
Mr. Hirdaramani and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2021 AH Master Sales Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2021 for
the 2021 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$350,000,000, HK$400,000,000 and
HK$400,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 22 November 2018.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$400,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2018.

44, BB REAEATHIRE &)

(c) MEALRS (@)
ez - ()

(i)

ZA/A B ANl Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramanist 4
(THirdaramanift 4 1) i 2018F 1152287
AEBBAHEB HEBR - FRAD ~ M4 R
B s] ILAHARSH E ek (T 2021 FAHAEIH & 17
1) oHirdaramani’t £ A4 A B —BIEZEK
BABZESRETERE BELHRA > HA
KRB ZHABEAL - AHEBZHE AT BIEAR
Hirdaramanifc &= R HB B A Tt REB I EZE
NEREBAE LB R M S HE R ITE SR IEHITT
FEBEFHULNRAE NI ZELTNES
GABOMENAT  AILAHEB 2 HE AT
ZHirdaramanifc £ 2 BB A+ WMRE LS
A ARAT ZEEAT BB EHRIE14A
E’202135AHM%%TMD&IET}§E ETZR5
BRARAB ZFERAERS o

A AT HHA2018F 1182282 A
&l 2021 FAHAR B E REE E20215F12
B31BL=ZEAMBEENEELREESD
Bl %350,000,0007 75 ~ 400,000,000 7T K
400,000,000 7T ©

ZEMBR W EBBART HER2018F 11
B22B 2 AEPEE E2020F12831HIEFE
2 FE FFR400,000,00054 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

44. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

()

The Company and Chinatex Corporation Limited (“Chinatex”) entered into a
Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2021 Material Purchase Framework
Agreement”) on 22 November 2018 in relation to the purchase of yarn, cotton,
other materials for the manufacture of fabric, garments, whereas cooking oil
and foodstuffs for the provision of meals to the employees by the Group from
the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries). Chinatex is a controlling
shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, members of the Chinatex Group are associates of
Chinatex and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The transactions contemplated under the 2021 Material Purchase Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2021
for the 2021 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$63,000,000,
HK$63,000,000 and HK$63,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 22 November 2018.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$63,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2018.

The Company and Huafu Holding Co., Ltd. (“Huafu Holding”) and its subsidiaries
(*Huafu Group”) entered into a purchase framework agreement (the “2022
Purchase Framework Agreement”) on 29 November 2019. Pursuant to the
2022 Purchase Framework Agreement, Huafu Holding agreed to, or procure its
subsidiaries to, supply cotton yarn, cotton blended yarn, top dyed melange yarn
and other yarn products that may be needed for the Group. The cotton yarn,
cotton blended yarn, top dyed melange yarn and other yarn products that may be
needed to be purchased by the Group will be used for the manufacture of textile
products of the Group.

As Hong Kong Tin Shing Trading Limited (“Tin Shing”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of Huafu Holding,
completed the acquisition of 16.33% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company on 1 November 2019, Tin Shing has become a substantial Shareholder
and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Huafu Holding,
as the holding company of Tin Shing, is an associate of Tin Shing and, therefore, is
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2022 for
the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$600,000,000, HK$600,000,000
and HK$600,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2019.

ir B SRR (B

31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%12H31H

44. F R AEANTHKE (8

(c) RAEALRS (&)
Kzt (&)

(il

(v)

AATEPEPHEBERAT (TH41) B
2018 F 11 A2 i AEEEF4HERE BIFP4H &
HESBAE)) HREEMEA 187 HthEER AR
RMWEME XU RBERBAAERREERMH
EeZiERR M M YERBIERRZ (F2021
FYERBERGE)) c PHAETRBZER
BRER ) UL - iR¥E L RA) R AR AT 2 B
AT REM RE EHRE P EBR A
ERBATHZHEN EMAEAT ZHE
AT iR EHRAIFE14AS > 2021 E Y B RS
ERBZETRETZRABRAAB ZIFE
RAER 5o

U A AT HEEA2018FE11B22B 2 A&
B 2021 Y ERBERBENE E20215412
A31BLE=ZEYREENEE LIRSED A
63,000,0003 7T * 63,000,0003 75 563,000,000
BT

ZEMBERZLEBIBAAS HEA20185FE11
B22H Z AEFr#E E2020F 128310 LEEE
~ FE _FE63,000,000# 7T

AANTF2019F11 B20H EEZ TR AR T
(MEZER) REKRB AR (EXZEE)) 5T1L
REEEZL R (T 2022 FHREBIELRWZE)) 1R
2022 IRBIER > EFERAE ERFEH
MBAT) HERL  IREHL B RAE
EIESENHMOGER AEETERE
IREZ B IRRPA B R E AR E R
RN ERER ARG

HREEBRXRESBRAR (K » —RBRE
BEMBIUIZERAR U AEZIERZEE
WEAT) R2019F11B1HERKEELATE
BITIRINEH 2 16.33% 1R L HRE) > KA
ERARABZEFEREMRBEAN T FEXIT
B (EARXMZIEZERAR) BRBZHBEA
I 1R EHIRAIE14AE » EZ LR AKNAT
ZRAEA Lo

C02FRBIERMABE TRET I ZBAME
AEN EHRBBIARIR T Z FERAER 5 ©

2022F FREEER % 2 FHIR2020F1 A1 H R
Z2022F12831H I (BEEEMX) ©

FUAAT HEAA2019F11 298 2 A&
Frat > 2022 FE IREBER R E N E E2022512
B31BE=ZEHBEEEELRSBED
Bl 600,000,000 7t ~ 600,000,000 7T &
600,000,000 7 ©
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44. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)
Notes: (continued)
(iv)  (continued)

The 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2022 for
the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$600,000,000, HK$600,000,000
and HK$600,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2019.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$600,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2019.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during
the year was as follows:

44. Rk R RAEATHKRE (&)

(c) AEALRS (&)

Kzt - (&)

vy (&)

2022 F IR BEME LR W5k 2 TFHAFH2020F1 B 1 HiE
ZF2022F 12831 HIE (BIEEEMX) ©

A AAS HEAA2019F11H298 2
Frl > 2022 FF KB IE SRt & N ELE202
B1HLEL=ZEYBREEEELRESED
31l 600,000,000 7t ~ 600,000,000 7T &
600,000,000 7T ©

ZERMBR S W EBIBANATHEA2019

H29B 2 AEF#E & E£2020F12831H Lk
2 & £FR600,000,000 H 7T o

(d FESEASHHM
AFEEEFREMTBZEEASHFHFMUOT

o N
S
o OF

11
E

n

2020 2019

HK$'000 F&;x  HK$'000 FET

Fees W& 850 850
Short-term benefits ZHREH] 5,688 5,688
Post-employment benefits B EET 183 183
Discretionary bonuses FI5 15 1,525 1,525
Equity-settled share-based payments MEmETURNAERZAIR - 9
8,246 8,255

The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the
Board and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned entities”). The
Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are independent third
parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are concerned.

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw
materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to these
state-owned entities are individually not significant. In addition, the Group’s
bank balances (including short-term bank deposits and restricted bank
deposits) and bank borrowings of HK$591,894,000 and HK$128,379,000
(31 December 2019: HK$462,440,000 and HK$102,791,000) respectively are
placed/arranged with state-owned banks as at 31 December 2020.

EENTIEZEEABZHMEHEFE2REAR
Bl EEEE BRI RIFE R IR M SR E
FMEE LHHFMEESEER-

() BEHMPEEERRETNRS

AEBLERENLCHIRIZRNG T ZHTAEK
[FEZENERER HREGSNIRETES
FENNER BB HAER)) T5 4R
AEERR ESREFAERETHERZH
HAERIABUE=T-

RER cEBBREMEEBREETRS &
EERRREESRM R BERN KB Uk
HEABRITENR S -

BZEEEERHEENMMARBERRE K
BERENRZWIEFE K tESh > fR20205F12
B31H > ZEBEMNRITEG (BIEREHETE
AERZRABITER RETEESRSNE
591,894,000 7t 2 128,379,000 7T (2019412
B318 : D RA462,440,0005% 75 /& 102,791,000
B AERPREART/ HEERTZHE



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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Listing :  Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 20 April 1988
Stock Code . 420
Board Lot . 2,000 shares
Shares Issued 1,225,026,960
(as at 31 December 2020)

Financial Calendar

31 December 2020
21 August 2020
19 March 2021

4 — 7 May 2021

Financial year end
2020 interim results announced
2020 annual results announced
Register of members closed for
determining the right to attend and
vote at Annual General Meeting
Annual General Meeting 7 May 2021
Register of members closed for 18 — 20 May 2021
determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend
Distribution of final dividend 31 May 2021
2021 interim results to be announced Late August 2021

Shareholder Services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration,
change of correspondence address, etc.,
please contact the Company’s share registrar:
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F.

148 Electric Road, North Point
Hong Kong

Tel +852 2153 1688

Fax +852 3020 5058
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